Public Document Pack

Penallta House, Ty Penalita, ‘
Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,
¥strad Mynach, Ystrad Mynach, c A E R pﬂl '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG ENNGOR BWRDEISTIREE SINGL
www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk
For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Charlotte Evans
(Tel: 01443 864210 Email: evanscal@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Date: 17th September 2014
Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee will be held in the Sirhowy Room, Penallta
House, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2014 at 5.30 pm to consider the
matters contained in the following agenda.

Yours faithfully,

(1 ( )
L N

Chris Burns
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA

1 To receive apologies for absence.

2 Declaration of interest
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for
both Councillors and Officers.

To approve and sign the following minutes: -

3 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on 8th July 2014 (minute nos. 1-12).

4 Consideration of any matter referred to this Committee in accordance with the call-in procedure.

5 To receive a verbal report from the Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

|I |||lI|II|||m____




To receive and consider the following Cabinet reports*: -
6 Renewal of Mainstream School and College Transport Contracts;
7 Islwyn West Secondary School- Outline of Project Plan;
8 Caerphilly Library Service Strategy 2014-2017,

*If a member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above Cabinet reports to be brought
forward for review at the meeting please contact Charlotte Evans, 01443 864210, by 10.00 a.m. on
Monday, 22nd September 2014

To receive and consider the following Scrutiny reports: -

9 Measuring the Progress of Vulnerable Groups of Learners and how Services Work together to
Support them and their Families;

10 Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Review;
11 To record any requests for an item to be included on the next available agenda.
To receive and note the following information items*: -
12 Caerphilly Youth Service Strategy 2014-2019;
13 21st Century Schools: Gateway Review;
14 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme;
15 Summary of Members' Attendance - Quarter 1 - 8th May 2014 - 30th June 2014.
*If a member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above Cabinet reports to be brought

forward for review at the meeting please contact Charlotte Evans, 01443 864210, by 10.00 a.m. on
Monday, 22nd September 2014

Circulation:

Councillors P.J. Bevan, Mrs A. Blackman, W. David (Chair), H.R. Davies, C. Durham, C.J. Gordon,
D.M. Gray, D. Havard, G. Johnston, M.P. James, Mrs G.D. Oliver, D.W.R. Preece, J. Pritchard (Vice
Chair), J.E. Roberts, Mrs M.E. Sargent and R. Saralis

Co-opted Members:

Cardiff ROC Archdiocesan Commission for Education Representative (with voting rights on
educational matters)

Mr M. Western

Parent Governor Representatives (with voting rights on educational matters) Mr A. Farina-Childs and
Mrs A. Goss

Outside Body Representatives (without voting rights)
Mr P. Jones (NAHT), Mrs J. Havard (NUT), Mrs P. Ireland (NUT) and Mr J. Short (NASUWT)



Caerphilly Governors Association (without voting rights)
Mrs S. Evans (Caerphilly Governors Association)

And Appropriate Officers



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUUIGH COUNC,
CYNGDOR BWRDEISTREF SIRO

EREFILT

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH
ON TUESDAY, 8TH JULY 2014 AT 5.30 P.M.

PRESENT:

Councillor W. David - Chair

Councillors:

Mrs A. Blackman, H.R. Davies, C. Durham, C. Gordon, D.M. Gray, D. Havard, M.P. James,
Mrs G.D. Oliver, D.W.R. Preece, J.E. Roberts and R. Saralis.

Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning - Mrs R. Passmore

Together with:

S. Aspinall (Acting Deputy Chief Executive), K. Cole (Manager, Learning, Education and
Inclusion), G. Evans (Interim Manager Community Education), B. Hopkins (Assistant Director),
T. Maher (Assistant Director Planning and Strategy), E. Pryce (EAS), D. Harteveld (EAS),
J. Jones (Democratic Services Manager), C. Evans (Committee Services Officer)

Co-opted Members: Mr M. Western (Cardiff ROC Archdiocesan), Mr A. Farina-Childs and
Mrs A. Goss (Parent Governors)
APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. Pritchard and P. Ireland (NUT).

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at the beginning or during the course of the
meeting.

2. MINUTES
RESOLVED that: -

§ The Minutes of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on 4th June 2014
(minute nos. 1-15, on page nos. 1-7) be approved as a correct record and signed by
the Chair, subject to an amendment on Page 2, Minute nos. 6, paragraph 1, in the
Report by the Cabinet Member, to advise that it should read five (not six) of the
schools selected are within the County Borough.

Page 1



§ The Minutes of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on 19th June 2014
(minute nos. 1-5, on page nos. 1-9) be approved as a correct record and signed by the
Chair, subject to Councillor C. Durham being recorded as present at the meeting.

CALL - IN PROCEDURE

There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-in
procedure.

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND LIFELONG LEARNING

Councillor Mrs R. Passmore, Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning, provided
Members with a verbal update on the Youth Service’'s new Health Education Resource, The
Health and Wellbeing Toolkit. The release of the toolkit coincided with National Youth Work
Week. The toolkit was originally developed in Caerphilly; however, it has been adapted and
implemented across Wales as the definitive Health Resource for all Youth Services.
Caerphilly, together with Regional Youth Service partners, have co-ordinated the development
of a National development group to oversee further enhancements.

The resource compliments health messages being delivered in schools and other settings and
its existence underlines the key role that Youth Workers play in communicating these
messages to young people who would either not receive the advice from another source.

The press release was co-ordinated with Public Health, partners in designing and producing
the resource. The Directorate have since received numerous requests for copies of the toolkit
from non-youth work agencies across Wales, both statutory and voluntary in nature.

The Cabinet Member was pleased to announce that, since opening its doors on 6th January
2014, the new Caerphilly Town Library and Customer Service Centre has proven a popular
venue for residents with 111,941 visits, an increase of 138% on the equivalent time period in
2013 at the former Morgan Jones site.

Similarly, the book and non-book resources at the new facility have also proven popular with
more than 81,000 items having been borrowed compared to 54,000 the year previous, a 50%
uplift. Some 40% of the book and non-book loans have been to children and young people.
On a related theme, Members noted that Newbridge Library and Cash Office at the Memo has
seen a 156% increase in its visitor numbers and an 80% increase in borrowing since its
successful relocation at the end of June 2013.

CABINET REPORTS

None of the Cabinet Reports listed on the agenda had been called forward for discussion at
the meeting.

REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Consideration was given to the following reports.

EDUCATION CAPITAL 2014/15- UPDATE

B. Hopkins presented the report, which identified the allocation of Education Capital budgets
for the 2014/15 financial year.

Page 2



Members were made aware of the severe pressure that the Education and School capital
programme was under for 2014-15 and the requirement to fund important statutory works in
relation to asbestos and electrical testing at schools during the year. As a result, it had not
been possible to fund as many other school capital projects as hoped.

During the 2013-14 financial year, the Education Capital Programme encountered some
unforeseen and unbudgeted in-year cost pressures. Therefore, for 2014-15 it had been
determined to retain a contingency in both the main element of the Education programme and
also the revenue/ capital 50/50 budget. The contingent sums would initially be required to
fund slippage works from 2013/14 and any unallocated monies would be reviewed in the
Autumn term.

The Chair thanked the Officer for the report and a full discussion ensued.

A Member queried the tendering process for contracts under £10,000. Following discussion,
it was advised that the Member seek further information from Procurement and Property
Services or request a report be provided to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee.

Members discussed the asbestos works detailed within the report. It was highlighted that a
detailed report was presented to the previous Committee; Councillor D. Preece requested that
Committee Services sent a copy of the Asbestos Report presented to the last Scrutiny
Committee.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officer and noted the contents of the report.

SUMMARY OF ESTYN INSPECTION OUTCOMES UNDER THE NEW COMMON
INSPECTION FRAMEWORK (CIF)- SEPTEMBER 2013 TO MAY 2014

The report informed Members of the judgements made by Estyn inspection teams of
Caerphilly schools for the academic year 2013-2014 (where published) and provided a
summary of Caerphilly Schools’ inspection judgements since the introduction of the new
Common inspection Framework in September 2010.

Members noted that the schools included in the report were inspected during the autumn and
spring terms 2013-14. Each School was inspected under the arrangements for inspections
that came into effect on 1st September 2010.

The report identified the schools and the dates on which the inspections took place and
contained a brief analysis of the inspection finding for each school.

Members thanked the Officers for the report and analysed and discussed the data. A Member
queried the progress made within a Caerphilly CBC School that had been placed under
Special Measures. Officers highlighted that a second visit to the school had recently been
undertaken, the results of which were not yet published. However, Members noted that the
school in question was making progress towards fulfilling Estyn’s recommendations and there
were clear signs of improvements.

A Member queried whether the data and outcomes had an impact on the number of parents
requesting transfers to alternative schools. Officers confirmed that requests had been
received from concerned parents, however, surgeries are provided by EAS to discuss the
Inspection Outcomes and offer reassurance to parents, where necessary, on school
performance and improvement.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officers for the report and noted its contents.

Page 3



RENEWAL OF MAINSTREAM SCHOOL AND COLLEGE TRANSPORT CONTRACTS

The report sought the views of Members on the proposed changes to the renewal of
mainstream school and college transport contracts, prior to its presentation to Cabinet.
Members noted that a new framework is under development in preparation for the renewal of
the existing contracts.

The report proposed that, following a review of the specification for mainstream education
contracts, the existing transport arrangements be replaced with new contracts to commence
from 1st January 2015 with a revised specification. The main changes being the relaxation of
some areas of the previous contract requirements, particularly with regards to emission
standards and the age of vehicles to ensure that the new contracts are affordable and let
within available budget provision. Members noted that, due to the number of future expected
changes in demand for home to school transport, the proposals would ensure that contracts
are packaged and let flexibly and as efficiently as possible.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Officer for the report and a full discussion ensued.

Members raised concerns about the proposed maximum age of the vehicles and safety.
Officers assured Members that all vehicles used for school transport contracts were to be a
maximum of 25 years old at the start of the contract, were to be MOT tested and maintained
appropriately. In addition, were concerns were raised about vehicles the Council organised
unannounced spot checks in partnership with VOSA and the Police). Members also noted
that, it was likely that the contracts would be let to local operators, which would be helpful if
replacement vehicles were need due to a breakdown.

Clarification was sought from Officers as to the reasons why comparisons are made against
other Local Authority contracts and processes. Members noted that this was in order to
benchmark and make sensible decisions based on best practice.

Members sought further information on the contracts for taxis and mini-buses for school
contracts. Officers explained that the taxi and minibus vehicles and drivers would be
compliant with national legislative operational standards and were used specifically for home
to school transport for children with disabilities or special needs. Following discussion,
Councillor C. Gordon requested information on the upper age limit of taxi’'s and mini-buses
used on home to school transport contracts. Officers advised that this would be covered in a
Special Meeting of Education for Life Scrutiny Committee in September.

Having fully considered the report it was moved and seconded that the recommendations in
the report be approved. By a show of hands this was unanimously endorsed.

The following recommendations would therefore be referred to Cabinet for consideration: -
The specification for mainstream school transport contracts is set as follows:

All vehicles are single-decked.

All vehicles are fitted with seat belts.

All vehicles used must be a maximum of 25 years old at the start of the contract.
Contracts are limited to a maximum length of 3 years.

The introduction of a new contract variation clause, rather than annual reviews.
New contracts will commence in January 2015.

W W D 1

CAERPHILLY LIBRARY SERVICE STRATEGY, 2014-2017.

The report advised Members of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee of the future
strategic priorities for the Authority’s Library Service between 2014 and 2017, building on the
foundations of the 2009-2014 Five Year Development Plan and considerable investment

Page 4



10.

made by the Authority in its network of Library Facilities and services during the last six-year
period.

Members noted that the proposed new Library Strategy was considered in the context of a
new Welsh Government Quality Standards Framework 2014-2017, and with particular regard
to the Council’'s Medium Term Financial Planning arrangements in respect of 2015-16 and
2016-17.

The Library Service Strategy would focus on managing the anticipated organisational changes
required as part of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and upon delivering in two key
areas of activity, namely: -

§ ‘Reading Together’- Establishing best practice in promoting reading to individuals,
families, and communities of place and interest, and improving core literacy skills to
aid wider learning objectives.

§ ‘Digital e-Services’- Supporting residents to become digitally skilled and enabled to
seek work online, access benefits electronically and to become more confident using
the Internet for all their information needs.

The Scrutiny Committee was happy to receive the report and pleased with the proposals.

Members discussed the key activities and queried whether developments in technology have
caused any significant impact on book loans within the service. Officers highlighted that there
have been significant investment in IT stock recently to replace many of the PC’s within
libraries and the service is currently developing a Library App, which would provide users with
access to the library catalogue and other services available online.

Members noted there have been some improvements in visits and better use is being made of
the professional team, with reading being targeted in a more focussed way and an increase in
themed activities within libraries during half terms, however, there is always room for
improvement.

Having fully considered the report it was agreed that the Caerphilly Library Service Strategy
be endorsed and its acceptance be recommended to Cabinet. By a show of hands this was
unanimously agreed.

REDUCED FUNDING FOR ADULT COMMUNITY LEARNING 2014-2015

It was agreed that, as this item contained a recommendation to Cabinet, it should be received
at this part of the meeting and not as an item for information, as detailed on the agenda.

The report provided Members of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee with information
on the reduction in funding for Adult Community Learning in the 2014/15 academic year and
provided options for consideration for future delivery of the service.

Members noted that Adult Community Learning faces significant reductions to the budget in
2014/15 academic year. Members considered the financial and personnel implications as
detailed within the report and expressed concerns that a number of posts may be affected,
although they were advised that actions would be undertaken in line with the Council’s
Redeployment and Redundancy Policy.

Following detailed consideration, Members expressed their concerns that the grant funding

had been reduced and reference was made to the impact on the low-income residents living
in the county borough.

Page 5



1.

12

Members were informed that the reduction in grant funding as outlined in Table 1 although
confirmed by the Welsh Government (WG), Coleg Gwent and Coleg Cymoedd, was
dependant on Caerphilly achieving the targets for delivery detailed in the grant agreement.

Members noted the impact of the reduction in funding on Management, Administration and
Venue costs required to run eligible courses.

There were a number of courses previously funded by the grant that now do not qualify for
grant funding. Paragraphs 4.5/4.7 detail options for charging learners and increasing room
hire charges to try to maintain provision.

The Scrutiny Committee supported the proposals as outlined in paragraphs 4.5 and 4.7 of the
report, as set out below, and recommended their approval to Cabinet:-

(i) In order to mitigate the impact of the reduction in tutor hours, it be considered that the
Service offers courses on a cost recovery basis. It is estimated that the cost would be
£4 per hour per learner with an additional £3 per hour per learner for accreditation, if
required (Courses would continue if they are viable due to the number attending)

(i) With regard to the marginal increases in room hire, it be proposed that these fees be
increased at a level which remains competitive.

REQUESTS FOR AN ITEM TO BE PLACED ON THE NEXT AVAILABLE AGENDA

Members were reminded that a consultation is currently taking place around the Forward
Work Programmes; Members were invited to feed directly into this with any requests for
reports.

1. Councillor Martyn James requested a report on School Building Contracts under
£10,000 and the tendering process. Officers advised that this was an issue for
Procurement Services and therefore recommended that a request be made for a
report to be brought to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee.

2. Councillor Denver Preece requested progress on a report on how the progress of
“vulnerable” children within the borough is tracked and the outcomes of interventions
made. Officers confirmed that this report will be on the agenda for the Committee in
September.

INFORMATION ITEMS

The Committee noted the following items for information, full details of which were included
within the Officers reports. They were not brought forward for review.

Financial Plan Education and Lifelong Learning 2014/15;

Education and Lifelong Learning Grants 2014-15;

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme;

Summary of Members Attendance- Quarter 1- 1st January 2014 to 7th May 2014;
SACRE Minutes- 5th March 2014.

aorwN =

The meeting closed at 19:38pm.

Approved as a correct record, and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 23rd September 2014, they were
signed by the Chair.

CHAIRMAN

Page 6



Agenda ltem 9

N
CAERPHILLY

COLINTY BORODUGH CDOLFINCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: MEASURING THE PROGRESS OF VULNERABLE GROUPS OF
LEARNERS AND HOW SERVICES WORK TOGETHER TO SUPPORT
THEM AND THEIR FAMILIES

REPORT BY: ACTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To provide Members with an overview of the impact of collaborative work being delivered
throughout the borough to improve the lives for children, young people, families and
communities, highlighting good practice.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 This report outlines the work done to support vulnerable groups of learners and the impact on
progress made. The strength of current strategies being implemented lies in the effective
collaborative approach between key partners. Strong working relationships exist between
Families First Programmes, Flying Start, Communities First, Youth Service and schools, which
results in streamlining services and more targeted support.

2.2 Education has the ability to empower people to make better life choices, be ambitious and
confident about work, and contribute substantially to breaking the cycle of deprivation. The
challenge is that we have the second highest percentage of pupils in Wales who are eligible
for Free School Meals, and our figures demonstrate that these children are outperformed by
children who are not in receipt of Free School Meals.

2.3 Poverty can have a negative effect particularly on the long-term opportunities and outcomes
for children and young people throughout their life including education and employment
opportunities. The choices that parents make can significantly influence their child’s life
opportunities and the multi-agency approach with Families First, Flying Start and other
programmes recognises the support that families need to overcome the impact of poverty.
Initiatives to tackle the wider areas of child poverty are included in our joint partnership
document ‘Caerphilly Delivers’.

2.4 The Directorate of Education and Lifelong Learning seeks to develop a network of learning
communities which will provide an inclusive range of quality accessible services and
opportunities to help meet the needs of adults, children, young people and their families and
the wider community — thus promoting a culture of lifelong learning and wellbeing. To achieve
this vision, services are guided by the aspiration that all children, young people and adults:-

have a flying start in life

have a comprehensive range of education and learning opportunities

enjoy the best possible health and are free from abuse, victimisation and exploitation
have access to play, leisure, sporting and cultural activities

Page 7



2.5

4.1.

411

41.2

41.4

e are listened to, treated with respect and have their race and cultural identity recognised
¢ have a safe home and a community which supports physical and emotional wellbeing
e are not disadvantaged.

The Directorate’s goal is that every child should have the best start in life, and the opportunity
to achieve success as a young person and adult.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

Children and Families (Wales) Measure 2010

Child Poverty Strategy for Wales

Child Poverty Strategy 2014 — 2017 (UK)

Youth Service Strategy (CCBC)

Caerphilly Community Strategy (CCBC 2004), as well as cross cutting themes such as

50+, Sustainable Development and the Council’s Strategic Equality Objectives (2012-

2016)

e Single Integrated Plan (CCBC 2013 - 17)

e 2013/14 Improvement Objective 2: Improving Job Opportunities by Implementing the
Council's Passport Programme

e Qutcome Agreement 5 (2013 — 16): Tackling Worklessness and Raising Household
Income

e Corporate Improvement Plan
Engagement and Progression

¢ In addition the Local Service Board has identified tackling poverty as one of its key
priorities

¢ Improvement Objective - Develop an effective and accessible Youth Service that supports

the personal and social development of young people.

THE REPORT

Flying Start is a child focussed, tackling poverty, intervention programme for 0-3 year olds
delivered in 19 areas currently and expanding to a further 6 areas in 2015-16. The maximum
number of 0-3 year olds targeted currently is 2,246 increasing to 2,483 in 2015-16.

The programme begins antenatally with the health and parenting support that gives families
the tools they need to begin their journey through parenthood. A massive success in 2013-14
has been the joint working with the midwifery team who notify the Health Outreach team of all
breastfeeding mums on discharge from hospital. This enables all families to be contacted
with the offer of support in the earliest days and has increased the take up and maintenance
of breastfeeding.

Childcare for 2-3 year olds offers funded places part time 5 days a week, before the child
starts their Foundation Phase place. The take up of places is high (89%),and attendance is
improving (77%).

Family support offers a range of parenting programmes to suit parents’ needs at different
ages and stages of their child’s development. Results show that parents improve their
parental capacity following the course. They also maintain or improve it when measured
again 3 months following the end of the course.

Flying Start aims to make a difference to children’s development, which is nationally
measured through the SOGS (Schedule of Growing Skills) assessment. GL Assessment has
been commissioned to independently analyse the SOGS results for the cohort of children
2011-13. The annual programme summary report 2013-14 (Appendix 1) gives more detail on
all impact statistics for the programme.

Page 8



415

417

4.2

4.2.1

422

423

424

425

The Flying Start programme works collaboratively with Families First and Communities First
and its database has been developed to include the Families First programme which enables
effective transition for families.

Case studies show some of our families’ stories. They are real examples of the different
circumstances that families found themselves in and how the right provision supported them
to become more resilient. The stories are shared with other families who are new to the
programme in order to break down fears and barriers to accessing the support they might
need.

The transition between Flying Start and the Foundation Phase has continued to improve and
has meant that children have much more success at this stage. Critical data is shared and
specific programmes maintain continuity of provision. Families, in particular, are supported in
this important time.

Both national and global research shows that there is a significant link between socio-
economic background and educational performance. The Welsh Government’s statistical
bulletin, “Achievement and Entitlement to Free School Meals in Wales”, published every
March, shows that the performance of pupils eligible for free school meals (FSM), which is a
measure of socio economic deprivation, is lower than for their non eligible counterparts at all
key stages. The Welsh Government therefore uses the percentage of pupils eligible for free
schools meals as a proxy indicator of deprivation for both individual schools and local
authorities.

According to the latest available figures for the percentage of pupils eligible for FSM,
Caerphilly is the 2" most socio economically disadvantaged LA in Wales. This
contextualisation is not used to reduce ambition, nor to set limiting targets, but to show that if
Caerphilly performance is higher than 21, then performance is better than expected. Our
aspiration is still to overcome the link between deprivation and poor attainment. Full
information on performance up to 2013 was provided in the Standards Report presented to
Scrutiny on 14™ January 2014.

Outcomes for pupils in the Foundation Phase, Key Stages two and three in 2014 are outlined
in the table below. A full performance report will be presented once full comparative data is
available (October 2014)

Phase/ | Expected Target | Caerphilly | Caerphilly | Difference | Wales
Stage Level Range 2014 2013 Caerphilly 2014
FP FPI (O5+) 80-90 88.5 85.0 +3.5 85.2
KS2 CSI (L4+) 79-88 85.8 84.2 +1.6 86.1
KS3 CSI (L5+) 70-83 77.6 73.5 +3.9 81.0

Performance in the FPI has improved by 3.5% points from 2013, remains above the national
average and is towards top end of the target range. Performance has improved consistently
since the introduction of this indicator.

Performance in the KS2 CSI has improved by 1.6% points from 2013, remains slightly below
the national average and is towards the top end of the target range. Performance has
improved consistently since 2007.

Performance in the KS3 CSI has improved by 3.9% points from 2013, remains below the

national average and slightly above the middle of the target range. Performance has
improved consistently since 2007.

Page 9



426

427

428

429

4.2.10

In Key Stage 2, LA officers identify and target pupils to receive additional literacy intervention
in Year 4. In 2012-13, 132 pupils were identified across 25 schools, including Welsh medium.
The Literacy programme is delivered by specialist Literacy teachers who also deliver the
support for pupils with Specific Learning Difficulties (SpLd).

NFER standardised reading scores are used to identify pupils who will receive the intervention
programme. Pupils with standardised scores (SS) between 74 and 84 are identified for the
purpose of this intervention.

Pupils with SS 74-84 were not included if they were on the SEN Register above School Action
or were already placed in a Specialist Resource Base provision. A minimum of 4 pupils in a
group is required.

At the beginning of the 16-week programme, all pupils are baselined using the York
Assessment of Reading and Comprehension (YARC) tool. The aim of the intervention
programme is to increase individual pupils’ comprehension levels and address issues
focusing on their reading accuracy and rates. The intervention programme is based on the
schools’ curriculum and is shared with staff. This supports building capacity within schools
and enhances the range of strategies they are able to offer to support learners.

Outcomes for pupils who received the intervention between September 2013 and June 2014
indicated 82% of pupils made a minimum of 4 months progress in their reading accuracy and
rate.

Number of Pupils

4211

Increase in Accuracy Age across the period of
Literacy Support (Sept '13 - Jan '14)

<0 0-6 7-12 | 13-18 | 19-24 | 25-30 | 31-36 | =37
mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths

No.of pupils| 6 40 43 21 5 2 5 7

76% of pupils made a minimum of 4 months progress in their comprehension age.

Page 10



Number of Pupils

4212

4213

4214

4215

4.2.16

4.2.17

4218

4.2.19

Increase in Comprehension Age across the period of
Literacy Support (Sept '13 - Jan '14)

25

20

15

10 4

) |

07 <0 | 0-6 | 7-12|13-18|19-24|25-30|31-36|37-42|43-48| =49
mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths | mths

No. of pupils| 19 18 21 12 12 9 6 4 6 6

Based on their rates of progress prior to intervention, this indicates pupils made double the
rate of progress following implementation of the programme of support.

33% made between 7-12 months progress in 16 weeks in reading accuracy.
16% made between 7-12 months progress in 16 weeks in reading comprehension.

Factors which impacted on progress rates included pupil absence, and school based activities
which limited some pupils’ access to regular intervention group sessions.

In 2014-15 based on the NFER reading results, using the same criteria as above, 210 pupils
have been identified across 55 schools to receive the Literacy intervention programme.

The Catch Up Literacy Programme is very structured and follows a set pattern. Trained Catch
Up staff deliver the programme within schools.

The intervention programme ran between May and July 2014 for identified Year 6 pupils with
the aim of boosting their reading skills levels prior to entry into the Secondary setting.

The focus was on Year 6 pupils with standardised scores (SS) between 75 and 84, based on
the NFER reading results. All pupils identified received 2 Catch Up session per week.117
pupils were identified for intervention across 26 schools, including Welsh medium.

Pupils identified are baselined at the beginning and end of the programme using the Salford
Assessment.

Pupil progress can be seen in the graph below which demonstrates the impact of the
intervention.

Page 11



Progress in reading age
50
45
40
35 m10
30 m20
25
20 30
15 m 40
10 50
5
0
0-3 3-6 6-9 9+ mths

4.2.20 Over the 3-month intervention period 42.77% (47 pupils) made between 0-3 months gain in
their reading age. All results are shared with schools. Where pupils regressed or showed very
limited improvement the staff member refers to the school SENCo to ensure the needs of the
pupil are clearly identified.

4.2.21 Factors impacting on the outcomes for pupils identified in this intervention programme
included underlying significant SEN issues, school based activities impacting on pupils
attending regular sessions, the length of the programme implemented and pupil attendance
issues.

4.2.22 In 2014-15, Year 6 pupils will be the target group. Standardised scores (SS) between 78 and
87 will be used to identify pupils to receive support. This will be based on the NFER reading
results. The intervention programme will be delivered for a significantly longer time
(September-March).

4.2.23 The change in identification of pupil standardised scores will capture those pupils who are at
the top of the below average standardised score range and those pupils who have
standardised scores which are just into the average range. It is anticipated that this will boost
the basic skills of these pupils to consolidate their reading abilities.

At present 220 pupils with standardised scores between 78-87, across 33 schools have been
identified.

LA intervention programmes have become increasingly focused and specifically targeted to
achieve maximum outcomes. Data is used well for identification and tracking so that pupil
groups and programmes may be adjusted for most impact. Staff in schools are trained and
equipped to continue with these strategies following the withdrawal of LA staff direct support.
Whilst care is taken to support the families of these pupils within the school setting, other
networks and projects seek to further engage with them in the community.

4.2.24 Alongside the work done within schools in liaison with the EAS, LA officers have challenged
schools to raise their expectations, particularly in relation to vulnerable pupils. The
performance and needs of every individual pupil in years 10 and 11 are discussed and
appropriate learning pathways and interventions are identified.

4.2.25 The progress of all pupils is tracked and their progress is categorised and colour coded.

4.2.26 Termly visits allow for discussion with school colleagues on the progress for each individual
pupil across both year groups. A range of school staff maybe involved in the process
including the Head Teacher, Head of Key Stage, Head of Year and the Heads of English and
Mathematics.

Page 12



4.2.27

4.2.28

4.2.29

4.2.30

4.2.31

4.2.32

4.2.33

4.2.34

4.3

4.3.1

432

433

Pupils’ progress is categorised based on a range of factors. This categorisation may change
during the term due to attendance, health issues, SEN issues, behaviour and intervention
programmes implemented. The focus is to maintain the performance levels of pupils
identified and to monitor the intervention programmes implemented from the school for those
requiring additional support. Equally, the performance of more able and talented pupils is also
challenged.

Schools select intervention programmes which best support learners identified. Such
interventions may include additional Basic Skills support, intensive programmes, transport,
after school sessions and incentives to attend school.

Pupil outcomes for 2012-13 demonstrated the success that some targeted pupils achieved
following significant intervention from the schools and service providers. These included
some pupils achieving L2+. 2014 data is currently being analysed to measure impact.

Currently, 370 pupils in year 10 and 234 pupils in year 11 are in receipt of intensive
intervention following the most recent summer term visits.

Where multiple factors are identified which are impacting on pupil progress, follow up work is
carried out by the LA officer to support the pupils identified. This may include liaison with
Education Welfare Service (EWS), Educational Psychology Service (EPS) or Education Other
Than At School (EOTAS) providers. Actions are then addressed with the schools at
subsequent meetings.

During the autumn term, following GCSE results, all schools are revisited to review how each
individual pupil in Year 11 performed according to the predictions made by the school.
Analysis of 2014 is underway.

Outcomes from these visits inform the schools decisions in the selection or continuation of
intervention programmes to be implemented for subsequent year groups.

The LA is about to conduct a mapping exercise with EAS to establish the impact of support on
these particular vulnerable learners.

Families First is dedicated to taking the whole family approach in order to improve the lives of
children. It focuses on preventative work and early intervention throughout the borough. The
aim is to empower families to become more resilient and to give them the support they need
at the time when they need it. The packages of support provided are bespoke to individual
family needs. These can range from providing basic literacy and numeracy in the home to
build confidence to progress, to receiving a coordinated family package of services and
support through the Team Around the Family Model, known as the Supporting Family Change
project.

There are a total of twelve projects in the Families First Programme and no project works in
isolation. All were initiated based upon local need and the vast majority have been
strategically commissioned projects and made up of one or more organisations to promote
partnership working. All projects aim to work collaboratively with those in Flying Start and
Communities First areas to maximise resources, reduce duplication and highlight good
practice.

The principal focus of the Families First Programme is to support families through early
interventions at the preventative stage.

Central to the Programme is the Team Around the Family model called the Supporting Family
Change (SFC) project which coordinates groups of professionals from a range of agencies to
provide bespoke support packages to meet whole family needs. The SFC project also
provides intensive support to families in highest risk of being known to Social Services.

Page 13



434

435

4.3.6

437

4.3.8

4.3.9

4.3.10

4.4

4.4.1

442

443

As part of the Families First Programme which further promotes the joined up approach is the
development of the Joint Assessment Family Framework (JAFF). Although still in
development stage, the JAFF is essentially a common holistic assessment framework for
referrals which brings together a range of agencies and their expertise in the identification of
needs and the most appropriate ways to address them.

The impact of the Families First Programme is demonstrated by the outcomes for families and
as the Programme continues to develop, the longer term impact is increasingly being built
upon.

Almost all of the families who have engaged with the Programme have improved their literacy
and numeracy skills, with one dedicated project evidencing 97% of children and 93% of
parents; a total of 41 children displayed improved speech and language.

The Programme encourages “distance measured” tools. Some projects are now measuring
progress at three month intervention to see if families have sustained their learning and or
changes from the previous intervention packages. Increased take up of provision and
engagement has continued to increase with many families progressing from that initial
engagement in the home and or community to engaging more with schools.

A total of 51 young people and parents were sign posted to “back to work initiatives”, and
there have been six parents and young people who have found employment as a result of the
Programme provision; 44 became active volunteers and some of the new and expectant
parents have attained GCSE'’s.

Referrals to the SFC model have increased (243) over the last year and a range of packages
were provided for issues ranging from the re-engagement of children and young people in
school and full time education, family engagement, parenting support as well as health and
social related needs for families.

Parents who have participated in the Parenting programmes and individual family support
provided have valued the provision with a total of 96 parents reported an improved
relationship with their child and 83 reported improved parenting capacity. The Disability
element of the Programme has further streamlined its work under the ISCAN (Integrated
Services for Children with Disabilities) model, and 126 children progressed to attend universal
provision after intervention without any additional support.

As stated in 4.3.1, all projects work collaboratively with the Communities First Teams. From
1% April 2012 Communities First was renewed as a Community Focused Tackling Poverty
Programme.

The programme continues to have a geographical focus, concentrating on the most deprived
communities in Wales, but there is now increased focus on ensuring the most vulnerable
individuals, families and groups in those communities are supported. There is a clear
expectation that the programme’s resources will be devoted primarily to those most in need.
In some cases this will include people living outside CF boundaries who can properly benefit
from specific projects or activities supported by the programme.

The programme is based on 52 Clusters (groups of Lower Supper Output Areas) across
Wales, identified through the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation. Within Caerphilly there are
four clusters:

Caerphilly Basin

Mid Valleys East

Mid Valleys West
Upper Rhymney Valley

The overall aim of the programme is to tackle and reduce poverty in the most deprived
communities. As such a new Outcomes Framework focused on three themes has been

Page 14



4.4.4

445

446

447

4438

449

4410

4.5

451

452

453

developed. This is currently being re-aligned by Welsh Government with those of the Families
First and Flying Start programmes to develop a Collaborative Framework for the three key anti
poverty programmes.

The scope of the Communities First programme is wider than that of Flying Start and Families
First, CF being a ‘cradle to grave’ provision with delivery broader than children, young people
and families. It's also aimed at addressing both the cause and effect of poverty. Throughout
the first year of delivery in 2013/14 a huge range of projects have been developed and carried
out across the Communities First themes of Prosperous, Learning and Healthier
Communities. In total the programme delivered 157 projects engaging with 3,143 individuals
over this period.

The following projects whilst funded by Communities First are a collaboration between
Communities First, the Youth Service and Schools.

The Youth Participation project engages and supports children and young people who are
hardest to reach to participate in groups throughout the borough, developing opportunities for
accreditation and skills development as well as having a view on the services they receive.
This includes the Junior forum, Junior PACT's and the Youth Forum.

Children's University supports children and young people from CF areas in out of school
activities in cultural, learning and sporting events to increase aspirations and encourage
young people to reach their full potential. Students gain specified 'credits' for approved out of
school activities to demonstrate achievement against pre-determined targets to demonstrate
commitment to learning.

Family Transition works closely with the Families First, Family Engagement project to develop
activities tailor made to the needs of the family identified through both the Family Engagement
and Families Together project. The sessions aim to provide families with the support and
information they require to both access specialised services, volunteering and training for
employment. Promoting positive, personal development, confidence building, health and well
being advice.

Communities First delivers Parent Learning **what learning**? E.g. OCN sexual health, child
psychology, for the Parent Network groups funded by Families First and Flying Start. This
provides accredited training to the parent groups in an area of their choice. Communities First
also provides health support and activities to the groups.

CF also provides front line support for the Caerphilly Passport Programme, resulting in over
50% of participants from CF areas.

The statutory Youth Service in Caerphilly currently engages over 7,000 young people
predominantly between the ages of 10 to 19 which is equivalent to 20% of the youth
population which is amongst the highest engagement level of local authorities in Wales.

Youth provision is managed and delivered by 31 full-time and 200 part-time staff, operating in
up to 100 different locations, 28 of which are premises that house 10 youth centres of
excellence and 18 satellite clubs.

The current core budget is £1,588,000 and has a focus on providing universal provision. This
budget is then innovatively matched by a range of grants that total to £1,225,681. The grants
include Community First, Family First and Welsh Government which then enable the Service
to develop targeted youth work.

One of the priorities for Service development is increasing the number of young people
securing local and national accreditations. In 2012/13 the number of young people achieving
national accreditations was 70, and in 2013/14 this increased to 399. This highlights the
percentage of young people engaged by the Youth Service achieving a national accredited
outcome increased from 1% to 5%. For local accreditations over the same period the number

Page 15



454

455

456

457

458

5.1

5.2

of young people achieving moved from 628 to 2331, again this highlights the percentage of
young people engaged achieving a local accreditation has increased from 7% to 29%.

To facilitate collaboration, the coordinators of all Programmes meet formally, along with
Supporting People. Currently the group complete a mapping exercise of service delivery
across the three Programmes, the Youth Service and also Supporting People. It is envisaged
this will enable the consideration of further collaborative working, and opportunities to
maximise resources and develop new opportunities.

An innovative programme is due to commence in September 2014. A joint initiative between
Communities First, the Youth service and Schools has successfully secured funding from
Communities First to match the Pupil Deprivation Grant of four secondary schools in the
borough. The project aims to develop an early intervention process to support young people
who are eligible for free school meals to overcome the barriers to learning and realise their
potential to improve educational outcomes and help to prevent young people from becoming
NEET. Increase parent/carers involvement in their child’s education to improve pupil
attainment and raise aspirations and Increase participation in school and community life to
support the holistic needs of the family.

Four youth workers will provide one to one support for vulnerable young people at risk of
disengagement. In addition, Four Family Link Workers will support parents to access
appropriate services to assist them to overcome barriers to participation in their child's
education. A Parent Forum Development Worker will establish a forum to consult parents on
issues that effect their child's education as well as facilitating learning opportunities for
parents. Dedicated classroom space has been provided by each school and refurbished
using Community Regeneration budgets

All programmes detailed in the report have begun to have an impact on vulnerable groups of
learners within the borough. Evaluation of how we work together to ensure the maximum
effect is a constant feature. Officers work together in an open, collaborative climate and
debate fully how strategies should develop and identify aspects of work which need to
change. Full evaluation of the impact on learners is critical and the deployment of resources
is directed by this. Some programmes are less embedded than others and, therefore, require
longer for delivery before the full impact can be assessed. The interlinking of these
programmes and streamlining of bids for funding have had a positive effect on how needs are
targeted and the outcomes for vulnerable children and young people have undoubtedly begun
to improve. This is further demonstrated by the improvements seen in the performance data
for 2014.

In addition to all the strategies implemented to date, the priority to improve educational
attainment for all learners remains. Despite a continued rise in attainment in all indicators,
removing barriers to learning for vulnerable pupils is an ongoing challenge. It is imperative
that all partners continue to work in a focused way to ensure the best outcomes and value for
money.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

The Flying Start programme monitors demand for Welsh medium provision in order to plan
and be able to offer sufficient provision through the Cylchoedd Meithrin non-maintained
contracted settings. Contracted settings have sufficient places to meet the current demands
but this is continuously kept under review. All childcare and family support provision must be
sufficient, appropriate and accessible for children with additional needs, as well as community
based to be accessible to the families in the new local Flying Start areas.

Many individuals and groups who fall under the protected characteristics and wider issues
covered by the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan, are often affected to a greater extent by

poverty and the related causes; therefore, Communities First will have positive impact on

those individuals and groups.

Page 16



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

There are Equalities implications to options listed in Section 4 that must be recognised in
order for proper consideration of the options to be made. It is likely that despite these issues,
difficult decision will have to be made due to the current need to make such significant
savings, however these implications must be recognised and understood as part of the
process.

Any reduction in provision will potentially have a greater risk for those young people in
minority groups in the community as service reductions could potentially increase their sense
of isolation and vulnerability, by reducing their ability to interact with young people from
different backgrounds.

Any wider consultation on service reductions will have to be made in line with the Council’s
approved Public Engagement Strategy and the guidance in the Equalities Consultation and
Monitoring document to ensure that the views of those potentially affected are taken into
account in the decision-making process.

The Youth Service demonstrates its contribution to the Council’s Strategic Equality Objectives
through targets, consultation and monitoring in the Youth Service Strategy, the Directorate’s
Service Improvement Plans and information provided for inclusion in the annual monitoring
and improvement reports for Equalities and Welsh language to the relevant Commissions.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Currently there are no direct financial implications as the 3 Programmes are Welsh
Government funded as part of the national Strategy to tackle poverty;

a) Flying Start (£4.78m revenue and £0.8m capital 2014-15),

b) Families First (£3.1m),

¢) Communities First (£3.8m).

However, as with all externally funded schemes there is a risk that should the grant cease
there could be the potential for staffing losses.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personnel implications within this report. All consultation comments have been
included.

CONSULTATIONS

The views of all consultees listed have been incorporated in this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee are requested to note the content of
this report and progress made.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To keep Members updated with the progress of vulnerable learners and how services work
together to support them and their families.

Page 17



1. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Children and Families Measure (Wales) 2010.

Author:
Consultees:

Appendices:
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3

2 Local Government Measure 2009
11.3 Education Act

Keri Cole, Manager, Learning, Education and Inclusion

Clir Ken James - Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Planning

Clir Rhiannon Passmore - Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning
Pauline Elliott - Head of Regeneration and Planning

David Thomas — Equalities and Welsh Language Policy Officer

Mike Lewis — Accountant, Education Finance

Directorate Senior Management Team

Corporate Management Team

Flying Start programme annual summary report 2013-14
Families First Marketing Cards
Communities First — Fynnon Data Extracts

Page 18



Flying Start programme annual summary report 2013-14
The Caerphilly Flying Start programme offers the 4 core entitlements in all areas:

Enhanced Health Visiting provision

Parenting programmes and individual family support
Early Language Development

Funded Childcare place for 2-3 year olds

Flying Start original areas pre-expansion (Wave 1) are:

Upper Rhymney
Lower Rhymney
Abertysswg
Fochriw
Phillipstown

Part of Bargoed
Hengoed

Lansbury / St James
Graig y Rhacca
Pantside

Wave 2 expansion areas are:

Penyrheol 4 - Trecennydd

Penyrheol 8 - Penyrheol

Argoed 1 - Markham

Crumlin 3 - Trinant

Risca East 2 - Ty Sign

Bedwas Trethomas Machen 2 — Trethomas

Aber Valley 3 — part of Sengennydd / Abertridwr area
Pengam 2 — Fairview

Cefn Forest 2 — part of Cefn Forest

There is a further planned expansion in 2015/16 (Wave 3):

St Cattwg 1 — Gelligaer

St Cattwg 5 — Penybryn / Gelligaer

Pontllanfraith 5 — part of the Bryn

Aber Valley 3 — Sengennydd

Blackwood 2 — part of Blackwood Primary areas (Apollo / Chartist Way area)
Pontllanfraith 2 — Penllwyn

Morgan Jones 2 — Churchill Park

Page 19

Appendix 1



CHILDCARE

In Caerphilly County Borough we have a mixture of settings from maintained CCBC and non-maintained
settings in both Welsh medium Cylchoedd and English medium playgroups. In Autumn 2012 the tender
process was completed to develop a framework for childcare places in the non-maintained sector and to
establish gaps in provision needing development of additional CCBC Flying Start childcare provision. There are
sufficient childcare places in existing areas in both Welsh and English medium provision to meet current
demands. During 2013-14 a further 4 non-maintained settings are offering Flying Start childcare places, taking
the total up to 8 english and welsh medium non-maintained settings across 6 of the expansion areas during
2013-14.

32% of our Flying Start setting leaders, across the maintained CCBC and non-maintained settings, in existing
and expansion areas are qualified to level 5, the remaining 13 are working towards Level 5 with the intention
of completing by the end of 2014/15. This has reduced from previous years due to expansion and more than
doubling the number of settings involved in delivery of childcare (12 increased to 28) as well as qualified staff
gaining promotions and needing to train new staff Leaders in the existing settings.

Attendance

The average attendance for Flying Start Childcare in the existing areas is 77%, a 6% increase on last year’s
results. The attendance in the expansion areas is 80%.

During 2013-14, 70% of children entitled to Flying Start attended 75% or more of sessions offered.

The childcare attendance in our existing areas has increased gradually over the past 3 years. The average
attendance (excluding August) in 2011-12 was 70%, it increased by 1% during 2012-13 and increased again
this year to 77%. We believe this is a result of our childcare settings engaging with the local community and
establishing excellent links with other agencies as well as close working relationships with Flying Start Health
Visitors.

Flying Start Childcare
Attendance by Month
90%
80% :
70% g
So% 11N
20% I I I_ M2011-12
30‘? I I I} i 2012-13
20%
10% 1118 H2013-14
0% 1118
Flying Start Childcare
Attendance by Month
100%
80%
60%
40% M Existing areas
20% I Expansion areas
0%
D X <
FTLREREN




Expansion

During expansion 126 children have accessed the Flying Start Childcare in 8 non-maintained settings across 6
of the expansion areas during 2013-14. Of which, 65% access English medium childcare, whilst the remaining
35% access the childcare through the medium of Welsh.

A total number of 15,498 sessions have been delivered in the expansion areas during 2013-14, of those 12,846
have been attended, which equates to 83% attendance.

Parent/carer views
209 Childcare Questionnaires were completed during 2013-14; exactly the same number as 2012-13. The
results show that improvements have been made across all areas:
» 97% of parents/carers rate the quality of staff at the Flying Start Childcare setting as “excellent”, with
the remaining 3% rating them as “good”
> 92% of parents/carers rate the quality of activities at the Flying Start Childcare setting as “excellent”,
with the remaining 17% rating them as “good”
» 94% of parents/carers rate the overall quality of the Flying Start Childcare setting as “excellent”, with
the remaining 6% rating them as “good”
» 80% of parents/carers rate the level of involvement in the Flying Start Childcare setting as “excellent”
> 77% of parents “strongly agree” and 20% “agree” that their child’s speech has improved as a result of
attending Flying Start Childcare
» 55% of parents “strongly agree” and 32% “agree” that their child’s behaviour has improved as a result
of attending Flying Start Childcare
» 81% of parents “strongly agree” and 17% “agree” that their child’s social skills has improved as a result
of attending Flying Start Childcare
» 82% of parents “strongly agree” and 16% “agree” that their child’s confidence has improved as a
result of attending Flying Start Childcare

Quality

The quality within the childcare settings has been monitored by the Advisory Teachers through the
administration of the Infant/Toddler Environment Rating Scale (ITERS), a tool containing a wide range of
statements or ‘indicators’ with which to evaluate the quality of the early years environment in its
broadest sense. By highlighting the areas needing development, setting staff along with their Advisor, put an
action plan in place in order to improve quality and work on the highlighted areas in a measurable time.
Currently, it is difficult to monitor the quality in the non-maintained settings due to the fact that they offer
both Flying Start and Early Years Education. In settings where they offer EY Education, the Foundation Phase
Advisors carry out the Early Childhood Environment Rating Scale (ECERS) and so makes it difficult for Flying
Start Advisors to monitor quality via the ITERS. This is something that we are currently working on and plan to
implement the ITERS in all non-maintained setting by 2017.

Transition

It is recognized that transition can be stressful for children and adults and can have a far-reaching impact on
children’s emotional well-being and academic achievements. It is recommended therefore that transition be
made a priority in all early years’ settings. We aim to develop close and effective links between home and
nursery to ensure we provide a smooth transfer from “Flying Start childcare to Foundation phase.” We also
aim to ensure relevant information is transferred to ensure continuity in each child’s learning and
development via the My Story transition document that each child has in readiness for their transition to
school. We what to ensure the children and parents/carers are actively involved in the process of transition
and their perceptions about transition are explored and valued. We work closely with the local schools to
ensure that transition is smooth and we welcome suggestions on how to improve transition via a
questionnaire after every term's transition. This question found that 100% Nursery teachers reporting good
transition of children from flying start settings into Nursery provision. We also received positive feedback
regarding transition from Head Teachers:

“Things are working well between our setting and flying start. No improvements to suggest”

“Children who attend flying start tend to settle much better, they also have visits prior to starting in our school,
good links exist. Our staff also visit flying start during the term before the children start”

HEALTH

Achievements

Page 21



We have successfully embedded the Flying Start health visiting enhanced Programme in 18 Flying Start areas
in Caerphilly during 2013-14 bringing on some areas early to ensure continuity of provision and meet the
expected cap number required.

The Flying Start health team have secured funding from Families First in 2013-14 to widen the delivery by
Health Outreach Team to facilitate health groups, such as HENRY and Chatterbox, in non Flying Start areas
following referrals.

The Flying Start health team are developing significant links with midwifery. We are now being informed of all
breastfeeding mothers in Flying Start areas on discharge, which has allowed the health team to provide
support to these mothers resulting in the continuation and improvement of breastfeeding rates for Flying
Start families. Relationships have also been established in ante-natal groups with the Caerphilly borough
where the Flying Start health team have linked the antenatal groups with Community First programmes for
wider support, and this is continuing to develop with generic midwifery.

We have has a significant number of newly qualified health visitors start this year and so have realigned teams
with some of the existing experienced health visitors taking on new areas, which have been very challenging,
and the newly qualified going into Flying Start cluster teams for support. The team has moved into three
cluster areas with team leaders who are non caseload carrying 1 day per week to enable supervision and
support to newly qualified and experienced team members. This has enabled greater accountability for
paperwork and monitoring of submitted data and moving forward will resolve some of the data issues that
have arisen in 2013-14.

Schedule of Growing Skills Il (SGS2)

Each child who participates in the Flying Start programme is entitled to have a developmental assessment of
their skills at ages 2 and 3, which in addition to identifying any strengths and possible developmental delays,
also provides a measure of progress between set periods. A standardised Welsh Government-approved
developmental assessment tool, called the Schedule of Growing Skills Il (SGS2) was used for these assessments.

The assessments were conducted by a trained Flying Start professional, as close to a child’s an and 3rd

birthdays as possible. The SGS2 assesses a child’s performance across 7 skill areas:
» Locomotor skills
e Manipulative skills
= Visual skills
e Hearing and Language skills
= Speech and Language skills
= Interactive Social skills
e Self-care Social skills.

A child’s score on each skill area was placed into one of 3 groups, depending upon their performance:
= Scores that ‘met or exceeded’ developmental milestones
e Scores ‘within one age band’ of developmental milestones (including those who ‘met or exceeded’
developmental milestones
» Scores ‘more than one age band below’ developmental milestones.

The data on which analyses for this report are based are Flying Start children’s scores on the SGS2 tool at 2 and
3 years. These data have been collected for monitoring purposes for the Flying Start programme. Data have
been used for two cohorts of children:

e 2-year-olds assessed in 2011/2012

e 3-year-olds assessed in 2012/2013

A report conducted by GL Assessments compares the performance of Caerphilly’s Flying Start children to the
performance of all usable Flying Start data in Wales, including the Flying Start Programme for Government
Indicator. It also explores the performance of Caerphilly’s children on individual skill areas compared to the
programme average.

In the ‘Building Resilient Communities: Taking Forward the Tackling Poverty Action Plan’, the Welsh
Government has also set a target for the Flying Start programme: to increase the proportion of 3-year-olds

Page 22



receiving Flying Start services that have achieved or exceeded their developmental milestones by 5 percentage
points from 55% to 60% by 2016.

There is currently only a 1% negative difference between Caerphilly’s results and the Tackling Poverty target.

62% -
60%
60% - 59%
58% -
56% -
54% 54%
54% -
52%
52% -
50% -
48% T T T T 1
% of Caerphilly 2 % of Flying Start 2 % of Caerphilly 3 % of Flying Start 3  Tackling Poverty
year-olds who met year-olds who met year-olds who met year-olds who met target by 2016: %
or exceeded the  orexceeded the orexceededthe  orexceededthe of 3 year olds who
developmental developmental developmental developmental meet or exceed the
milestones milestones milestones milestones developmental
milestones

Figure 1: Percentage of Caerphilly Flying Start Children meeting or exceeding developmental milestones in all 7
skill areas at both 2 and 3 years, compared with the Flying Start average and Tackling Poverty target.

The summary of children 'within one age band’ of developmental milestones highlights:

At 2 years, the children in this category were performing:
= Slightly above the Flying Start average in 4 skill areas: Locomotor, Hearing & Language, Speech &
Language and Interactive Social skills.

< Inline with the Flying Start average in 2 skill areas: Manipulative and Self-care Social skills.
< Slightly below the Flying Start average in 1 skill area: Visual skills. At 3 years, the children in

At 3 years, the children in this category were performing:
e Above the Flying Start average in 3 skill areas: Locomotor, Manipulative and Self-care Social skills.
< Inline with the Flying Start average in 2 skill areas: Hearing & Language skills and Interactive Social
skills.

= Slightly below the Flying Start average in 2 skill areas: Visual and Speech & Language skills.

Page 23



5%
4%
4%
3%
3%
2%
2%
1% 1% 1% 1% 2 years
1% . —
3 years
0% 0% 0% 0%
0% ] T T | 1 ] —
2 2 i : i z z
E = = 2 3 3 &
-1% 9 o 5 g g g
— w— S
= 5 1% 3 1% K
E 5 & 5 T
& 5 i v
_2?/ = O e
: 2% g a
s 1 (73]
-3%

Figure 2: Percentage differences between the Caerphilly Flying Start children who were ‘within one age
band’ of developmental milestones at 2 and 3 years compared with the Flying Start averages.

According to the Analysis and Interpretation of Data for the Flying Start Programme 2011-13 conducted by GL
Assessments summarizes that in terms of national indicators, the Caerphilly Flying Start programme is showing
a good performance (particularly in Self-care Social skills) with 59% of children meeting or exceeding their
developmental milestones in all 7 skill areas at 3 years. This compares positively with the Flying Start average of
52% and falls just below the Tackling Poverty target of 60%.

Areas for development
During 2014-15 Pre and post evaluation tools will be developed for bespoke health packages and groups to
prove impact

PARENTING PROGRAMMES AND INDIVIDUAL FAMILY SUPPORT

Family Support

Within Caerphilly we strive to ensure that all families that need family support can access it. This is facilitated
through excellent partnerships with Families First and Communities First. We also work directly with the TAF
co-ordination and our Flying Start Family Support Coordinator facilitates fortnightly multi-agency referral
meetings where family support referrals are assessed and allocated to appropriate services for the funding
streams, including Flying Start Parenting support and programmes. We link with statutory services in order to
ensure partnership working and ensure families access the correct funding stream and that their needs are
addressed as well as to reduce duplication.

Parenting Programmes

20 Parent Nurture programmes were facilitated by Flying Start through Caerphilly Borough during 2013-14, an
increase of 8 since 2012-13. Of which, 7 where facilitated in expansion areas.

125 families (140 parents) enrolled on the 20 PNP courses, of which 90 (72%) families completed 50% of the
programme, and 74 (59%) completed 75% or more. The overall percentage of parent completing parenting

Page 24



programmes has increased this year by 10%, which we see as great achievement, although this is an ongoing
target area.

Assessments

The following TOPSE results reflect assessments from all 20 PNP facilitated throughout Caerphilly Borough
during 2013-14. 91% of Flying Start families completing the parenting programmes showed improved TOPSE
results.

Caerphilly Parenting Programme
Flying Start
TOPSE total Scores 2013 - 2014

450 403 420 M Average Scores
400 for TOPSE 1
350 1 M Average Scores
300 - for TOPSE 2
250 - M Average Scores
200 - for TOPSE 3
150 -
100 -
50 -
0 .

TOTAL
The average score from TOPSE 1 assessments was 347, TOPSE 2 average was 403 and for the TOPSE 3
assessment the average score was 420. Therefore an average increase in score from TOPSE 1 to TOPSE 2 was
59, and from TOPSE 2 to TOPSE 3 was 17.

TOPSE 3 is completed 3 months post intervention and shows if the intervention had a lasting affect on
behaviour changes in the home.

Caerphilly Parenting Programme
Flying Start
TOPSE caterory Scores 2013 - 2014

M Average
Scores for

TOPSE 1
M Average

Scores for

TOPSE 2
M Average

Scores for
TOPSE 3

Page 25



Caerphilly Parenting Programme
Flying Start
TOPSE catergory Scores 2013 - 2014

Emotion &
Affection

=— Average Scores
- Play & Enjoyment for TOPSE 1

== Average Scores
Empathy & for TOPSE 2
Understanding

Average Scores
for TOPSE 3

Discipline &
Boundaries

Parent Feedback

End of Parenting Course Questionnaire results from the 20 Flying Start Parenting Programmes facilitated
throughout Caerphilly Borough during 2013-14. The average scores are calculated from 91 End of Parenting
Course Questionnaires completed.

» 60% of parents/carers rate the quality of the information provided in the lead up to attending the
parenting course as “excellent”, and 26% rating it as “good”

» 89% of parents felt that their needs had been addressed by attending the parenting course, 10% felt
that their needs had been partly addressed

» 94% of Flying Start families would recommend the parenting programme they attended

Comments received from parents:

“This course has helped me to understand how my children maybe feeling a lot more”

“I feel more confident to be more consistent”

“really enjoyed the programme, learned a lot of different strategies”

“I have become more patient with my children. | offer a more positive attitude”

“I feel | am able to deal with my children’s behaviour in a calm manner”

“I'listen more to my children more and take their emotions into consideration”

“I am changing as | am more calm when the children are misbehaving and | can talk to them rather than
shouting”

“my family is becoming more positive and less negative”

“| feel that | can be a better parent and understand my children”

“I feel I am calmer when dealing with my child’s behaviour”

“I am becoming more confident and learning to talk more about my feelings”

“l am able to remain calm in stressful situations and discipline appropriately”

“we are becoming closer as a family”

EARLY LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT

Pop in & Play

Flying Start Early Language Development is delivered through Pop in and Play sessions, which are a continuous
programme of courses delivered weekly term time only based on LAP / PEEP and delivered using a scheme

Page 26




based on a book with story sack per half term. This had successful engagement in each area, as well as
developing the parental understanding of how to develop good communication skills with their child.

The graph below highlights that over the past year the number of children and parents engaged in Pop in &
Play sessions in existing areas has increased since the previous year by 18% and 30% respectively.

Flying Start (existing areas)
Pop in & Play Attendance
350
300 296
300
250
H2010-11
200
H2011-12
150 i 2012-13
100 H2013-14
50
0
Total Number of Children Total Number of Parents

This support has been extended to expansion areas, where a support worker has been employed to support
existing parent and toddler groups to take on the Pop in & Play sessions, supporting families to become
volunteers. This is working particularly well in the Trinant and Trecenydd areas where 33 families have been
supported to engage in the Pop in & Play sessions. Additionally, the post holder is a former Flying Start parent
who completed a case Study last year about engagement in Flying Start services and in particular the impact
of the Pop in & Play sessions on her children’s development.

We have developed an outcome star that measures the improvement in outcomes from the participant’s
perception. During 2013-14, 90% of Flying Start families demonstrated an improved score across all areas of
the ‘Outcome star’.

The pop in and play although portrayed as drop in sessions are primarily based around a theme per term and
as such tend to run more as structured informal groups supporting speech and language development using
the principles of PEEP.

Comments from parents when asked how Pop in and Play has made a difference to their child:

“He is more confident around other children”

“He is the only small child in the family, so with adults constantly, he was very quiet and shy and stayed with
mum all the time, now he is outgoing and interacts with others”

“Helped build confidence, learning to share, learning new songs, helping to socialise”

“Yes it has made a massive difference in her as she is a lot more confident when playing with other children,
as she was very shy when we first attended. She sings, she dances she shares her toys which in the beginning
we found it very hard for her, but she has come on so well”

Yes he loves it, he is interacting more, he loves the songs and he is learning to share”

Comments from parents when asked how Pop in and Play has made a difference to their them as a parent:

“I' have a better bond with my son”

Page 27



“As | have not lived in the area for nearly 20yrs did not have a social circle, it has been lovely to meet other
mums and staff”

“Meeting other mothers and groups breaks the day up and makes new friends”

“Happy and confident as a parent, enjoy watching our children play together”

“Gives myself and my child a chance to socialise together”

“Meeting other parents has been good, talking about day to day problems e.g. how to deal with tantrums”
“Its good to share experiences with others”

Comments from parents when asked how Pop in and Play has made a difference to the things they did
together:

“The books and activity packs are great to continue the theme from playgroup into the home”

“I haven’t got a lot of creative skills so have picked up a lot of things and crafts”

“Yes we do a lot more activities together, we have brought lots of puzzles which she loves to do. Also she
hasn’t had a bottle for a couple of weeks she now has a cup or beaker because she has seen other children in
Pop in and Play with theirs and that’s a massive achievement for her”

“It gives us something fun to do together”
“We play a lot more together”
“More fun activities to take home and enjoy”

Comments from parents when asked what they like about their Pop in and Play group:

“They are very friendly, relaxed. Good for child socialising and parents”
“Everyone is so friendly and helpful”

“Love it all, a nice experience for us all”

“It friendly, easy going with flexible structure. Play leaders are helpful”

“I like everything about our group, lovely people. | like to see the children being so happy together, also seeing
my child being so happy”

“The playworkers are really nice, | also like to watch my child play with other children of around the same age”

Any other comments:

“We both enjoy the sessions and look forward to a Thursday afternoon. By far the best playgroup in the area”

Speech and Language Toolkit

Caerphilly Flying Start have employed the use of the Wellcomm screening tool, a speech and language toolkit,
offering screening and intervention tools for children in the early years. The figures produced highlighted that
the need was not in the Flying Start areas that we first anticipated. Therefore, it highlighted areas that were in
highest need of resources, resulting in the Health Outreach team facilitating chatterbox sessions where pre
and post assessment are completed.

Super Shellby

Additional support in Early Language Development is through the Super Shellby project which supports
identified children and families with language delays in the childcare environment. Super Shellby offers
language based workshops (puppets etc) to develop parental skills in supporting their child’s language
development. They also deliver speech and language activities in the setting with identified children and then
support their transition into nursery to ensure they consolidate the language and communication skills. The

Page 28



children have play plans and specific activities for them in the setting and for parents to do at home with their
child to support their learning. This intensive support has improved speech and language in the settings as a
whole, and supported children to access the curriculum as well as improved transition links with the school
nursery when they turn 3years.

Flying Start setting staff are now working from language plans for children with recognised speech and
language difficulties using targets set by the Flying Start Speech and Language Therapist. Stronger links have
also been forged between Flying Start and the ISCAN manager and staff teams are becoming more confident
in the early identification of additional needs of children in their settings. Every Flying Start childcare setting
received full training in Teacher Talking recently and they complete the relevant paperwork for the children
highlighted as needing to be 'Teacher Talking screened' with the assistance and input of their setting's Super
Shell-by teaching assistant.

Unique achievements through the Caerphilly Flying Start programme during 2013-14

We have provided SENCO training for all Flying Start Childcare staff, which has resulted in staff becoming more
confident in the early identification of additional needs of children in their settings as well being clear on the
communication pathway and exchange of information through transition to school.

Strong links have developed between Flying Start and the ISCAN service, a TAF for children with disabilities.
Flying Start childcare staff teams are becoming more confident in the early identification of additional needs
of children in their settings. The ISCAN team work closely with the Flying Start childcare settings to coordinate
services, prevent duplication; and provides support to the staff where necessary.

We have employed a Flying Start Safeguarding Compliance Officer whose role is to liase, support settings and
identify those children engaged in the Flying Start programme who are known to Social Services. A key aspect
of the role is developing robust safeguarding systems are implemented, thereby ensuring paperwork is shared
appropriately within the programme and on transition to school, and that setting staff are involved in multi-
agency and core groups. This role also includes training childcare staff on recording and disclosure and
provides support to settings with safeguarding files as well as reviewing policies, and ensuring robust tracking
and information sharing systems are in place.

ALIGNMENT - Tackling Poverty

Throughout strategic programme planning and frontline delivery there are significant links with the other
main tackling poverty programmes (Families First and Communities First).

Within Caerphilly we strive to ensure that all families’ needs are met. Therefore by employing partnership and
multi-agency working we can ensure that families can access the services they need at the appropriate time.
We have been part of the programme collaboration group where the strategic leads from Flying Start, Families
First, Communities First, Supporting People and the Youth Service, look at delivery to prevent duplication and
maximise collaborate working between programmes. We also link with statutory services in order to ensure
partnership working and ensure families access correct funding and that their needs are addressed as well as
reduce duplication.

Within Caerphilly we have jointly commissioned the Flying Start Parenting programmes delivery element with
Families First. This process has aided partnership working, reduced duplication and maximised resources. We
have also worked closely with Families First and in particular the Parenting Programme element, to track
families on a central database to avoid duplication and allow for data sharing.

Flying Start Caerphilly have developed an integrated database that holds both Flying Start and Families First
data, in order to track families longer term and across all services to avoid duplication and improve delivery of
services for families. This may be expanded if suitable in the future to include Communities First.

The three programme managers meet monthly along with managers from Youth and Supporting People to
ensure maximisation of programme collaboration, prevent duplication and realise future opportunities to
collaborate. There have also been awareness sessions for programme delivery teams on the different
programmes for enabling frontline staff networking and collaboration. We organise many events / activities
together to enable transition for families on exit of the Flying Start programme.

Statistical release

The Welsh Government publishes a statistical release for Flying Start annually each summer. The second
annual report has recently been published and can be found via the link below. The data helps to shape
programme development and delivery, although direct comparison between 2012-13 and 2013-14 data may
not be relevant as the programme was in the main expansion phase.
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/flying-start/?lang=en

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Appendix 2

&l oY

The Inclusion

and Support
project offers
support for children
and young people
who are living with
domestic abuse

Liz and her children were
unknowingly living with

psychological abuse and Liz knew
that her children needed support.

Liz had a turbulent relationship with her Her son, Ryan was then supported
partner, but never fully realised the true one to one by the domestic abuse
extent of what was going on. Having been  children’s worker.

to the project Relate, Liz was told that
what she was suffering with was domestic
abuse. Liz's partner had never physically
hurt her; however, what he was putting
her through was emotional abuse.

Ryan suffered from the effects of living
with domestic abuse; he was untrusting
and had no confidence. He was also very
worried about his mother and particularly
his baby brother, Jacob.

“He would play mind games and was
spiteful, taking things special away from
the children. The children would never
stay with him. Services do not understand
psychological abuse.”

“He was exceptionally worried about
Jacob, refuses to have a room on his
own. He took on the role of worrying” his
mother explained.

Ryan also had difficulties in school; having
problems with friendship groups and no
confidence to answer in class, afraid of
being shot down. He would spend time

at his one to one sessions doing age
appropriate activities and normal things
he would associate with fun. He would
draw pictures, do puzzles and make
jokes, but all while supporting him to

about the urgency of the situation and .
unpzeggaedsqs home environment.
collected details.

Liz found out that her local Women’s Aid
was Llamau and she called them up and
explained the situation to see if there was
a children’s worker. She then self- referred
her family to the service, as her problems
had not been identified by any agency.

Liz was then contacted by the Inclusion
and Support Project. They asked questions

Inclusion and Support - Domestic Abuse strand



“Some little things were the end of the world
to him. He was in tears asking, when am |
going to see my counsellor” Liz explained.

Ryan would talk about it and when it was
difficult he had activities to distract him. He
could touch back in to bits that made him
uncomfortable; a flexible way of going at his
pace.

“Ryan felt he was in a safe environment,

he was quite anxious but a lot of time was
taken explaining to him what was going to
happen.”

The project helped Ryan calm down and
helped him see what was appropriate,
particularly in his heightened concern for his
brother. He also now knows that he is not a
personal target when he is asked to put his
hand down in class. Ryan has also started
trusting people; he has made new friends
and accepts his mother’s new partner, who
he used to challenge.

Coming to the end of his support, his mother
explained that he still relies on what he did
with the project, and is very aware that if he
wanted to go back at a later date he could.
“He’s getting better and better and has lost
the weight he always had on his shoulder to
always need to look after Jacob.”

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk
Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerg ni'yiav~iliesfirst

“He doesn't feel like he’s on his own and this
safety net is so important.”

Seeing how much more comfortable Ryan
is after the support, his sister is now being
supported. Though her coping mechanisms
are different, they both know that they are
not alone.

Liz feels that without the support of the
domestic abuse team in the Inclusion and
Support project, her children would be very
different.“He’s nearly cocky again, he was
unrecognisable.”

Funded by
Welsh Government

‘gi Ariennir gan
/( ‘;’? Lywodraeth Cymru

A Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
7



they were young carers and

needed something to help them

‘be kids again’

When Lewis, 15 and Loughy, 14 become
involved with the Team Around the Family
project, neither of them had any idea

that they were young carers. They both
care for their mother, who suffers with
severe mental health and would often
skip school to make sure that she was safe.
Lewis would often have upset stomachs
and headaches as well as feeling anxious
about his mum’s health.

As young teenagers, both boys did not
socialise often after school, feeling that
being at home would be better for their
mum. Team Around the Family recognised
that they would benefit from additional
support and referred them to the Inclusion
and Support project, which provided
specialist support for young carers.

“Young carers host activities during
holidays so we can go out and have fun
and we won't panic about who we're
caring for. They also host the group

Lewis and Loughy had no idea that

The Inclusion

and Support

project offers
support for children
and young people
who are young carers

sessions; we go there and we see all
the other people that’s got the same
situations as us. We go there and we know
we're not different and we know that
there’s other people that’s in the same
situation so we don't have to panic as
much.” Lewis explained.

“We see other young carers, that gives us

a chance to socialise. It’s like a youth club,
you can play pool, they lay a table out with
food which is usually empty by the end of

the night! We can just have a chat with our
friends.”

The project allows the young carers to
relax in a safe environment where they
can take a break from responsibilities at
home.“It's given them the chance to be
kids again. Too many kids have to grow
up too quickly when they take on a caring
role and it’s not fair on them, so a big
thank you to the project”the boys’ father
explained.

age 33

Inclusion and Support - Young Carers



“I'd be excited to show her all the work

we'd done or the milestones we'd reached
because it was somebody that was showing
me how good | was. | can’t express what that
did for me personally.”

The project ignited in Hayley an active
interest in childhood development and play,
and the project opened that door for her.
Through the support, Hayley was able to
help create an Independent Education Plan
for Alex to help him in school. His bedtime
routine was also perfected.

“Everything has improved tenfold”, she
explained.”l can put him to bed and | know
he’s in bed. | started to look at it not as me
being a horrible mum but as giving him a
gift. That was a huge learning curve for me.”

Hayley admits that without the project, she
would be asking for respite by now. She was
wearing herself and Alex down and was
struggling to find joy or any normality.“That
was the great thing in retrospect; she wasn't
the crutch that | thought, she was really

holding up a mirror and showing me, leading

me to see it myself”

Hayley is now studying an English literature
degree and volunteering as a peer mentor,
leading to employment.

Page 34

“From her coming it was hard and her
leaving it was so much better, and it was in

a relatively small period of time - around

six months. | got to a point where | realised
quickly you can access help and to do it,
maybe had | gone any further | wouldn’t have
found help because | was so far gone. There
was an element of me that thought | was an
epic fail because | had to access somebody,
but it's the thing you should be most proud
of, to go and access support, so | hope other
people do it too because | know the fear and
the embarrassment.”

%ﬁ[f%.\g

Wars

Ariennir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru
Funded by

Welsh Government

CYNGOR B

A
LAEREHILLY

RDEISTREF

CAERFFILY
> 4



someone to make her feel
normal again.

Hayley was having difficulty with her
son who would never sleep through the
night. Alex, three years old, was also not
in education after having been asked

to leave nursery because he had been
aggressive. Hayley was exhausted and
struggled to stay calm when managing
Alex, which led to increased attention
seeking negative behaviours. Alex also
struggled with his speech.

“I wasn't maintaining the routine at home
because | was becoming depressed and
pre occupied. It got to the stage where

it would be the afternoon and neither of
us were dressed, it was so gradual that |
didn't see it happening, then | realised |
really, really need someone to talk to. | felt
completely alone” Hayley explained.

Hayley received support from the
Parenting Programme and Individual
Family Support project.“They were so
lovely and we started talking and they
said ‘this isn't about us judging you, this is

Hayley and her son had become
stuck in a cycle and just wanted

The Parenting
Programme and
Individual Support
engages with
parents and families
to support parenting
skills and capacity

about us seeing what you need from
us and if we can provide that for you,
so that felt a lot better because | was
expecting Social Services at the door.”

“My support worker came each week and
I'd make small changes each week, and |
would really look forward to our meetings.
The biggest help was having someone to
chat to” Hayley said.

“She taught me to pick my battles. | was
fighting everything and we had got to the
stage where there was no fun/”

The project taught Hayley various
techniques and skills that helped her to
look at things from a different perspective
and realise that it wasn't her failing as a
parent. Her support worker supported
Hayley to look at herself differently and
realise how much she did for Alex. She
also supported her in getting Alex back
into education, with the understanding

thqblag@%inaesthetic learner.




“You don't go into the first meeting and they
rip you apart, it is something that is done
gradually over time and you get to the
bottom of things. It's a very pleasant process
and it’s not something that is done there and
then. Each and every one of us had some
sort of support network put in place that had
benefited us.”

Even though Ceri required more support, lan
and the boys had no idea that they were all
suffering as a family. It brought to life that
they needed help desperately with school,
and that lan himself needed someone to talk
to.

Goals that were decided on together were
school attendance, housing and finance.
Since working with TAF, the boy’s attendance
has gone up tremendously and they have
relocated to a more suitable house. “This
house has been the key to helping with Ceri’s
recovery and helping us move forward as a
family.” Ceri now has a disabled ramp and a
garden in which she can enjoy her jewellery
making, something that she’s wanted to do
for many months.

The project also helped provide new school
uniform for the boys that helped because

they no longer felt isolated. “Silly things that
most people would look over but to us it
meant the world.”

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk
Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerp ni'yiav-iliesfirst

Both lan and Ceri received support from
other support networks that enabled them
to talk through their difficulties and have
emotional support, whereas the boys now
attend free-running lessons which has given
them their independence back.

The family, very positive, said that it was
“purely because of the support put in place
from TAF”

“Until you're actually sat there and they work
with you to find out what it is that you need
exactly, | just thought that we were trying to
help Ceri get better, and then you find out
that we've all got issues that we didn't even
know.”

“The help that we've had is tremendous and
| would hopefully wish that any family that
gets approached to join TAF to take it on
board because they will benefit from it

Funded by
Welsh Government

Ariennir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru

A Y
LAEREHILLY
CAERFFILY
7



lan and his family had buried their
heads, unaware that they were
struggling to cope with their

caring duties.

lan and his two sons act as carers to mum,
Ceri who suffers with severe mental health
problems. Due to her iliness, Ceri is unable
to be left on her own and her health
impacted the whole family; the boys
would often be unwell and would miss
school to be sure their mum was safe. The
family also struggled financially due to lan
missing work to care full time for his wife.

lan was called into school one day and
chatted to their Education Welfare Officer,
“she offered to put us forward to a support
network to give support to me and the
boys and that basically got the ball rolling.
Team Around the Family (TAF) got
involved and it snowballed from there.

All these support networks started falling
into place and things started changing for
us as a family.”

“Even though we were struggling we
didn’t think that we needed the support.
Until you're actually shown the support is

Team Around

the Family
co-ordinates

support for families
with a range of needs
during difficult times

there and you can benefit from it, you
just bury your head and just try and get
on with it”

A TAF Officer visited the family and talked
through some goals that would form their
action plan.“There was as much
responsibility on us as both parents and
service users; it gave us things to do as
well”The family also had group sessions
with all the support networks to air out
any targets that everyone needed to
achieve, “it made it good for us because
we could see where the support networks
were aiming for and also goals we needed
to achieve”

The family were always able to suggest
their ideas, often having the other Officers
picking up on it and saying ‘that’s a
brilliant idea, let’s do that’

Team Around the Family

Page 37



Having only been with the project for three
months, Emma and her family have already
seen changes in that time.”l think we've
sussed it with Ben. My support worker knows
how to push things, that’s what | like about
her”

The special thing about the Families First
project, Emma explained, is that the support
before was for herself, but this was for
everybody.

“The best part is having someone around to
talk to and they don't judge you, it’s nice to
get that extra advice. When | talk to her she’s
helping me with things.”

The project has focused on helping Emma
with her self- esteem and is taking her on

a confidence course. My support worker
praises me up all the time and says ‘you're so
different to the first time | met you.

She has gained confidence in being on her
own and supporting the children and has
come a long way in herself.

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk
Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerg ni'yiav-liesfirst

“I don't really care what people think since
I've met my support worker, it's my life.”

Emma is confident with working and plans
to go back as an apprentice and do her
business admin to level two and three, with
the hope of getting a job out of it.

Her journey with the help of the project has
left her in a place where she feels that life is
so much better.

“I wouldn't know what to do if she wasn't
here.l am happy. | am really, really happy
compared to a few months ago.”

Funded by
Welsh Government

Ariennir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru

A Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
7



get on, especially with her
confidence.

After splitting from her husband and with
two sons, aged two and six, Emma was
advised by the children’s school teacher
that she may need a bit of support.

Eldest son, Ben had some behaviour
problems and Emma often felt low,
suffering from anxiety attacks and
depression. Her confidence also suffered;
having been married for seven years,
being on her own was a big change.

The Supporting Family Change project
recognised that she needed that extra
support. Emma’s support worker wanted
to know what goals to set and what she
would like to do with her life.”l reeled a lot
off” Emma said.

Emma had previously been supported by
a different project and got used to having
some support. Emma explained “this

time it was different because the support
worker would phone and come round and
it's having someone to talk to about family

Emma had gone through a few
changes and was struggling to

The Supporting
Family Change
project provides
intense support for
families who receive
a lot of support from

and things, just understanding.”

Emma and the support worker did a lot
of chatting. Ben was a big concern for
Emma and has only just started using

the toilet with his learning difficulties.
“He’s trained now, that’s a big relief”
Emma stated that she wished she had the
project a couple of years back and when
talking about her support worker said, “if
| ever want her, she’s there. We do make
appointments but it’s flexible”

The project also helped Emma with Ben’s
behaviour and with his schooling, as Ben
attends school an hour away. Emma said
“I'm 31 and I'm going to bed at 7.30pm
every day!”

“Ben is totally different; he’s come out of
his shell a lot”

Her support worker assisted in getting the
boys into playgroup for two hours, which
Emma thou§ht was a good idea as it gives

heP2agek39well.

services

Supporting Family Change project



Andrew pieced together his life story and
through the Advocacy project wrote a

letter explaining his worries.“They were a
little bit more qualified to cope. The answer

| was giving him wasn’t good enough. |
couldn’t give him the answers and that made
him angry. Andrew’s dealing with a lot of
emotions and the things he’s been through
and the counselling is bringing things up” his
grandmother said.

Andrew was supported to manage

his frustration, hurt and anger more
appropriately and was able to talk and make
sense of the gaps in his life.”l think it's helped
him accept what's happened with his little
brother. It's definitely helped there because
that was a big major problem as to why he
was playing up.”

Andrew often asked his grandparents why
Charlie couldn’t live with them, and with
Sandra’s health this was difficult.”l think

he’s had more of those answers with the
counselling because he doesn’t seem to go
on about Charlie so much” Sandra said. “He
didn’t seem to grip it, but he obviously seems
to be accepting it”

A major help was Families First getting in
touch with the adoption team, and as a
result Andrew received a letter from Charlie
with answers to questions that he had been
asking.“He knows he can send letters and
cards via the letter box now, if only we'd
known this in the beginning.”

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk
Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerpiilyiazriliesfirst

Andrew always looked forward to the
sessions and liked his counsellor very much.

Now that Andrew is getting some closure

on Charlie, he is progressing and accepting
things better. Sandra admits that there’s still
so much they need to do and that they have
his behaviour to work on, but hopes that in
the near future there is more counselling for
Andrew. The family will also continue to have
Team Around the Family support.

“If he had the choice to keep going he would,
he’s benefiting from it. Anything that benefits
Andrew because he’s the most important
one in all of this. Obviously this support

has helped with the Charlie situation; it has
helped him understand more.”

Funded by
Welsh Government

Ariennir gan
‘?Kﬂ% ‘ Lywodraeth Cymru J

A
LAERDPHILLY

CAERFFILY
7



The Inclusion

and Support
project offers
support for children
and families around
mental health

Andrew had been struggling to
accept why his little brother had
been adopted and was in
desperate need of closure.

Andrew is one of five siblings and lives group. | listen to other mothers and

with his grandparents. In 2012, his think oh I've got that problem as well.
younger brother, Charlie was adopted | do find it good.” Sandra felt understood,
which left Andrew feeling confused, lost reassured and listened to without being
and worried. His biggest fear was that judged.“There’s many a day | think | don't

Charlie wasn't being looked after, and this  know what I'm doing wrong ,and having a
led to a lot of emotional and psychological professional say you're not doing anything

difficulties. wrong, it’s just the way it is.”

His grandmother, Sandra explained “It's Team Around the Family reviewed the
really difficult for him” Andrew’s behaviour  families case, and it was thought that

has been very difficult for Sandra to Inclusion and Support Project needed to
manage; often turning to harm himself be involved. Andrew was supported for
and not sleeping, as he would suffer three months by the mental health strand
from nightmares.“He’s got a log of anger and attended counselling sessions.“The
and he can’t cope with it. He's also been first two weeks was in the house and then
making himself sick.” they asked if | minded if he went on his

own, so the therapist picks him up from

The family received support from Team
4 PP school” Sandra explained.

Around the Family, and with their family
action plan in place, Sandra attended
support sessions through the Parenting
Programme and Individual Family Support
Project.“I've been to the family parenting

Inclusion and Support - Mental Health Strand

Page 41



Dafydd could only speak his mother’s
language for the first three years and so
could not read or write in English when

he first came. “The children’s English has
improved definitely, very much. They miss it
so much.”

Dafydd, who did not like school in Ibiza has
transformed with the help of the project.
“He’s really engaged with his reading and
writing”.

Supplementing their difficulties in school,
both children found it quite hard to settle
in to their new lives with little friends.
“Katherine is very nervous like me, she is very
shy. It is difficult to make friends’, but with
the help of Integrated Family Learning the
children have also made strong friendships
through the group.

Katarina also benefited more than she ever
expected, “I didn't know anyone but I've
made friends for sure. They’ve involved me
with the leisure centre which | didn’t know
is close to us, and Dafydd started going to
karate” “It was a help for me, especially with
English”

Following in Dafydd’s footsteps, his sister
Katherine also attended and said that it was
her favourite time of the week. Katarina told
us “she couldn’t wait to come.”

With many new changes for the family, the
Families First Integrated Family Learning

project not only helped with the children’s
learning, but also gave Katarina a chance

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk

Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerpiilyiazriliesfirst

to spend precious time with her children.
“To have that time together with children,
learning together and be involved in that
was really good”

She explained “the best part for me was
spending time with the children and
improving our English for the three of

us”. Katarina feels more confident about
asking questions relating to phonics and
handwriting so that she can help the children
settle into their new school. Dafydd is more
willing to write, speak and express his views,
whereas all three have increased confidence
in all aspects of literacy and with making
friends.

Katarina plans on continuing her studying
with English and urges other families to
benefit from the support that she received.
“It was really, really good. | was surprised that
people don't use it more when it is for free, |
cannot understand why parents don't use it”".

Funded by
Welsh Government

T,
A

Ariennir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru

A Y
LAERDPHILLY

CAERFFILY
7



Integrated
Family Learning

' project offers
* _& basic skills so that
P | families can learn
together

Katarina and her children learned
much more than Maths and English
from the project. She was
welcomed into the project, and

the community.

When Katarina moved to Caerphilly from something to help the school. She said, “I

Spain in May 2013, her children were her had no idea it would be like that with the
priority. Dafydd aged ten and Katherine, children. After the first time, Dafydd kept

aged six, moved back to Wales with saying ‘you must, you must, | love it, you
Katarina and their Caerphilly born dad must keep on coming; so because of him |
because of schooling. “Dafydd was not kept going”.

happy in school, the children were taught
in Catalan mixed with French and Latin
and he spent most of his time staring up

The family attended the project at their
school on Monday afternoons 1pm-3pm.
The sessions were split into two parts;

to the ceiling” the children and parents would work

On moving to Caerphilly, the children separately and then come together in the
were excited and kept asking Katarina“do ~ second hour to do active things such as
they speak our language here?” play. Katarina and other parents studied

English and Maths and learned about

She said they feel safer.”They couldn’t
I Y Y <ot what verbs and adjectives were.

believe that when they went to class they
could understand what they were saying””  Katarina explained “Katherine loves to talk.
In Ibiza, although she could understand
what was being said, she could not take
part in any discussion because she could
not communicate.”

Page 43

The family found out about the Integrated
Family Learning project through their
new school. When Dafydd brought home
a leaflet Katarina thought that it was

Integrated Family Learning project



Anne said that the support she received
from the project was vital in helping her give
up smoking. The one to one support and
encouragement that was provided in the
home was crucial to Anne and Lawrence.
Anne said “the best bit was the support
worker coming and explaining everything,
the personal contact”.

As well as the advice and information on the
stop smoking tablets, the support worker
also used a CO2 monitor to motivate Anne
and Lawrence. The week after Anne had
given up smoking, Anne was asked to test
her levels of Co2 using the monitor.

“I was classed as a non-smoker because |
didn’t have it in my system, so it was very
good. When he told me that, | was like ‘What,
that’s brilliant’.

Anne quickly began to realise the difference
and noticed herself feeling better. “You see
people smoking and think I'm glad | don’t do
that”.

“The smell is really horrible, and I'm now
more aware of it. | see smokers

now and | think | used to

smell like that”.

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk

Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerpni'yiazrliesfirst

Both grandparents knew that the
grandchildren were impressionable and plan
on being good role models. “The children
know it’s bad for you, you try to say to them
don't do what | do but when they see you

m

doing it they think, well | can do it”

Anne has now started to crochet a lot while
her husband, who is more active, goes out
looking for wood for their log burner.

For the future, Anne and Lawrence intend
to stay smoke free. The smoking cessation
strand of the Health Inclusion project
provides that on-going support even after
you have given up. Anne said “l wouldn't
have been able to do this without the
project”.

Ariennir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru
Funded by

Welsh Government

S
s

A Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
7



Anne and her husband, Lawrence had
been long term smokers, both smoking
since the age of 16. They had wanted to
give up smoking for years, but found it
difficult because they enjoyed the habit.

Anne said “I've tried loads of times, and
when | was pregnant with both girls

I gave up, but as soon as | had them |
started again”. On the arrival of their four
grandchildren, aged seven, six, three and
two years old, they both decidedIt's time
to give up.

Anne’s grandchildren were her main
concern and motivation for giving up, as
being a doting grandparent, Anne looks
after her grandchildren twice a week while
her daughters were in work.

Anne had been to see her doctor about a
year ago to ask about a give up smoking
group, and was told that they used to have
a nurse that run the group, but that that

Ann and her husband, Lawrence
from Crumlin had wanted to give
up smoking for years, but looking
after their four grandchildren
made them think'it’s not the right thing.

The Health
Inclusion project
offers Smoking
Cessation support
that is flexible and
effective

stopped. The doctor gave Anne an NHS
pack, but all the meeting times were in the
day, and so that didn’t suit her because of
work commitments.

Anne’s determination to set a good
example to her grandchildren meant that
when she received an email about the
Families First Health Inclusion project, she
contacted the support worker from the
project straight away.

Anne started meeting him during October
2013, Anne admitted ‘l was a bit nervous
when [ first met the support worker, but
he made me feel comfortable’.

“He came to the house after work and
went through everything we could take to
help us give up. We both decided to take
the stop smoking tablets. | didn't smoke
after that. It does take the actual craving

awﬁyége 45

Health Inclusion project



“They’ve shown me that just because you
have a baby, your life doesn’t end. Things are
easier to do than you expect, even though
you've got a child”

Angharad has also gained a lot of
independence with the project’s help, going
from relying heavily on her mother’s support
to going to groups by herself with Evie. It was
also a big change for her due the accident.
“I'm not the same Angharad as | was before
the accident. Because of the brain injury I've
had a personality change’”

“It felt really welcome because you knew that
it wasn't just you in the situation. Everyone
had different situations as to why we were
here, but we were here for the same reason.
You didn't feel so alone and it’s nice to have
friends in the same situation as you.”

“It's made me a lot stronger. | can pick Evie up
on my right side now.”

The project has provided a lot of emotional
support for Angharad. “Without the project,
mentally and emotionally I'd probably be
more within myself. This has helped me come
out of my shell. | can talk to new people and
it doesn’t bother me. It's showed me that
people can like me for who | am and not who
[ used to be!”

Angharad’s ambition was to go into
musical theatre, and all her
qualifications were in performing

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk

Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerg nilyiazriliesfirst

arts and drama, however, that ambition
was no longer possible as she could not
sing or dance. Angharad is now going
to university to study psychology and
counselling, and wants to become a
counsellor.

Her positivity is captivating, claiming “I'm
loving life” and that the accident has made
her see how people take the little things in
life for granted.

The project has done a lot for Angharad and
Evie, “Evie loves coming here. It's helped her
because she’s an only child”

“It's amazing. | look forward to coming here. |
love coming here, it's so welcoming. The girls
treat you for what they see; they take you on
face value.”

Funded by
Welsh Government

Ariennir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru

A Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
7



accident.

When Angharad suffered a near fatal car
accident, she was left in a coma for a
month. On waking up she couldn't move
the entire right side of her body and was
unable to walk or look after her six month
old daughter, Evie.

Angharad heard about the support from
the Family Engagement Project, and
started attending when Evie was nine
months old. The project workers visited at
their family home and told Angharad that
she could join in the September.“l had no
idea what | was going to get from coming
here but it was good, | really enjoyed
coming”.

Angharad’s accident left her unable to pick
her daughter up or make her food. Having
to learn to walk again was also something
that the young mother had to accomplish
in the first months of her daughter’s life.

“l went from being bed bound, toin a

Angharad, 20 from Penpedairheol
had no idea what she was going to
get from the project, but needed
support following a near fatal

The Family
Engagement
project offers
specific group and
individual support
to young mums

wheelchair, to on a Zimmer frame, to on
two crutches, to one crutch, to walking in
seven weeks. | wanted to come home to
Evie”

The project was something that Angharad
looked to for support in this new stage of
her life.”l wanted to learn how to cook.

All I could cook was a boiled egg and
microwave meals. | wanted to learn how
to do things for Evie and cope with her
behaviour”

Angharad has overcome many barriers
whilst with the project, and learned new
skills through the many courses that she
has attended with them, the latest being
DIY.“l do more activities with Evie, they
show me what | can do with her and I've
learned to cook so Evie isn't forced to eat
microwave meals!”

Page 47

Family Engagement project




The project also provided Lewis with one to
one, support to help him to understand his
mother’s mental health issues. He was able
to discuss his concerns and as a group, chat
amongst themselves and figure out how
much caring they do.

“I was nervous at first. | felt awkward because
| didn't know if there would be people that
had the same situation and that they would
secretly take the mick. But after the first few
sessions | got used to it then and made more
friends.” Loughy explained.

“We've made new friends, we've even found
out there are friends of ours at school that we
didn’t even know were carers”

Inspired by the others in the groups, the boys
soon realised that they could be nothing but
themselves; “it showed us to be ourselves
and to act the way we would when we were
out with other friends.”

So much so that Lewis and Loughy have
completed a peer mentoring course with
the project, helping them more with their
panicking and supporting other young
carers. Lewis has used this coaching in a role
he’s already doing in school.

For more information please contact:

Caerphilly Families First
Third Floor, Penallta House
Tredomen Park

Ystrad Mynach

CF82 7PG

Tel: 01443 864809

Email: familiesfirst@caerphilly.gov.uk

Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerpiilyiazriliesfirst

“It's good for us as parents to see that other
people have confidence in our children for
them to go ahead and do this. It shows how
much they’ve grown in confidence” their
father said.

“The project gives the boys a chance to

be themselves. For us as parents it’s good
knowing that they can now get the support
that they need, they haven't got to suffer in
silence as they were!”

The project has also helped the talented
boys to pursue hobbies, such as free running,
that would have otherwise been impossible.
Lewis and Loughy have bright lives ahead of
them; “I've got quite high plans for when I'm
older.” Lewis said.

I\

Funded by
Welsh Government

I,
A

Ariennir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru

A Y
LAERDPHILLY

CAERFFILY
7



100[0id uonisuel] Ajjweq e

a|doad
Buno A yiim suonedidsy buisiey
pue uonelpalody Bunowold e

I\
sowebloang e HSIOAIUN S.UaIpliyD e

[ d
SUOISSOS [BleudlUY AJlUNWWO) e 199101d UORBCARIE LINOA 108l01d podssed Ajjiydiee) e

A
awuwelboid |ejeuisod e AUIT Allded pue jooyos e 100(0id JuswAhojdw3 jusied e

Sa)IUNWWOo) JalyjjeaH sapunwwo) buiuies sajiunwwo’) snosadsold

uiseg Ajjiydase)

JjejuAl uf nepaunuwiia JS)y SBIIUNWWOD

JUBWILIBAOD) YS|IM

niwA) yaeipomA| &mr ‘Fv

10T Y2IEW uiseg A|ydised - s21snD
vLIELOZ SWwa)l payul| uoeaNp3 —3sii4 SAPIUNWIWOY :10B.XT Bjed UOUUA

S}oeJIIX] eleg UOUUAJH — 3SJ14 SIUNWIWO)

€ Xipuaddy

Page 49



UOQUAMBIU] == J20iE] — 2N I UOQUAIAU] = 13018 = |enpdy

- - - -«
-3 = = =
o 1 L | = s
- oy m~ -
- o (= cr
3 -0
FE ]
L
Ly = Lot =
-3 m -1 m
7 2
[¥ S Lor =
- P
b1 [
Fl L a1 e Lo
uni sutissas L.ﬂ_ laquuinp mqu._uA.u..u.wmn_ [EnprpUr Jo Jaquunp

3Hoy3 buninseap

"|EUSSSS SUE3P|IYD J0 uoisiAodd 34 YIIM JUSWIUOIIAUS SJES B Ul UNJ 3q || UED SiYyL
S3SS2UPPE [IEW-3 BSN PUE 33E810 suawolsna djay ued pue uoilnl 11 Jiseq Alsa se ||am sy

1213 S||14s
uoielussald ‘s)I¥5 MBIAISIUT ‘B21AISS JBWOISND SE YONs ‘s|i3s palejad uswAojdws uo Buimesy pue sdoysyiom dy1aads uni osje ued siaxiom Hoddng juswdhojdwz ayy

juswabeuew swiy pue [EDUBUlY ‘suepd Jdssued ‘Bunum AD ‘saydiess qor uo suoissas Buluiesy jpwuojul pue sdoysxiom apiaoid 0 SISWOISND
pue sdnoub Jiayy yum Dupjiom —iomisn jualed syl pue ‘uels Bulh|4 ‘se yons suonesiuebio Jsuyed ylim Aposaip ddom s sisdiom oddns juswiojdw syl

‘Juawhojdws ojul yoeq Aemiyled e itwm Jusaed ayy spiaocdd pm Yyoiym sdoysyiom pue poddns ‘saiape padojel jo Assalep
a3 ybnouys quswhojdws ojul yoeq sjusied asayy poddns diay o3 ‘wiseg Ajpydised ayl ssoude sdnosb Jussed ypm Aposaip spom |im siaxJop Hoddng JuswAojdwg syl

"S}yauag paie[ad 3Wooul uo sployasnoy ul Buial usippyo
Jo Jaqunu 3yl Bupnpas Jo wie 3yl yum Hiom 03 uiniss pue Juswhodws puly 01 sfausded syl ajgeus 03 sal|lwe) pue siussed o) poddns apiaocsd (s 102loud syl

uondsaq yalodd

JEJUAS uA nepaunwid Sy SeIJUNWUIWOoD

yoaloud juswAojdwa juaied :z 3oaloud

MOM pul pue sis jusawAojdwg dojaaaq o3 sjdoad buid|jaH 1Od
sanmunuwo) M—..O_Lﬂ_numo._ﬁ

Page 50



-
0a

L ot

pue aagsod asow ase jey) syuedpiued Jo s, £

UOUBAIAU] e 130UP | == [END1Y

yiom Bungaas Jnoge aduapyuod pasoidun asey

- 05
L 0a
Ll &
o
og 2%
06 o
L
oot
Lart
T'Wd2d

UOOUSAISIUT == J30JE| = |2nldy I

-« . *
= = =
™ "= =
= pus a
- ™ ra
Cr or =

piFuadIa

R 8 P 8 & %

LLS8 LLs8

uoREIYEnd p3iEjas
JuawiAojdiwa ue Buivied sjuedidiued J0 5, 7' T Wd-Dd

Ppay3 buuinseayy

UOOUAAIAU] s  130UP ] == [EnDYy I

BORLGI A

ol 44

535IN03 pajejad
wewdojdwsa Bugajdwod suedidiped Jo % 11T Wd-Dd

= =
= =
= e
- prrd
= or

QoL 0oL 004

uogeadxa o] ung SU0Issas oy

UOQUAAIAIU] === J30UE] = (Ery N

A -
- =
= =
a L]
- ()
o o

abFIUadE,

UONUAMISIU] w== J30iE] = jEniy I

o4 13/14
0 13/14
Q2 13/14
Q1 13/14

BBREFR" A
Il T ERT LR

-

0oL QoL

Ju2)I32x3 1o poolb Asaa se Paloud Buges syuedpiped o

8

UOQUAMIAIU] s=== J30i8] = &2y

abEuans,

0oL 0ot Q0L oL ot

dnoub sswoysnd jabie] 34y woyy syuedoed oy

@

Jejudl ud nepounwio JSiy SSRIUNWIWOD

Ayjend) Buuinseap

aloid JuswAojdw3 jusied:z 3oaloid

IO puly pue s|ipis JuawAojdw3 dojaaaq 03 @jdoad buidieH 1Dd

sonunuwo) snoJadsold

Page 51



UOQUANBI] = J30ue] = |eny UOQUAAIRIU] e 13008 ) = (engoy I

- - - - - - - -
b 2 2 = = = 2 2
= = - = - = = -
= 3 = v i s 2
& o > o A & = o o
Hs
= =
Lot 3 z
o o
. 2
=
9
Lge ] L 0Ot

urd SuMssas JO Jaquuny

syuedpued |[enpiapul Jo J2quiny

Hoy3 Buuinseap

uoneAlRowW pue Buippng aouspyuo)d

WJop 104 ssaadwl 03 s534Q

sanbiuysal maiaiaiul

(Dd uo uoissas jegoeld Buipnpouw) gol e Joy Ajdde 03 Moy
sanbiuyss] yoiess qog

ajepdn pue uonesedasd pAD
232 Burdaaxawn ‘abenbue| ‘ssuoyd apgow jo 2sn Buipnpoul sanoaeyaqg Hiom I8 JiIseg — P=dxg saishopdwig 3eym

BPNPRUL M ydrgsm nusi Aypgelopdwa syl ui sdoysyiom syl Jaaap (s siaxuom poddns juswAopdws yynod sy ,nuaw Aypgelojdws, ue jo ped se papiaoad
s1 Bunmesy pue poddns ybu sy sinsua ol ansoubelp pue Juswssasse s||IYs |EUSssa ue aaey |Im swwelboid podsseqd Ajpydised syl 03 paiiajad [ENpIAIPUl YoET

"101235 I3eaud
a1 Jo suonesiuebio gs uiynm ssyne ssniunueddo Juswhopdwsa sjgeuielsns ojul paycdssed, Buieg suoyaq ajdoad BunoA Joj saipunpoddo Juswsaodeld diyssonuaadde

wiay 4a2buo| pue syluow 9 ‘Yeem g und jpm awwelboud syl ‘siauped gsT pue [Punod ybnosog Ayunod Apydised yim saijiunpoddo Buiuesy pue asusuisdxs
yrom Ayenb 136 o3 ‘swwelboud yiom 3yl vo Jou pue palojdwsun aue oym “+Z-9T

pabe sjdoad Bunok 1oy Apunpoddo ue sspinoad swwesboixg podssed A|pydised syl

uondposaqg y32aload

Jjejudl ud nepaunwis Sy SSIUNWWIOD

swuweliboiyd podssed Ajydiaen :z paloid

juawabebuasip pue juawAojdwaun yinox bBupnpay zOHd
sanuNnwwo) snoisadsold

Page 52



UODUAMAI] —— Jabie] — (eny I

-
—
—
=
)
(=

Q4 1314
02 13/14
Q1 13714

Juawadejd
MO[ & Buundas syuedoiped Jo s, /077 Wd-Dd

alpUBIIE

UONUBAIAU] == 12008 = |[EnYy [N

- - - -
= = = =
a o 9 o
- () P -
o o o o
Fos
= 70O o
g0 L8P la &
o
oo __n-_w
e =
boc ©
hSi
- 08

yom Bupjaas Ajaanpe syueddued Jo 5 90°2 Wd-Dd

uoguasdaul — j2bue)] — BNV 1)

- = - 4 =

- . | a 8

T e ~ -

o o o Cr
w J
<8 m
% F
= %
oot
50t

Hpom Gurjaas
ynoqe aapsod asow syuedoqued Jo 9 Z0°T Wd-2d

a3 buuinseapy

UOQUBAIAIU] we J20UE)] — ey
= -3 x =
= = = =
- ] ) =
o o o (=4

aatL 0oL 0oL 0ac

uoReadis 0] ur SUOISS3s oy

afeusais

UONUAAIAIU] = J202e] — |enpy I
= = = -
= = = ey
- = =] =
o o l=3 o
09
& B
4
vl
6 §
(=]
T ™
oot ott

Juay23xa 1o poolb Asaa se Ppaloid buges syuedidiped o

UOQUBAISIU] e  }3018) = |eny I

A
=
-
-
o

- = =
= = 2
- - =
) &4 e
cr = [=d

abrusae

55 -
dnoub 12welsnd jabuel 2y woy suedpued o

D

Jjejudl wl nepaunwAD JSi) SOIUNWILWIOD

Ayjend) buunsespy

swwelboud podssed Ajjiydised:z paloud

juswsabebussip pue jJuswAojdwsaun ynos bupnpay zod

sanmunuwo) m:ohﬂﬂma.—n_

Page 53



UOQUBAIRIU] = J3fue)| — |enpoy Il UONUANIAIU] = 2018 = jEenpy

= = = s = = = -
E; Ej S = Ej B £ )
& =3 = = & & & o
= -0
- 0T
-os
z - mN
oot M o
W1 09 o
st L os
a Tl
r L ooz -8 oot
LMl sSucissas H_\rr._ l=agquiny mqu.n"quwm.n_ [ENPpMIpU] JO Jagquung

Hoy3 Buuinseap

‘looyas jo apisine saialae aanonpoad ‘aaiyisod ul sbebus 03 aydoad BunoA pue uauppyd voddng

*siauaedfsyusied pabebussip yum sisiuueq sAowald 03 s1isia swoy Buiyeyspun

'S[|I%S UOIEIIUNLILIOD f|B120S PUE WS31S3 J|95 ‘Juswsabeuew Jabue se yons sanssi yum Loddns j[euciippe ainbad oym uslpjiya yiim suoissas dnodb uny

HIM S190UI0 AjIUES PUE YINOA YL

s‘¢ JeaA Joj 1esh uonlisuesy
uoddns ‘Ajjenpiaipul Jo dnoub e se asyjie ‘g abeys Asy ojul uonisuesy syl ybnoayy papoddns aue JSNI0M MUl SY] 01 PSYIIUSP! USIP|IYD JBY] SUNSUT *SSNSSI YIM I5ISSE

ued jey sepnusbe ssyjo jo poddns ¥ass “poddns buipssu se payUSP! SUE oYM USIP[IYD JO JUSWSA|OAUI [EJUSIEd pUE JUSWUIEIE [EUOIIEINPa ‘INoiAEY3q ‘souepusyne
aacidunl 031 3225 “sanagip Bunusuadxs usappyd Jo s3we) yum sdiysuones|sd Buxaom waod yuswsbebussip jo ysu 1e sjdosd BunoA pue usappys Joj voddnsg
"S5 |B1205 10 Jnoiaeyaq yum Apgenoued ‘jooyss ul ssanagp bunusuadxe sue oym usapiyz o1 poddns aam saipwe) pabebus uou pue |00YIs USSMIS] Ul B SIE3ID

103 sjooyas ypm Buppiom siadiyo Ajlweq pue yinoa

uondnsag aload

JEJUAS uA nepaumuAD JSuy SBRUNWIWOD

ul] Ajjwe4 pue jooyos :g Ppaloid

jooyas 3e |[2Mm og o3 ajdoad bunoy) buipoddns o1
sanIunwwo) Suluiean

Page 54



uonuanaW] — jabie] —  jeny N UOQUAAIAIU] s 180UE | e ey
- T - - 3 - - -
= = = = = = = =
= = = = = = = =
- = ) = - - 4 =
=3 (=] cr = & Cr [~ =
- . & £ & : g . v )
L2z L2z
L W o
g g
-8 3 -8 1
[ 5]
FBL 3 Bl
- 08 - 08
g -8
jooyss W pascsdun 8 £°7 kWd-1 |00YIs noge sapsod S1owW |33 18YY % 2 Wd-

13y 3 bBuLinseap

LO
()
UOQUAAISIU] we  J2008) = 2Ny I UOQUAMNIDIU] w= J3fUE] — |eniy N UOQUBAIBIU] we J30iE] = |emoy N %
- - - - - - - - a
3 : 5 s 3 s 8 3 ™
: - = = : = m =
(= o (= o =4 (= o

L8 ot oot 00t

ucQeadxa 0] un SUGISSas oy

afipjuacie

EEFRBED O
Clala (VR

74 S
Ju3|j22x2a 10 poob Asan se Paloid uges syuedidiped og

001 oot oot 001 e

dnoub Jawosnd Jabie) sy wouj sjuedidiped o

sbejuaaie,

Ajljend) BuLinseap

jejudl uAd nepaunuwio Sy SSIUNWILWIOD

b

jun Apwed pue jooyds g P3loid
[ooyos 1e ||I2M o 03 @|doad Buno) Buipoddns zo1

saniunwwo) Buluiean




UOQUAMIAJU] == J30ie] — |jemy I UOQUAAIAIU] = J20iE] = |emoy I

T - 0T
LE al
L et =
E
4 m‘ rET m
Lse = Fet =
S -5t
X i gl st 5t 4
55 L g
urJ suUISSas Jo JaquunN syuediiued |[enprupu] o Jaquuny

Hoy3 Buuinseapy

'aqediiped pue sInguUIUod ued
sbebua 01 NP Si0W 10 JUSPIUOD SS3) ade oym ajdoad BunoA 1eyl sunsua ol ‘sBunilesw wniod tolung Apwasl pue sbuiyssw spim ybBnolog jo Assslep sy poddns o)

*282D uiypm Bupjew uoispap 2ibajens ojul paay pue sbunasw apim

ybnosoq 18 sanssi |E20] SSNJSIP pue asied ued Asyl os ‘uonejuasaudsd Yinod saey 181SN|2 34l SSO0UIE SIIJIUNWLWOD 3unsus ol *sjdoad Bunod io} yuswdojaaap s| s
pue uolyelpalide Joj sanuniloddo dojassp ues Ayl os pue 18315N|2 2yl ss50J28 suejd o3 a3nguIuod ued Asyl os ybnolog ayl ynoybnosyy Bunsixa sdnosb sanediniued
1uaund Buimeluiep sassadolsd aaizediipied yym sbebus o3 sue Asyl os ‘yoeads o3 3sspiey suyy Buipnpul ‘sydoad Bunod pue usupnys pwoddns pue abebus o)

uonduisag yaloag

JejudAl ufd nepaunwis Js)) SSIIUNWIWOD sloid uonedpiued yno :z aloid

saniunwwo) ul buiuiesy Buojain +o1
saniunwwo) BuluieaT

Page 56



UORQUAAIIU] =

Q4 13/14

03 13/14

13048 | ——

Q2 13/14

Q1 13/14

|eny

L4998 L4992 L99 4992

T I . (¢

HOE

o

05

o9

- Od

-8

wiea| 0] buuaajunos senbas w ajedmqed oys 3jdoad Jo % S Wd1

sbejueniey

UOUAMBU] e J30IR | —ee ey
- T - -
= = = =
= = = =
- . ] -
- -~ = =
0w
Bl
v n...mu
3
i 3
e
v S
- S»
-

uonesyyend e Buned apdoad Jo o T Wd1

oy buLinseap

UONUANRI] = J30iE] = enioy N
b4 h. h. 4 =
8 = 5 o
- ” ~ -—
= cr =4 cr
o
R
ry O
3
S B
[ =]
8 o
ot
uofeadxa 0} LN SUCISSAS oy

UOQUSAIAU] s }30IC |

enoy

Q4 1314
Q3 13/14

I3/14
Q1 1314

Q2

i~

m W

ot

afFuaaIa

Ju3||22x%3 10 poob Adan se Paloid Dunes syuedidgued og

UOQUANIS] ==  J30sE) = |Enpy
- - - -
= = = =
- £ | =
- ~ ~ -
= o = =
Tu-
o]
-
o
o e
B
=
L]
o
anoib Jawoysnd Jabie) a4y woly syuediiued o

- u;nd

uAb uA nepaunuwis Sy SOIUNWILWOD

b

Ayjend) buLinsespy

1aloid uonedaiped yinoi:z palold
saijiunwwo) ul buiwies Buojayr $o1

saniunwwo) BuluieaT

Page 57



UOQUIAIAU] == J30i8] — 2Ny I UCHUBAIBIU] e J30i8) = |enpy I

ro

o2

L o0s = =
m ]

fos & 2

08

~00T

und sucissas JO JgquuUnn Sjuedniped |EnpApul ..,_,.n_ laquinp

Hoy3 buninseap

‘Bunzeypoey sue Asyl sienpialpul 1o sdnoub yum ssunpadold Buipaenbages ||B yimm paajoaul

80 pue AIESSIO8U USUM pue se sa|npow syl dojsasp M sisoio Ajlwed pue yinoa ayl juswdojsasp Ajlunwiwos o sjeob jeuosiad o3 synquiuod Aleanisod jeyl
saipaiRoe B ssAnoe pue suoissas buidosasp sizodo Ajlwed pue yinos ybnoiyl osje pue sisoigo Buiagem pue yijesy pue Jjiompunots ybnouyy paisansp suoissas
puspe o} pauoddns pue psbeinoous 2q |im 3jdoad Bunod syl "supasid uieb o3 sjdoad BunoA pue usapiyd Joj ssunpoddo AjJuapl 03 WIE [[IM SiaxJom Ajlwey pue
yanoA syl spopaw aanedmiped Buisn ‘sjooyds yiim sxyul] ybnoayy os|e pue siom paydselsp pue yzeaiino ybrnoayly sjdosd Bunoh abebuz jjim s1a0140 AjlLUEY DUB YINOA

*aj1] [ooyas Jisyl Inoybnodyl sjuswsaAsIyde
[ENPIAIPUL S,PJIY2 B JOJIUOW [|IM SiYyl "9SEQEIEP |EIIUSD 3Yy3 Ul paje|j02 aq o3 AJuoyine |E207 SY3 03 JUSS puE saijailoe pasoldde woly pa3aa)|o2 aq |jm siaisibay

“Ajsdaaiun s, UsdpiyD 243 yim 123s16aa 03 ajdoad Buncok pue usauppya yum Buibebus a2q s stsnpo Apwes

pue yinoa syl "+1 — 6 siead jooydss ‘61 - +1 pabe sjdoad Bunok Buigabiey ‘" Avsisaiun yinoj, syl oyuo Buissauboud sjuapnis jo Ayjunpoddo syl os|e 51 asayl ‘payueq
s3}Ipaun jo Jsquinu 11sy) uo Buipuadap pieme pjob pue Jsajls ‘szuoiq e 350 03 3|ge sue usupjIYo pue ‘g — £ ssesh |jooyos ‘g1 - g pabe usapjiyo syabuey Apsisalun

s, us1pYD, ayL saan2e buipusne Aq Buluises) 03 Juswywwed s3ensucwsp 03 Alduwis Ing s32biey pauiwsayaspaad Jsuiebe Juswsaasnye sjeuysuowsp o3 ajdoad BunoA
puE uaJp[iya s4nbau Jou ssop Ajsiasiun syl "pieme pasiubooss ANsisaiun S,uUSUP|IYD E SPIEMO] HIOM PUE PRPU0DS] PUE  PaYUEQ, 30 USYJ [[IM SHIPaID 35341 "S313IAI0E
jooyas 1o jno paasosdde Joy syupaud, paisnsds Buiueb syuspnis sasjoau P=losd ayy ‘jenusiod Ny syl ysesd o] 2jdoad Bunod sbeinoaus pue suoilesdse asealoul

03 ‘sjuass Buipods pue Buluaea) ‘|EanyIN2 Ul SSIUAIRDE J0OYIS JO INo Ul sjdoad BunoA pue usuppiyo to vonedioiued syl aswbooss o3 swie Ajsisslun s,UUppyD, YL

uonduosag eload

JjejuAb uA nepaunuwio JSiy SSIHUNWIWOD

Ajis1aAlun sualp|iyd 4 peloid

sanijiunwiwo) ui buiuiea buojayr +o1
saniunwwo) Buluiean

Page 58



UOQUBAIAU] == J300E) = ergy N
- - - +
= = = =
a a = - |
- = ] -
=4 o cr o
: i i oz
o
oz
| oF
F09
08
LLBL
oot
wea| 0] Guuaagunjon
iejnbau w ajedoiped oym ajdoad Jo % S ¢ kd-I1

abpusoie

UONUANIAIU] === J30IE] = Enpy Il

- -
= =
™ ™~
= e
T ™
o Cr

Q2 1314

-
=
=
2
o

roc

i

09

afieanie

0aL

Bunwea) noge asgised asow apdoad Jo 9 Z°F WdD1

UOOQUAAIRIU] === 13048 = jeny [N

- -+ - -
= = = =
= a = a
- i) ~ —
= O oF cr
0T
- 0F
LLBE o
ey T
o Q@ M
o
2
08 M
o
©
- oot
0oL 0oL
-0ct

uogexgend e Suiwed aydoad Jo 9% T+ HdDT

Poy3 buunseap

UONUAAIAIU] = J20UE] = jENIY

13714

-
_
-
=
-
=4

Q4 13414

+
=
o

oot ooL oot

UOEIadxS 0 UNd SUOISSSE 8

sbejueasag

UOOUBMBIU] = (308 = |Enpy I

- -
= =
o o
- i
= =
as
= 2
38
e 2
06 o
por ®
0L oTT

JUS|[22%3 10 pool Asaa se aloud Dunel syuedidiped oy

UOQUAAIAIU] = J30i8] = (Eenoy I

- T - -
= = = =
= = = = ]
- ) r~ -
o [=4 o o
L
FOL 9
3
- 08 m
Lo =
L =]
00T @
00t 0ot oot bk

dnosb Jawo)snd Ja0ue) 3yl woly syuedpiped o

@

JejuAB uA nepounuAs Sy SOIUNLUILLIOD

Ajijend) buLinseap

AjisJaAlun suaJpjiyd ¢ paloid

saniuNwwo) ui buiuiea buojayrt +o1

saniunwwo) Buluiea

Page 59



UOTUBAIBIU] e  J20UE | = |Eenoy UOQUAAIAIU] === J30UE] == 2Ny

= i - -3 - 4 » = =
s ¥ 5 3 = = =5 =
& o o o = o o o
. . ot- . ' or-
—_— e [’
' et =z L4
or Mﬂ 0T W.
e 2 lai: B
Lo - ov
Fi's L os 4 4 L o3
UnJ suQIssas .._.U I2quuny mu__.._mn.u._utmu [ENpLAIpU] L_n_ JQLLINN

yoy3 buunsespw

‘uoneanpa woJly Juswsbebussip ul asesunsp e 01 Bunnguiuoo Ajnjadoy pue uoneanps Bunowoud Ajaaisod snyl ‘|ooyds
ul jj2m 0s op Jou op A3yl y Apejnonued ‘sasyoe ued Aayl mouxy Ayl os ‘sjdoad BunoA uiylim SoUSpUUOD PlING oL S|IYs 34 Mseq Buipnpul ‘s||1¥s 2seq jo Juswdojaasg

"uoiaeanpa yum juswsabebus Je13aq Buuoddns souspiyuod pue Waalsa J19s 119yl saoddw ued uoniubooss se “JuswuonAua
jooy2s ay3 ul Buybbniys agq Asw oym usupiy2 2yl sof Juepoduw) Apenaed s) syl jooyds Jo spisino sjuswaasiyoe s,3|doad BunoA Jo S|00YIS YUM SSIUSIEME SSIEL O

‘sa13IAI0E pasnio) Apunwwod ybnoiyy volzenpsiioe aasiyde ol ajdoad Bunod o) saiunuoddo dojaasp o] Ajunwwod 3yl Jo siaquall Jnpe yum Buspiom
'SPJEME UDIJEJIPSII0E |EWIOjUl pue [Ewloj-uou ybBnoiyy ssadons uosiad BunoA ayj Joj ssso0ons sjowoid o)
‘Bulagjem pue yijeay jexsAyd uo spedw asnisod saey 1eyl sswny 1sed saiisod w Juswanjoaw sbesnoous oy

‘uies| pue abebua 01 s|doad BunoA pue usuplya 3yl jo Ayoeded asealous

‘awes ayl op o3 syuaued abeincous pue spdoad BunoA pue usuppyd yypm uonendse 3s5IEJ PUE SDUSPRUDD PlING ‘WS3353 J|8S 3SIEL 0L

uonduosaqg 2[00ad

JjeuAl ud nepaunuwis sy SSIHUNWWOD

ajdoad Buno i yim uonendsy buisiey pue uoijelipatddy bunowold:g alold

saiunwwon ui buiuiea buojayn +21
sanunwwo) buiuiea

Page 60



UOQUAAIAIU] = J30IE| = [eny Il

FQ4 13/14
Q1 13/14
F02 13714
bQl 13/14

oz~
-0

- O0E
BLd
09
Ll

T8 Lo

001

-0ZT

Wwiea] 03 Buuaaqunion
Jenbas w ajedpued oy 2doad JO o S F Rd-ON

alEuaaI6g

UONUAMIAIY] === J30iE)| = |Enpy I

- o - -
= = = =
= = a =
- = o =
= o cr o
i i r oe-
0
O D
]
ok o
s
rn—w mn
o
08 L
Fo0T
0oL
-0

Bunwea) noge asgisod asow apdoad Jo 9 Z F WdD1

UOOUAAAU] == }30i8]| = |enpy I

-4 1314
-3 1314
FO2 1314
HQ1 13/14

L
afpusdBy

Ll

LEBS 0E' LB - 00t

uonedyenb e Buiueb aydoad jo % 1 Wd2

Pay3 buunseay

UOQUBAIAIU] wee  J30UE | =  jENY

13/14

¥

- -
= —
= =
] m
— —
- =
L= =4

Q1 1314

L& Fi 3 0ot

uoneadys o) uns sUoISsas o,

abijueais

UOQUBMIBIU] w3018 e |Enoy N

Q4 13/14
Q3 1314
02 1314
Q1 1314

abriuaaIE

0906
0oL

JuS|22x%3 10 poob Asan se Paloid Bunes syjuediped o

UOQUAAIBIU] weee 13008 ) = 2Ny I

- - - -
= = = =
= = = a
- - ~ -
o4 = (=] =
09
F 0L =
©
- 08 ﬁ
- 06 =L|u
[ =]
F0OT ®
0oL 0oL 0oL or

dnosb J2wo)snd Jabuel ayy wouy syuedpped o

@

JejuAB uA nepounwis JSiy SeMUNLUILLIOD

Ajend) buunseap

sjdoad bunoj yym uoijedidsy bBuisiey pue uonejipalooy bunjowold :9 10aloud

sanRuNWWo) ul buiuies Buojayr £

sanunwwo) Buluiea

Page 61



UOQUIMSIU] = J30ie] = |2ny I UOOUAAIAIU] v 13018 == jen2y I

- - -~ - - - = =
5 8 5 5 3 3 5 5
f— - N - E
..n_um m ..unw
o o
Fd rm-m rmlalu.
= )
a oz oz
-S5T

Lcr
au

U SUDISS3S JO JaquuUnN syuedidie 4 |[ENpLapU] JO 13gQUIny

Hoy3 buunseap

'sajAlsadl Ayljesy pue uonaesslul Apwey sanisod sjowold 03 JSPIO Ul '3S0D MO| BIE YDIYM S2RIAIDE Jooping ul sbebus o3 sawe) Joj
saipunpoddo apiaoad |Im Jsxiom Ajlwe) pue yinoA syj siyy o} UDIJIPPE U] "SUOISS3S ,18]156), pue siapiaold IsiE1dads JSYI0 10 HIOMPUNOID ‘SIad1Y0 Yyjjeay Ag padsalsp

suaissas ui abebus 01 saqunpoddo ‘Buussiunjoa Jo pue Bumiesy 1o ssipunuoddo |30 Jo woijowold ‘Yiom Bulagam pue yiljesy ‘Buippng ssuspyuod se Yyans
SSIAIIDE BAJOAU] [IM Suoissas "dnoab 3yl uIyIM SIENPIAIPUI PUE S3I|ILUE] SY3 JO SPasu JY3 193t 0] SPEW JOJIE] 34 |[IM PUE S¥33M 8 — 0 US3MISq JOJ UNJ [IM SUDISS3S

"B|OYM B SE AJILUEJ BYY PUE AILIE] SYI UIYIIM S|ENPIAIPU] Joj Juswdojsasp |euostad ‘sayisod sjowoud
"M 3eyy seqiunpuoddo Apjuspl 03 ¥@as [Im Ing ‘saiwe) syl jo spaau Buibisws syy UD SNI0J JOU [[IM HJOM SUL *,SN30J |ESISAIUN, SI0W B yjim saniaigoe o3 psload
weawabebus Ajwey 1o Jay1aboy sawe) wouy asow 03 saljiwe} 3ygeus o3 dnoab uoipsuen e dojanap |m sisoIYO Ajlwed pus yinoa 2yl ssunpoddo assyl yIim saijlwes
syl apiaoad 031 Jepao ul ‘239 s|I¥s mau Bulwes| ‘Buussiunjoa 'Buuiesy puneode ssnunuoddo Ul paAjDAUL BI0LW SWO2S] 03 83| PINOM PUE SUOUSAISIUL 33Y) pasu

J0U uop A3yl puly SIIjIWE) 343 USUO "4V1 yd ybnoiyy ss01alas pasijenads aiow SS3008 WYL SjgeUs 03 uonREwsojul pue Loddns ym s3iiwey apiactd 03 wie uoissas
2yl ‘uoissas Jaylabol saijwey pue sPSIA WOY “Yiom paydelsp pue ydeasnno ybnoiyl spssu Buibuaws ym saijwey abebus sisxyiom juswabebus Apwey Jusssud 1y

“JuswdopEasp jeuosiad J1ay) pHoddns o3 sagiunuodde ssa20e pue Ajunwiwod [ele)| eyl yym pabebua siow swooaq ued Asyl eyl J2pio ul ‘swwelsboud usyysboy
saljliwed 1o abeys uonasjdwod 18 ‘saijwe) yum abebus 01 suoissas doEasp |Im S0 Allwed pue ynos 243 10aload Juswabebug Ajlwed “3said saljiwey ym Bujiom

uondpnsaq aload

JeIUAD wX nepaunwiis Sy SeUNWIWod

paloud uonisued] Apwed:g paload

SIIMS 23 NPy Buinoidwr 537
saniunwwo) Buluiea

Page 62



UOQUAAIAIU] = J30ie)] — jenv I

Q4 13714
FQ3 1314
FQ2 1314
FQ1 114

[=] Q
"l
abejusnie

Buiwes| 1aypny o) Buissauboid 25 9°6 Wd-O"

UORUAMAU] === Ja30ie] — |Enov

- - - -
= = = =
a = = o |
- ) (n ) =
o cr cr =
- i . h oz-
a
o |
L]
rok o
3
rS m-a
=1
rﬁw o
- 00T
QoL 0oL Lozt

sawoIne aaysod Buwed adoad JO 5% 5 WET

UONUAAAI] = J20ue] — jEnPv [l

04 1314
FQ3 1314
-2 1314
CIRENE!

gz~

afigjuaiie]

7 L

uogedyienb e Buined o, £°5 WdI

Pay3 Buuinsesapy

UDHUBMBIU] e 13048 | meee 2Oy N

- - - -
= = = =
= by . Ty
- n - -
= = = =
- = m~ =
o =4 o cr

abrjuanag

00t 0ot

uonePadxa o) urd sudISSas gy,

UONUBAIANY] = 130581 =  [ENDY I

- - T
= = =
= = =
= = =
e o pas
Cr oF e

=
=
-
-

o

ERRUBHRY
abmuaIE

SL

JU3||92x2 Jo poob Asas se Paloud Bunes syuedidiped o,

SL

UOQUAAIAN] w1308 ] weem  (ENDY N

o -
= =
. S
- =
= -
- )
o L=

Q2 13/14

-
—
™
= |
o

sbEUBIIE

Qi

dnosb sawoysnd jabue] 3y woly syuedpiped 2

JejuAb uA nepaunwios Jsuy SSUNWWOD

@

Ayjend) buLinseapy

aloid uonisuels) Ajlwed:g paloiy

SIS @J 3npy buiroidwy §I7

sanIunwwo) Buiuiea

Page 63



UDQUBAIBIU] e  JO0UE ] e

04 13114
Q3 1314

FQ2 13/14
FQ1 13/14

urnu suoissas Jo J=aquuny

leny Il UONUAAIBIU] s 12018 == |ENY A
= - -+ -
3 3 = 3
- - - -
o o = — -
I- z-
Lo -0
LI - [t =z
E :
z 3 e
-4 4
£ = T
¥ L
§ g Lot
sjuedidued |ENpMIpU] JO Jaquiny

Hoy3 Buuinseap

‘peys buAld ybnoayy pasayo sswwelboud |eleulsod/|eleusiue Uyl BIA SpeWw 2q 0S| |Im sa1Balens 13 pue s|ellaiEs Aujulg

alosgd Juswasbebug Apwey sy pue sdnoib diay y=s ‘sasunod Asaxjood se yons sdnoub pue suoissas Buiuiesy und Apedo] ojul saibaieis uxe spnpu s 3aaload siyy

34 5, PIys 3y wnoybnoayl spgedydde =g (s sabessaw syl jo Ausw Ing

Apueuiwopaad usappys pabe jooyds-sid saey oym saijiwe) 01 patayo 3q [m Asyl "wapuel ui o sdnoib J3|ppol pue Ageq Bunsixa jo ped se unJ 3Q ||IM SUOISSSS asayl

Angoy |edisAuyg ‘Aejd ‘uonewuoyul fAages

pPrYyD Buieqpeam Apwes luonuanN smojjo) se saidol paiguad pliyd jo Alsuea e buaaod swwesboid passnooy Ajlwe) yasm ¢ & asjoaul [pm 102load Acusbe-nnw syl

uondasaq afoad

Jjejudb uf nepaunuwis Sy SeJUNWIWoD

b

swuweiboid jejeuysod:1 psloid

siea\ Ale3 syl ul pels bulAl4 e buipoddns TOH

Sa1IUNWLWOD JD1Yl|edH

Page 64



UONUAAIAIU] s 13008 = jenpy N
- - -, -
= = = =
] - 5 o
T ” ) -
O (= (=4 L= g
: : : > on-
o
o 3
a
foz S
S
oE ©
- or
ey ‘oS
2dod 0} 3|qe 1a11aq [2a4 oym sJuaued Jo % Z° T Wd-IH

Pay] Buuinsesapy

LO
(o)
UOQUAMIAW] = 12008] = ey I UOQUAAIAIU] = J30ue] — |Enpv Il UOQUAAIAIU] = Jafue] — |(enpy I ()
(@]
- - - - T T - - - - - - a
= = = = = = = -] = = = = (al
= | = = = = = o = = = s o
- m I = - ) () p T oy ] =
=4 o o o (=4 =4 o = o cr o o
0z- oz- oz-
" 3 L 0
0z @ e ® T
o 2 e g & g
e 2 e 2 o =
0B o B o o
gor © oot * = LR
HY ozt 0oL 0Tt 8
uogelsadxa 0 un Su0Issas oy Ju2|j20xa Jo poob Aaa se Palod Gunes sjueddiued 8 dnosb sawoisnd jabie) syl wouy sjuednoued o,

Ajjend) buLinseap

jeuAB uf nepaunwis Sy SeRIUNLLILLOD awnueiboid [ejRUISO4:T aloid

siea ) Ae3 syj ul peys buid|4 e buipoddns 1OH
sa1jIuNWwWo) J121yjjeaH




131sn|3 IAW ul Bupuuna Ajuo joid se paaowaus 13aload

uondiosaqg 12load

JejuAb uA nepaunuwio Jsuy S8IUNLUILIOD

b

SuoISSas [ejeuajuy Ajlunuwuo):z aloid

siea ) Alde3 ay3 ul peis buld|4 e Buipoddns 1OH

s IuUNWWo) J31YyljeaH

Page 66



UOQUBAIBIU] = 13008 — |Emy Il UOQUAMAIU] e J2fie] — eny I

- - - -
3 § 5 S
= by P -
or or (=} o
ro
s
= =
£ had
u :
=nu1 - 09 o
o8
L6 g 00t
urd sudiIssas JO JaquinN sjuediiped [ENPIAIPUT JO J3gLUNNY

Hoy3 buunsesap

'sqnja/suoissas
sypods 03 ssa02e 40 Apuniioddo pajiwl) si 2294 SU3YM S2UNWWOD uypm s|doad Bunod Joj saiunuoddo Ayjanoe jeaisAyd spinosd o3 si 3p=loud syl Jo asodind Asy aylL

‘uiseg Ajydised uylim a3is SaWWEDISSIIS |BUOIIpPE T 1sE3] 38 dn Buiyias aajoaul im yoaloud siyy ‘uoiyippe ul

‘sawenyaslls 03 uoewsoiul Buuojuow Buipiacag ‘suoissas Buluwiely sawesiasils Bbuibuesry ‘paajoaw 336 03 ssssunjon mau buibeanosug Ag wiseg Ajpydised
uiy3im s331s sswesisans bunsixs uiejuiew o3 Juswdojaaag spods pue OAVD ‘ss1alas YInod yum Bupjiom wesy 35014 seniunwiwe) syl sajoau jm peload syl

uonduosaqg 2load

jejuAl u/d nepaunuwio JSIy SeRUNWWOoD sawenyaans: 1 paloid
buiag j12m |ed1sAyd Bunowoid ZOH
sonunuuwo) JoIiyjjesH

Page 67



UORUBAIAIU] = J130UE] = ey

13714
Q3 13/14

- -
= =
™ m
[ =
cr oF

Q4

abejuenis,

QoL 0oL 001

uoneadxa 0] un SUDISSas &y

JejuAl uf nepaunAd Sy SO UNWIWIOD

b

UOOUBAIAU] === JI0UE| = [ENPY =

- 02
L ov
L os
- 08

¥2 58 -

0oL
=-0ZT

5y vods u) uogedidiued seinbay #7 WdIH

alFjUSsdIn

a3 buunseap

Ajjend) Buunseapy

UOQUANAIU] == (308 = |enpov

- - - -
= = = =
= jas] =2 o
- = ) e
or o o o
0s
0L e
£
i
e g
=]
00t o
oot 0oL Q0L 0oL sl

dnosb J3welsnd jabue] aug woly ssuedpped 2

sawenlaans: 1 pealoid
buiag |am [edisAyd bupowo.id ZOH

sanIuUNWWo) Iaiyjjeay

Page 68



100l0id uonisues| Ajwe{ e

ajdoad Buno A yum suoneudsy
Buisiey pue uoneyipalody bunowold e

AjIsiaAlun s,ualpjiyy e

100[01d uonedionied YyinoA e

sowebiloos—e (aby Alewiy)

(eby Asepuooag)
SHOISSOS {EIEUSIHY AHURLILOS—e sjUI AlIWE PUE [0040S jo8foid podssed Ajiydiee) e
oswwelbold [eleu}sod e pefoidvewiholdTiteied—e

JUSWIAJOAUT AJIUNWIWIOD

saljlunwwo) J31yjjeaH saniunwwo) buiuiea

sanIuNWWo) snotadsold

1se3 shsjjeA PIN

Jeped uf nepaunuwia S SSIIUNLIWOD

JusWuIsA0D) YS|app

niwk) yaeipomAp) &wﬂ X

+10T Yyouew 3523 sAaj|eA Pl - 423sN)D

yLIELOZ SWa)l payul| uoedNp3 — JSii4 SARIUNWIWOD JOEAXT Bje UOUUAL

Page 69



UDGUANIEIU] s JOEUE | e JEMY UDGQUAMABIUT s JEEIE) === |ENPY N

. = L X

= o & o

. T} ] B

-y o o or
ro
)
B’

= =

-3 = m
s & -
iy
e i«

: L i Lot

| FL Fil oL o

Il SUDISSIS JO JBQUny SIUEQINE S [BNPIADUT Ji 13 qLLny

Hop3 buunseoapy

USIBAIGO W pue Bumippng 3juspiyjue)

Wrop 1oy ssaadwy o) ssaag

sanbiuyss ] matarRul

{3d we uoissas jexydesd Bwpnpwn ) qol e soy Ajdde oy moy

sanbiuy»a) yoieas qof

ajepdpn pue voneredasd oD

332 Bbuidaayawiy ‘abenbue) ‘sauoyd ajpiqow jo asn Buipnjoul sinolaeyaq ylom Je Jiseg — Joadx] siadojdw] Jeyp

- E R E B e

SEPRDW A yorym nusm AppgeiAcjdwa syl w sdoysyiom 3y} IBAlEp s siejiom poddns yuswAojpdws yynod ayj

s nuaw Appqedojdwa we yo ped se papiacad 51 Bunmery pue poddns ybu sy aansua o) J1ysoubelp pue JUBMSSISSE S||INS [EIJUISSD

ue 2aey s 2uwmelboig podsseg Ajpydizes ayy o3 paiiaal jenpiapu yael ajenndordde p awnwesboag jrodsseyg ayy a0y Ajdde o3 2)qe 2q o3 way) bugseddns
puE seale }5H4 saipunwwoe) w 3jdosd Gunod Buibebus Joy Ipqisucdsal aq M s1aye poddns JuswAojdws Yyned ay) -10}3res ajeand ay) 1o susiyesiuebio

g5 wypm saypa saunpoddo juawlojdws sjqewelsns ojul papodssed Buiaq 2u0j)aq ajdoad Bunod Joy ssipunpodde Juswade|d diysanjuasdde wiay

Jzfiuo|] pue syjuow g ‘Ya3M g uni [im swwesbosd ayy "sisupied gg pue ppuncy ybnoiog Ayunod Ajpydizes ypm sspunjiodde Suraien) pue adususdes yiom
Apjenb 328 o3 ‘swwesbord yrom syy uwo Jou pue paiojdwaun si1e oym ‘Fz-01 pebe ajdoad Bunod so) Apunjioddo ue sepracsd awwerboig prodsseg Ajpydisel ayy

uoydizsag oaloag

FLE Ul ARpeLRS (kY SORENee awwesboid podssed Ajpydiees 1 paloid

wawabebuasip pue wawhodwaun ypno), Bupnpay z2d

SaIuUnuuIuo’) si oladsoug

LD

FIOT YuiEw 3se3 shagen piy - 235N

Page 70



A —_— i | — 13 e a =
Uopasagu] yobue | renizy UORUBAEIUT 1eEue] jerry UDILSUSL] s (e0E) = iy
= = =1 = = = = =
= = = - = = = =
& = o = - z 2 = = =
- e = e oc-
I”_ r_”
=1 W EoT m ad m
" = I =
o€ g -3 Lo 3
2 = e Lea 3
(1]
LOTF T = b oa [oos
. LT
Lg
pAETRIERT -S| EOAL 10 ) BUMOG) LI 33U30unD
MOCE Bunndas cyuedizued Jao, J0°7 d-2d Wowm bupgaas Aaape syuedoyed Jo o 90T Wd-2d paaoadun sasy 3yl suediomed Jo 0L+ 7 md-0d

129333 buLnseayy

woguasat — jafie) —  emwy Uifuassiu] — 3afie) — |erpv . o 1efie) — Enpy ~—
N~
- - & = % = = =
= = &= = ) & = & (0]
5 & 8 & = = - - o
E 5 3 2 - M R ot- @
1 o 0 DI
03 -5 =5
@ g Foe. & o - & 5
o z ras = FLO¥ EFSE o] -nnw
B c Fe o - o3 €
i v
4
0oL ot ool oET 00 [T 0L Larr —
g 36 suogens JaBiey a4 B B
LOITE 2dXa Of UMl SUDIEE3S o uapEoxz a0 poob Ass se joaloud Buges spuedogqued =y dno.E satamens safue 2 wey suednyed 3

Apjend) buunseapy

JRUAD Ul PEpeUNUMS ) SORIVARRECS awweiboid podsseq Ajydees 11 paloid
uawabebuasip pue JuswAojdwaun yno), Bupnpay z2od
saniunuuo) snoiadsoiag

PIOT YiEn y5e3 sA3jep PHW - 235N




=
=
|
4
Cr
- -
ra
ol _.n_.
Lt =l
= =
baz = - £
- =
PR =
C -
I g
F3E FOE
E Lo LEE
Ur suQissas Jo d3quny SIUEQIDED [Enplapul Jo Jaquury

Hop3 buunseop

5'y seald Joy Jead ueipsuely Joddng

Ajjenpiapul so dnoab e se saypa ‘g abeyg Aay opu uoipsuesy 33 YyEnoayy papoddns aae Jayiom yui| 243 0] paijijuapl uSApjIYy> JEY) SIASU]-
SINSE] YIim 51558 ued jeyy s=inuabe sayjo yjo poddns yaes -

poddns Buipasu se paipijuapl 218 oYM USIPIYD Jo JUsWaA]oawl [Ejusied puE JUSWUIELIE [EUOIJEINDS ‘IRCIABYSM ‘SUEpualje 2aoldul o) yaRg .
sy n2yp Bupusssdre uysappys jo sspueg Yim sdigsucijej=d Duryiom wioyg -

yuwawabefussip jo ysu je ajdoad Buncd pue usspjy> 1oy poddng .

S|} [RI20S 10 anolaeysq Yim Apenoigied ooyss w saaynaylp Bunususdee sie oym usappiyp o3 poddns s .

saijruuey pabebfus uou pue jOOYDIS USSMESG JUI| B SFEII] -

10} Spooyds Yum Buiyaom siacyyo Apuey pue yyna s

uoydursaqg yraloag

FIOZ Yriep

FRUAD UL PEPOUNUMD J2y SORIVARANCS (jooyos Asepuonas) yur] Ajnuued jpoyps £ paloud

jDOUPS 1B [[PM 0a 01 3jdoad Bunoy Buruoddns 7o

saiunuuuumo’) m_..___._._ 5 0 |

3se3 sA3)En PN - 235N

Page 72



R R
L3¢

LR
SIRENE

UOQUANEIU] s  15E0E | w—— jErpy

25433 JB 13a] DURINDE g 07 Wd-]

- 0E

- O

L= UL T L N

___“__.__nm.nu_:n._"_-“._. —_— u._n.__-_.Tl_. = __..__u:.....ﬂ.. I
= -] 5 a
o e - -
— - — —
(i 5} i) 5
- 2
O
o9
08
=T

[0Y3s INCOE SAEcd 2I0W (224 1BUE S T2 WA

afliEjuania

Pay)3 buunseap

UONUABAIR] —— J20e] — |2riy

-+ - -
- - -
= — -
] ] =l
- - -
= ~ —_
£ = ¥

SHREELE

=1

Qi s

UOQETIada Y UNS SUOISSIT B,

i
=1
-l

BEELL AR

UORUAAIIIN] =

-
—

¢

-
= |
s}

(Wil

b 7 - [—

-
5
=
=
=

0

2>y

T
i a1

dnoud 13wasn Jafiey suy wouy sjuedicgped =,

Page 73

AleLedia

Ayend) buunseop

- JEJUAD L NEPOUNWAD JS) SORIUNWIWOD

FIOZ YER

(jooyps Asepuodas) paloid yun Ajwey g jooyps: £ paloud

[oOUPDS 1B jj2M 0 01 3jdoad Bunoy, Burpoddns 7o

sanunuuo) Gulwiea

3se] sdaep piM - 33N



TLATERN ET jJ3fE| — |2nidy LICUIRA AT e jafie ] —  Erpy Il
= = = =
o g = =
o 5 ad &
- = - 3
.
HOL
z fil
s 3 o 2
I o
- bor 3
oz
-0E
e Qe
L == £
LM ELICISESE JO J3gLUny SJUECIMLED JEMPLAIPUT 40 12qLiny

Hop3 buunseopy

5'¢ sead 1oj sead woerpsuer) poddng

Appenpisipul so dnosl e se saype ‘g 2beys Asy ojur uopswery ay) Yybnoayy paproddns aie Jayiom yul| 2Yj 0] PRIIUapl UAPjIY> JEY) SIRsSW]-
S2MS5] YJm }Sisse ued jeys saouzbe sayjoe jo jroddns yaes -

poddns Buipasu se p2ijjusapl 308 oYM USIPIYD jo JUSWIA[oAU |ejusied pus JUSWBIELYE [EUGIJEINPS IRCIARYS ‘Souepualje saosdu o) Y225 -
sz naypp Buinususdas usappys jo ssuuey Y sdiyseoijejss Guijiom wiog -

ywzwzbebuasip jo ysu je 3jdoad Buncd pue usapy> yoj poddng -

s|iYs |e120s 10 anolseySq Ypm Apenxiged jooyss m sanoyp Guouspsdss aae oym usapyr o) poddns 3 .

saljuuey pabefus uou pue [DOYIS USIMIS] Ul B IFRILY -

‘o) S|ooy3s Ypum Burjiom s1adyo Apwey pue yinog

woydasag paloag

MRUAD Ul PRpeURD JEY SORNERANSS (jooups Asewwiig) yurj Apweq jooups: paloid

[oOYPDS 18 ||PM 0Q 01 ajdoad Bunoy Buuoddns 2o

s2Iunuuon’) m_..___._._ 2a

PTOL YMEW I5E3 sASEN PN - S33E0)D

Page 74



UGHUBAMAIU] s J300E] e jEnDy HONUBAAW] = 30| —— [enidy

= X = = z = x =

g 5 = = = 4 = =

Z 5 - & : s & ) T
o L ] ! o
- ZF = =
s W - wi |.W.
E .

£ 1
9 Bl
i) i
Lra =~
|ooy3s je 1apeq Busigoe 5y o T d-2T jooy>e Inaqe IAmedd oL (334 18U o T2 W40

oyl buunseapy

LO
UOQUBAEI] —— 2fi2] —  EnPY UDqUILEII] —  32fae] —  jEny N
ra 3 x 3 ()
= = 5 £ = = = = (@)
5 5 ] L] = B = ] ]
5 : t > z 8 3 = o
0w
- 2
- -
u & g
- 3
-5 z
oot . 091
0oL i 6] orT a0 gL J0L il | Zn
LCEET»dEa Of Unl BUMEEAS o dnouf sswiojero 1abie] 3yl woly suedidqied 3,

Aypend buunseow

MR U PEPSURUAS JEY SORNTRARSS (lcoyps Asewg) yur] Ajwey jooyps: ¢ paloid

] o

FI0OT YiEn 35e3 sAagen puy - 2ISN|D

[couDs 1B ||2m 0 o1 3jdoad Bunoy, Bunuoddns 7o

sa1punuwuo’) Guluiea




UOQUBNEIUT weee  JE0IE] == ENOY I UDRUIAISIUL s 12007) =eem BNV
= £ £ = = == - ==
e S T S ol Il. — R
E 2 o 5 = E = =
& &) o %) . = o , =
-z
r by =
=
§ E c
bs = -
1_“_.ﬂ o
- .IM._.u
L&t
UM SUGISS3E J0 13qUWny SJUEQ|IE S [ENPLAIBUL J6 13 gLy

o] buunseopy

‘pualye o) papieddns aae abebua o0} 3| qe 553) 30e oym 10 YIEII 0} JIPIEY B4

Aew oym ajdoad Gunod Jey) o5 'dSIA PUR 45305 ‘S[OOYDS ‘4¥ ] YM SPEW 348 SHUI| Jey] pue paajosul aq o} 3pdoad Bunod 1oy a>ejd w aue saunseaw Duwpienbajes
[JE SINSuS [jIM JI0JEWMPIo-03 AIINE] PUE Yinok SyL SWnNic) 3y} jo 13yHs Ul pIAjoAUl 210W IWOISG UBAPJIYD Y] PIROYs ‘SIS0 Wniod YInoy pue siadgpo Ajue
pue yynoy 343 Ag pajejppioe) aq [[1sM SiY] "UWORENPPSIIIE [EWLID) UOU JJEWIOHN PUE SHP212 ANSISANI SUSIPHEYD 0F SIRQIIFU0D (1M JUS 3 A|0AN PUE SJUEDUILY

sraad 1By pUuR WSY) 0} JUBAF|31 3IR JEY] SBNS5I SSNOsip o) paddinba pue pasedaad aay .
‘yuasasdaa Asyy 3jdoad syy o) yoeqpas) sRAejuasIIdal ||B JEY] 2ANSU3 Of -

M3iA FAejuSsasdal B ARy o) pue SAljejuasasdal B 3q 0F SUBIW I JEYM JO FIEMY -

1 3ae Aaygy 3insus o) spdoad Buncd ayj ypm Jrom aspe (|1 siaxyoe sy sjpedivgied pue apnguijesd ued abebua o) JRFYHP FI0W IO JUIPIJUSI S5I| IR
oym ajdoad Bunod jey] ainsus o} ‘sBugasw wniog jomng Ajuwsa) pue shmizsw apim ybnoroq jo Asajep sy poddns o] 38930 uwiyprm buryew usisizap mbajeiys
ojul paa) pue sBunaaw spim ybnologq je sanss| jE20| SSAISIP pue asies ued A3y}l os ‘ucnjejussasdas Yyinod aaey J3ISN)D Y] SSOIIE SJPUMMIUOD IINSUS 0 )

rAjages APunmmwod pue WD PUNCIE SIASS] [EJ0] 0] USITE|2) U1 SMIA Nnay] asies ajdoad Bunod pue uaJppy> INsUa 0} J2pI0o Ul ‘s JIV4d Jorung dojaaap

saypany oy sjpdosd GunoAd ypim Bwysom [1agiom 435 Y3 Yyps voouniuoes ul) siayiom Ajpuey pue yynod ssprpul sy -sjdosd Bunod 1oy yuswdaaasp s{iys pue
uoneppaII>e Joy saipunjicddo dojaazsp ued Aay) os pue RSP 3y} ssolde suejd o) ynquiucd wed Aayy os ybinoroq ayj noybnoryy buysixe sdnosb aaedizgred
i nd fuimejuiel "sassadzond sanedionaed Yypm sbebus o) apge aie Azyj os ‘Yyread o) Jsapiey ayy Buipnjou ‘ajdosd BunoAd pue waapiy> poddns pue abebus o]

JENAL L nEpounwdy Jsiy SORUNWLLIOD

b

1paloud vonedioiued yinoa -z paload

saunwwos uw Bunuea BuoEyn #O1

Saiunuuuo’) m__.__.._u_ ea’

PIOT YiEn y5e3 sA3jep PHW - 235N

Page 76



LOIUSAIAIU] e 15 0IE | m— (£ UOOUBAURIU] m— JE0UE | e B0V
= = z = = = b =
W Iy W i o w b it
) — - - — — — -
= (=3 = o = pa o =
r O 2 2 - = at-
L 0w o
5 -
Los S
5 3
frt o
Los E rE 5
o g by g
I~ 00T “ \\-\\\\l o= _._W
0oL 0oL JoL oL L o
L ozt - e
wiea| o -0
fupzajun)os Jepnbag wejediomed oy 3|doad J0 9 58 Wa-D uoEdEnD & Guied ajdoad o 9, T+ Wd-21

1Poy3 buunseap

N
uojuasdaul —  ergay Il UDQUIAIEIU] —  I20IE] — lenoy Il N~
(O]
5 5 5 5 = = i = (@)
) ) ) 5 R = e = S
= = & = B = o
18 5
r o5
% 3 = 2
sz 2 e 2
s = % =
E- ] m e
o o ®
0oL 00l 0oL 00l il 001 00l L 201
uDgPad<a 0] Und SUGISSas 5 dnouf Jzwioieno 3aue] ayl woy spuedpged oy

Ayend) buunseap

JEUAE U NEpaUNWAD Jsuy SSRUNWILLOD valold uonedpiued yino, :z palolg

sanunwwon u Buiwiea BuoRyr #o1

sanunuwwo) buluiea

FTO0E YriEl 15e3 sA3||EM PIW - 433500



uousAaL] — Jafe] —  2roy UONUEAIBIN] =  J30iE] — ey

- o - - - - - e
= = _ = = = =) =
e = e e = - o =
—_ _ —_ - —_ _ — —_
m w . — - .IJ. - —
B - ] = Er = cr
—- 0T 0
L
-2 I oc -
- o hN -hp
- i e =
-+
L oo F g
|_““| _”m
L g5 - o8
LM SLCIEE2E L0 I3 QLM suedicree 4 [RRPIMELUT JO s2quunpy

o3 buunseopy

"I SUSSPIY D

JO BPISING UCHFEHPIISIE JSYFD W pIajosul 34 Aew Ay se Buyedisided ajdosd Buncd pue UsJPIYD B 40§ PRYOHUDLU 51 P3|3ARL} SIUEYSIP JEL} m._._..__n__._u__u_a___..-..,.“n

[Pra Az ) -Bugeyjioe) ade Asup sjenplrapul 40 sdnosb ypm ssanpasosd Buiplenbajes e ygim paajoaul 2q pue AJESS303U UL M puE sE sajnpow 3 dojaazp |ram
saa3pyo Ajnuey pue yPned 3y ewdoj@asp Apununuod 2o sjecb jpuocssad oy eynquajuor Appagisod ey seipape Be saangoe pue suoissas BulidoEasp ssaydom
yanod pue Ajnuej ybnodyy osje pue sdaiye busqem pue @lEsH PUE JHMompunoss yEnodyg padaajep sucissas pusllje o} paoddns pue pabeinoous aq |am
ajdoad Buncd 34) -syipa4> web oy sjdoad Guncd pue usappuy> o4 sepunedde Yuapl 03 ule |Im sJaqsom Ajlue) pue YPnod s spoygaw sajediogaed Buisn
“Spooyos Yy sul] Yyinodyy ospe pue jdom payoejap pue Yoeaugne yinodyy ajdoad Bunod sbebua jm ssanyo Ajuey4 pue yano t2) [ooyDs J2ug ynoyBnoaygy
SPUBULBABIYDE [ENPIAIPUL 5 PIYD E JOUOLW [[IM 5] "SSEQEJER [EJJUad 3y} Ul pajejjor aq 0} AJLOoyRne [E307 3y} 0] JUas puE sapanpoe paacddde woay papejo>

2q [m ssa3s10ay - Ajssaalun 5, USHpiyD Y3 Yypm 133510634 03 spdoad Bunocd pus ua4pliyp Yyim Gubebua aq [1m sdansop Hoddng Ajnueey 3y ¢T - 6 S4E2A [0OYDS
‘6T - +1 pabe ajpdoad BunoA Buinabse] ‘' Apssasiun Yyinoy 34) ojuc buwmssasbosd spuaspnys o Ajuunjuoddo syl os|e 51 34| "PRYUB] SHP34D JO JSQLUNU JIS0E WD
Supuadap pleme pjob pue Jaaps ‘aZucdq B 3306 03 Qe 3IE USJIP|IYD PUE ‘g — £ sJEId [oOYDs ‘£ - g paie usapyo s3@bae) ApSISAlun 5 USSPy, Yl CSSHAIIDE
Bumpuajye Aq Bulwes) o} Jus WL ajedsuciuap of Ajdwis yng s3ebse) pauusaiapadd smebe uswsasnoe ajedsucwEp o} spdoad GuncA pue usuappiy> asnbad
jou szop Ajpsiaalun 24| "pieme pasiubodas Apsiaaiun 5 USUPIYD B SPJEMO] HIOM PUE PIPJOI3d PUB pPIYUERG, 34 U] [[IMm SHP3JD 353 ] "SSJAILE [00YDs

jo yno paacsdde sof sppads, paynasds Bulued syuspnis ssajoau Paload sy jeiyuajod [y Ry yread o} sjdoad Bunod abeinodus pue sucleddse ISEIIIU O
‘syusas Bulpods pue Buludesy) ‘JRINY NS W SIJPAIPE [ooyss jo o ul 3doad Buncd pue usJdpiy> o uoiyedipnged sy} FSUbo>ad of swre AJSISAIUN 5 USIPIYD, YL

uogduasag eiodg

JEILAD LU0 NepounwA Sy SORIUNWILICD AusIpAILUN S, UUpIYD ¥ aload
sanunwwos w Bunuea GuoRyn #1
saniunuwo) uiuwieaT

FIOT Yy J5e3 sA3jEp PIM - 393500

Page 78



LONURAIAIT s 30—  [2m UOQUSMEN] —— J30iE] —  j2roy TTERNE TN e L T e |
-+ + + - + -+ - - x x = x
= z 5 = E 5 5 S E = = =
= o e = = & & = - e o =
¥ o Z- =4 = o £F i * = 5
|| —y—
m )
- e 95 . 6L7SE i .
T EEEL 93¢ - .
m g = a
} L m
= T e - w o 1
B S - boe =
e P »
L Loo
“BET Do 0dL Rt
I”—m -
s S e 5, jogeaysent e Buaed sjdoad 4o o T T
1eynbag uy e dued oym 3idoad O % S RA-DT BlIZ3| Jn0ge 3ngesod oW Sjdesd Jo 5 7 W4T UOREMIWOR- B BUED WU B % YD

129333 buLnseayy

UDTUIIAISUT

k4
=

,
-
=

12618 —

(REREIE]

1 .|
= =
- T
- | ]
™ -
or o

0o agi
uonepdxa o3 Und SUDIES3E B

erpy I

EERREEBEFR

o

TSI E AL —

Hl'IE'I_I:Ef'.IJH..j

A aaL

yafue)]

0o

dnosf sswoierd 1abue] 3y woy syuedngied 3

enpy I

184

Al A

aat

Ayend) buunseow

JENAE L nEpaunuAY Jsiy S0/ UNILILLOD

FIOT YiEp

Ausiaaun s,uuppy)  paloud

sanunuwwo) u buea GuoRyn ¥

samunuuo’) Guluiea

3se3 shyEp PiW - 935N|D

Page 79



UDHUEAIIIU] e JIOUE] e (2N UDIUBAIITUT wes  JOOIE]| = (BT [

¥ 8 ks ot = = = T
i i} o & i3 = = B
- fai) < " o _—
(=] oF L o {= =]
- -
- o7 Loz
baz F L =
& 3
=
OE & o -
L -0g
s 8 L oot
LM SLCISE3S JO SSCLUNY SIS diTE 4 [ERPIVPUT J0 I3gLuny

o3 buunseow

papaenbages ade spdoad Dunod 2dNSUS 0} J2P40 W 2340 YINo s 01uss 243 Ag usasdaac 24 [im sdapiacdd juspuadapul pue saIjIAIDE SROPJEZELY

‘SHPARIE BYPS Yo 0F UCIIE]RL it 2ouepind sapep |[viuRwdejpazp ey jo s4eme e jpdoad Gunod yim paajoau sanadas pue ssouabe Buunsus sy ruasdo
WIS S[2UUEYD UOIJEIIUNLILLOD JeY] 34nsua of pue Joddns aoy paiyiuaspr aae sjdoad Bunod sansus o} sa1poq JUEAD|SJ |8 YJIM SHUI| IEJUIELL [[1A JOJEUpIo

o3 Ajuuey pue YIno g dsI35 343 Y syu] ybnoayy pue soalosd ysag sspueey i syjul) 'spooyos Yy sjul] ‘qaom paypelap pue yaessne yBnoayy pagizuspr
=q [ jpdoad Bunoc i ss3abosd By o3 woRERS W S00YDS o) passed 34q jjIM UoIFELo o5 pue Juswdojaasp Guobuc By} jo Hed se paJoPUsIl PUB papIoIad
PR{|PARLY FOUBISIP SAEL ‘JUIUIAIILDE J0 SPJ0I3Jd [ENpIAIpUl 2aey os]E [pm 2jdoad Bunod a4 "payawm aq M siaquuaw Ajunuiucy pue syuzsed pue ase)d

aye} Jiim buluaas wonjejuasasd e pasiubodadr ase spuswaasiyre s ajdoad Gunod JEY] 3INSUS 0F JSPI0 UT APUNLULLOD [E3D] 2yl W Sa3iadas Woddns yanod ssyjo

Aq padapjo ‘suoissas suepd AdsagEp 40 2443 jo Wed se padasijEp Duwaq spalodad yym abebus o Juswabeinodus pue uoddns Yylum paplacsd aq s ajdoad Bunod
sy} 0} uoipppe urajedosdde adaym paajoau 2q OS[E [IMm sjuaded 2anoe Guiaq pue Joopino U] Jo 35N 1M PIJEIDOSSE 5)jauaq Yjea [eyuaw pue jexsiyd aap
2P0 wndd of JBpIo U SPUSIULITAUR JOOPIN0 JO 35N IPREW M sy CBursqias puE ypESY |BUCIIDWS PUE SIS 2] ‘Ss Mseq burdojaazp o} Bunejes saiagoE
uwi iebus oy ssapuniioddo apnpw M suoissag “paau sajdoad Bunocd Ym aul] m ‘sysienads Aq paJssa@Ep sucissas poddns pue asiuebio pue sUcISsSas

dBAlEP 1M S4E3140 Ajlue g pue Y3nog 3] Juswsajoal pue juswabebus jop sppads uo snooy [pm Ajissaaiun SuSJplyD 24y 'srdoy e syoads B o3 uoiyeRs

ul uswdoEAasp S|IYs pue BululES | WS WELUS [[IM SN30H 343 S oy SuaHpliyD Juswnjduwcs 1M sucISS3s ||y Uud o5 pue spdemy ucneBiaey jeuocijey ‘pasoby
‘sampea sods 'NWASY ‘T o0 SE Yons padagyo a4 |im saijunidoddo [eudoy uou osje nqg ‘ucijiuborad jEUS0U PTDUL [[IM LOIJEJIP34I0E 3] "UsIjelpaddde
B D) Wou pUe [Euoyul wieb o} wasy) qeuvs of ydom jo sa0aid Buo buo pue jenpraipul w ayedngued o 3jdoad Bunch 1oy sapunoddo spiacad s oaload 3y

uoyduisag adoad

JEIUAE Ui nepounwids j2y seniunwses |

LD

ajdoagd bunoj yum uonendsy buisiey pue uoneipaiooy Bugowoud -5 paloid

s=nunWwo) w bunuean Buon #1

s2iunuuuod) m_.,__.._._ 237

FIOT YyuERw 35E3 sA3jjEn P - 493500

Page 80



LCEUESAAI] =  JO0E| = =y UDOUSAEIU] s JECUE] = (€MDY B UOQUIAIFI] m Jbie] — (enacy
= s T : 4 T = = =
2 £ = 3 = & & =
5 & ] 9 ] - 5 5
& o o o & s = o
b= - i - : i b = az b
F 55
b —_— o
= 3]
' 3 = . -
= = Lah 54 _._mn_ tgy T
| E gl o
- z Lw 8
= g I e %
L a B Ly =
- BE) = . ﬂ
|_“m L - I
— 0% 58
T iy - e
wes| oy Buussjunjos - ;
sepnbiag w sgedizwied cum 3jdoad Jo 3, SR RETT funwea)noge axused uew jdoad Jo 5 ' a7 uegedyyent e Buiwel spdoad §o 5% T F Wd-ON

a3 buunseow

UOQUALEI] —— 320im] —  |EnY UOQUAMLS] — Jebie] —  Erpy

AR EAE
1504

=
"
&

SERERE|
03131
Q2 15/14

b_;
]
T

o

Page 81

B E
|
LiE |

afiizjua
alis

o 501 a0 D oL 001 Z0T
UCDER»d%a 0) U SUDISSIS & dreul saweozsno Jabues o woly sjuedingied 3,

Ayend) buunseow

JEUAD L nEPOUNWAS jo) soRiuUNMIMoS ajdoad Bunoa yum uonendsy Buisiey pue uoneipanoy Bunowoid :5 Palold
sanunuiwo’y w Bunues BuoRyn
sanunuuwo’) uiuiea

FI0OT YiEn 35e3 sAagen puy - 2ISN|D




UDGUIASIU] e 32642 — (BN UDRUILSIUL s 13602) ——  EnPy

04 1514
0% 1314
0z 1314
URENT

BN
P ILII

Un. SUQIS3 23 J0 J32quinpy SIUEQIDOVES |BNPAIDU] 40 J3QUury

o3 buunseop

suoissas Buebuo sy jo ped se swnsog Jomni pue yynod pue yeomyau Juadted ym abebue oy Apunpoddo ayy saey ospe [pm dnoab sy "os op oF Ysim

Az pinoys ‘s4adiyo 43 o Hoddns auyp noyim ajessdo of anuiuod o} dnodb sy Bugpqeus pue AJIIqEWERSNS WD SN0 OSJE ||1M SUHSS2S 3| “s=pAysay)| Ayglesy
pue usgoesaim Appue) arpscd apowosd 0 J2pS0 UL JS0D MO| BME YIIYyMm s3QIAGDE Joopine u 3bebus o) saipwey soy saajpunjioddo apiacad jpis saqaoms Ajlwiey pue
Pnocd ayj Sy} 03 UIUPPE U] "TSUMS535 J3)5e], pue sJapiacsd jsijeizeds 240 JO ROoMpUnods 'sJayo pEsy Ag pasaaljEp suoissas ul a3bebus oy sequmuaoddo
‘BuldBBIUNoA 40 pue Dunued) oy sajunjdoddo jexof o uocipowodd pom BuaqEm pue ey ‘Gupng 23USP LU0 SE INS SSTHPAIRIE IAPOALI [[IM SUHSSIS
dmosb 3 Wy SIENPIAIPUI PUE S3[ILUE} 3} J0 Spa3u 34} }231U 0} IPELU JOJIE] 3q [[IM PUE SH33M g — 0 USIAS] J0) UNd [[IM SUHSSIS I[oysMm B se Apuuey a3
PuE Ajuue) B Wy S[ENRPIAIPU 20) Juswdojzasp [euossad ‘saipisod ajowodd jjam ey saipunpoeddo Aiguspr o3 yE2as |Im 3ng ‘sainuuey a3 jo spaau Bubiswa
Y} WO SND0Y JOU [[IMM H4OoM S| * SNDO0) [ESISAIUN 340W 2 yjm s3iagoe o} palosd yuswabebua Ajnuey 40 sayjabo) s IUe] Wody ACU OF SJILUE) IpQEus

0} dnod b uoipisuesy e dojaaap |Im sia3yo Ajluey pue yinocd sy ssipunpoddo asay) yam sajiuey syl 2placsd o} 42pao uf 232 s|IYs mau Duiludea| ‘Guusajunjoa
IBunnesy puncde ssipuniioddo uw paajosu 2401 SLL0IBG OF Y| PIFCM PUE SUDIJUSAISIU 53R Pa3u 30U op A3yl puly s3ue) 43 uSYO 4V 1 243 YyBnoayy

s3I Ades pasieRads 40w S5DIIE WY} IQEUS 0F UWFEWLOUl puE JWoddns ypea ssapuie) spiacsd of WE SUDISSSS 3] "SUDISSRSs Jauabog sIjwel pue s3Is1A
Iuoy ‘Ydom paysejsp pue yoeauagnoe yhnoayy spaau Buibsaws gm saiue) sbebus saayuom uswabebua Ajnwey yuesaud Jyuswdojaasap |euossad iz Joddns
o3 saipunipoddo ssaa3e pue Ajlunuiwo> [e>o] J=yy Yy m pebebus asow awodaq ued Asyy Jey) 42pd4o w ‘Swwesbosd ssapabo ) s nueq jo abeys uonapduos

e ‘saijuuey ypum 2bebus o} Sucissas dojaAap 1M JO0JEUIPI0-03 PUE S433440 Apuey pue yynod sug paload juswabebug Ajuwey ‘3sd14 saiuae 4 yis Gurga o s,

uoydussag aioag

JEUAD UL nepounwiks j5y SoRUNLILOS palold uomisues) Ajuuey :z paloid
SIS 241 ynpy Guiaoadwi SO

b

FI0OT YiEn 35e3 sAagen puy - 2ISN|D

sS201unuuumo’) m_..__..-._ ea

Page 82



UDUIAEIU] e J2EIE] ——  |erpy UM IIT 18618| — |enpy UORUSAIBIUT s J505E | mem  (EAITY I
- - * * % ¥ - L » = = -3
3 3 E E a = E} 3 g5 B B
= oy (] — w m. m. m.. m ..”.u mﬁ- m
- £ _.HY ..H1 e i i i L iz . o A -
g i ro
- o o
= .unl,u s o © &.
= = w 2
s e e =
lie & oy B =
g : C = %
i e L3799 £3°30 bis
oe ~ 08 LS8 L oo
Buue a) seupny oF Buissasboad oy 0°C Wd-00 £3LI0OING 2AGe0d DUILED 3002 20 % 'S a0 ugsgedgent @ Buimed 9 093

102)33 buLInseoaw

UORUIAATUT wRhEe] —  jenoy AU — 33EIR| —— Eriy I ™
(0 0]
x T . x z % z * )
i} o o & = = = o O
il ) ] _ T il ) p— a
r &t Cr 2 £ = 4 o
o B8 o
= - - 1]
| @ B o
=| 0 L. B
e 2 o8 =
o =
= =" -ES S o
T el
E o
a0 001 0a. r oL 0ol Qe Do 201
AOOBESCNS 0 LI SUQISEAE 3, dn et sawwojers JaBie) M woly suedingeed %

Aypend) buunseapw

JEJUAL Ll nEPOaUNWAD JSiy SORIUNWIWLOD Paload uomisuel ) Apjuwey 7 paloud

SIS a1 Ynpy Bulaoadwiy §57
sanunuwo’) buluieos

FIOZ Yyriew jse3 sAIen Py - 215N




UOUSAFIU] e 1300E] mee BN LOOUBAIAIU] m JEOIE | = (2N
= z 2 = = 5 3 =
B = = =3 = =
& & (=2 g - _ _ ; ; T
0 -0
T -T
z -
B 3
e = e &
s - —n e ]
Im |m
Lg =3
UM SUDISS3E Jo J3qLUnpy juedoiye [ENPIPUT JOISquuny

Hoy3 buunseapy

"MHels bulAly yEnodyy padayo sswmedboad ejeugsod fjejeusjue ) 1A pewW 34 o5 [|Im Ss210a3ed)s PX] pUE S|eddayad Aaqug

reloag yuswabebugz Apnuueq sy pue sdnoab djay y=s ‘sesanod Asayood se yons sdnodb pue
suoissas Duluiesy una Ajed>o] oyu saabajens yx=a apnpou s Pp=load siy) =) s, pye 2493 3noybnoayy sjqesjdde 2q [[um sabessaw a3 o Auew ng Apueunuopaad
uzdp|iy> pabe jpoyrs-a4d aaey oym s2I|IUEY 0} padayo 2q [[Im A2yl "wapue) ul 40 sdnoab Ja|ppo} pue Aqeq Bunsixa jo ped se und 2q [IMm SUCISSDS 53]

Agraagoy [edisAyd
Ae|d

L E LI ]
Aysyes pliyd
Buaqam Ajnuey
ucaInN

@ & & & & @

smo|oy se sidog paaguas pliy> jo Ajpuea e buaacs swelbosd passnaoy Ajluey yaam § e aajoaul |1 psload AsusBe-iypnw syl

(s3264e) mo| 2ouzy) oeload Jo)id - uwonduosag Jo=load

Al ul nepaunwis Jsy SORIUNWLWGD paloid jerewsod 1 P=loid
siea) Ape3 ayy u pels buiA|4 e Buuoddns 1OH
sanunuwwo) 1a1yjjeay

FTOE Y2iEl 35e3 sA3||EN PIW - 423500

Page 84



UDUASIEIU] s ID0UE | e JEFY
= ;3 = X
& 3 3 3
w ¥ =l -
& = o
OF -
o
FOE. &
g
o
i M
=
c @
ik 1
L= -0z
s
adoa oy ge rapaq |29y oym spuased o e 2 T ;
3 L' Wi

1ol buunseap

LU AIIT = 13508 — ey WU AT wfie] —  Erev %
< - = - = = = = )
& B 3 = E 5 2 E S
5 2 3 = z o 5 = ©
o (=] H = -

= - - = = g2 ol

e 5
e = e =
@ 0 w g
0] m W oo
a1 GO

0ak &1 jau} 3 T o

IDGRISCNS 0] U SUGIS3AS % dnaufl Jowojens Jabiey 3y woy suedpgeed 3,

Aypend buunseow

JEIUAE LA mEpOUMWUIASD JSU) SR IUNWILLGS

b

paloud jereuisod -1 paload

sieaj Apeg agyg w pes buiAy e Bunpoddns 1oH

S2NIUNWIWOY) 1D1Yljeay

FTOL Y=

3se3 sA3yen PIW - 1235ND



100[0id uonisuel] Ajweq e
a|doad
Buno A yym suoneaidsy bBuisiey
pue uolje}Ipalody buijowold e

AjIsianlun s,ualpiiyy e

sowehloos—e
108[014 uonedioiied yinox e
SUOISSOS fejeUdity AlttRtttio—e 100l014 Modssed Ajiydiee e
(eby Atepuoosg)
awwelbold |eleuisod e (aBy Atewig) 1ooloiguowihotdwguotegd—e

3urm Ajiwe pue [ooyos e

S2NIUNWILLOD PIfjeay sagiunwuoyy Gunesn SPUMNLIWOYD) snosadsold

IS sA9|jeA PIW

JEILAG LA MpESumuLD 15 sSeIjunuIwod
JUIWLIBAOY) YS|oM

niwk) yaespomi| p% whr ‘F.v

PIOT YyEW 53 sha|Ep priw - 133500
viieLoe Swia)l payul| uonednp3 - 3sil4 SAPIUNWWOY :JOeIIXT] Bje( UOUUA)

Page 86



UDQUBNEIU] e EEIF]| w—— Enloy UOGUIAUSIU] e  E0IE] = Eny
m o - =
z & & g " -
-0 -2
= _nN e _m..._h
o £ e E
ISt -0
| 4 L1 -oa1
UrL! SUOISS3E J0 A3Wny SIUEdIMES [ENPLAIDUT J0 13Uy

Hoy3 buunseoap

juwdopdws SQEWEISHS 3UN33S 0} pUojuaw pue pajoddns aq M SENpAIpUl 34y} ‘suswasejd we Fou TNuaw Appgeiopdwa a4y
Bunapduwod Jaye ‘usissas snNooy Jedojdws ue B sisujied g5 pue sjuswiiedap @00 Yiim aue ausy) ssipunjioddo Juswsde|d JEYM SSNISIP O} S|GE G ||IM S{ENPIAIPUT

'S34BUSG WO D9HD PUE UOIIEWLIDUl Adejes ‘Bunebpng

UO UOIIELLACILN ISP 1M Yygs ‘uoissSs ADESS) [EDUBULY B Spraosd jim NESUNG SMAPY WSZIID Syl "sanbiuyos ) mataasul pue (Ogd vo woissss jedppeld Buipmpow) geol
e a0y Apdde oy mol ‘sanbiuyss | yauess gof ‘uocideledaud AT ‘232 Burdasxsuwn) ‘sbenbue| ‘saucyd aqow (o 2SAR BUPNDW SINOIAEYS] M40mM JE Jseg - J2adx]g siadopdws
JeyM IPAW (s Yigs nuaw Appgedojdwa ayy u sdoysyiom 3yl 1saj@p s siaxom peddns juswlopdws ygnod sy * nuaw Axpgelopdws ue o ped se papracsd

si Buiuiesy pue poddns Jybu sy3 sunsua o] J3soubeip pue JUSWSSISSE S||IYS [BIJUSSSS Ue ARy e swweaboiy podssey Ajpydisel 243 03 paaiasad jENPIAIpUI YaES

Page 87

-ayeudosdde p swweiboag Jodsseg ayg soy Apdde
o3 2|qe 2q o3 wayl bugioddns pue seaue JSai4 SRUNLIUeT W ddosd Buncd Buibebusa roy pgisucdsad aq || SuRMKe Joddns JuswAgpdwas Yynod sy | *10333s ajesud
Y3 1o suoiyestiuebso g5 wiyiism asyps saiqpuneddo Juswiojdws sjgqeuielsns ojul  palaicdssed, Buisg sucyeq spdosd Bunod soy ssipuniioddo juswsoe|d diysaxjusadde

wuray sebuog pue syjuow g “¥E3M g Und |pe SwnuesSoad 34y rsuauied gg pue peuncd ybrnosog Ajunod A|pydasel ypsm saipiunjioddo Bunaiesy pue asusuadxs
Naom Ajjenb 126 o3 ‘swweibosd oM 3y uo Jou pue padojdwaun ase oym ‘$Z-91 pabe ajdoad Bunod soy Apunioddo ue sapiacud swwelboug Jodsseg Ajpydasen sy

uoiydiassagg adioag

/D L nepounWwAD j5)y SORIUNUILGD . 160ud podssed Ajpydeen:1 paloid

wawabebuasip pue uswAojdwsun ypno, Bubpnpay 22d
Sa21IUnNuIuIo’) m_-ﬁ._m-_n_mﬂ.-i

FIOL Yiel JSaM SA3|EN PIW - 423SN[D




1EENE | —

UDQUBAITIU] —

-
-
¥

[Enpy

.1
X
m
=
-

o

Q3 153,14

HDF."I.'.I-:!'.IEE,J

{1 vs
JLIBLU 33| ANDC B DOUNIas Spuediiied oy

UDQUARIBIU] s 13C0E| wem JEMDY A
- + - T
= = = -
- - = oy
- — — -
T m "l =
= o or or

r0E

-oF

a3

oo

L LS )
=i Lo
5

o, Buaas Aaagoy suedomied o,

A0FY 130184

UOQUANIBIUL s 15EIE] wem  (EMDYy N

- + .4 L
- = = —
= - = 5
b al ) P =
L= o or or
I
S
L an T3
L] o
=] m
il
5B o
¢ e
L -
201 Lot

WIDNY 104 DL
LI 3303 PYLIDD PRRIEUIT L3R SIUEOIIE T,

=i bu LINSseaiy

UDQUANEII] ———  z3Ei2) — ey

5 E E £}

T = ~4 —+

{73 o o o
14
x g
" =
= §
-
B B
oap O

0L 0oL 0oL oL 501

LOEY AN 0f UM SUDIEESE o

UORUIMISIUT, —

+
=
=
=
3
=

2iie] —

er3oy

.1
i
-
™
o

o113

£
"
=
ir

EFREBEE
aFiE A A,

a0l 50T
wapas3 a0 poob s se paloud Buger sjuedooped 3

JEILAE L nEpounwAD Jouy SR UNILLLSD

FIOT YE=W

Apjend) buunseop

UOQUIAIaQUT ebie] —  |enpy
X = b =
- - - -
= - | L a
- m r4 -
= o ior oF

E!I'iE'iI:EI!'.-JHd

FEEREREREB

%0

B8 &3
dnouf saweogeno safiey 3y woy spuedidged 3y,

awweabold podssed Ajjiydiee) 1 1paloud

uawabebuasip pue JuswAojdwaun yno Buonpasy zod

SaIuUnuuIuuo’)

oladsouayg

s SAS||EN Pl - 4SSN

Page 88



UOQUANBY] e JBEIE] — |ENRY N BOQUANER] —— JefiR] —— |(Enpy Il

- X - b 8 x X - x
= s = S A o 2 a
x = = 2 5 ) 5
5 g |
L e .
L gk S o=
£ g
-0z |__|| 0z Mﬂ1
o T o 8
I_H _H
£ Lgr =
e
Ur SUQIES3E Jo 13aquuny SIUEdIDIVE S [ENPLAIDUT JO daqLLry

yop3 buunseapy

IDOYDS f0 SPISING S3ipagoe angongoud ‘amysod w sBefus oy aydoad Bunod pue usuppys woddng

‘siaeysiusied pefebussio yim sisweq snowas 0 SPSA oy Buyepspun

ey wewabeBug dpwed so dpwe 4 s punory wes ) segeba) sooyss pue saiwe 4 s 3Bebus o lEsssosu suByM S3IwEy Yoddng

SHII¥S UDNENUMNUCD BT30S PUE WaHsa jj@s wawsbeuew mive se yons sanss ypm poddns [Eudpppe Sunkba oys USUpiyD Yem sumissas dnoull uny

WA SiENL0 Apwiel gue yinod ay]

5'; iEad Jop JEad uolpsuE g Loddng

Ajenpaipu so dnoud B se Jawgie ¢ abepc Aay o wossuel 34y yBnosy pauoddns auE JSom juY 349l 0L DSGLUSDI USIDEYD B 3unsug
SANSS| YUM ISISSE UeD JEY sanusde Jayo o poddns yaag

woddns Buipasuy SE DSYIUSE SUE DUM USIDPYD p0 JUSWSAoNU] JEjusied PUE WHWLIERE [EU0QEINDS INHAEYS]D SIUEDUSUE 3nadus oy §332
sanynoyy p Bususuades Uaup)iyD J0 SSAUE] Pk sdysucieEs Buyiom wioy

tuawadebuasip yo ysu e sdoad Bunad pue uauppua o woddng

SHjiWE BSOS IO JNMAEYS] yiis AEnaiued j0ogos @ s3ynoyep Bunusuedas aue oym uauppys o woddns smo

saiwey pabefus vou DUE POYTS USSMIEB] YU E SEAD

ol sproyas yee Bupuos siaowo el pue wno ), vorgdirssag 3axeloag

JELAD Ll nepaunwis jsiy SeRIUNWIWSD (11-8 pebe uaippyn) yur Apwe jooyps 1 P2loud
jooyos 1e ||IPm og 03 aydoad Bunop Buquoddns 7o
S211UNuIEoN’) _m_ﬂ__._..-.mﬁn_

FIOT YyiEw

=S sAS|EA PilW - 433EN D

Page 89



UDQUBAJEIN] === 150UE| === |(ENDY

x - -4 -
- = = =
o= ) =
=] [ L)
-
Lo
_—
T
53 &
-
== B
=
b B
FOOT
et Lear

jeOLRS g 2R DUnayTy SJURAIDOVES

Uouas UL

e — |2y

ebEuaTa

[0S IOy SIS0 A0 1S3 oYM SIUIRIUR 4 Ty

oyl buunseap

UDQUANET ———  32642] —  |Emy

... 1 ,.. 1
X - ] x - 3
= z L =
! . | =] - |
T ™ b | —
{or g LT for g L
I
x5
.| o
- 3
i
38 T
il agi 50T

LOEP adia 0 UM SUDICEAS 8,

UOQUIAEIU] e 1360E] —— 2NV

5
—
-
=
A
=

.1
=
- |
™
o

(SN ELIE ]

FEBRE

afRLand ]

'

0L L aoL
apEoNa 0 peob Aax se poalond Guges syuedimged 3,

UOQUANEW] = J2602] —— ey I

X
=
]
-
=

o113

oot
—
-
=
o
o=

03

afiE L An A,

oL Qg a0
dnouf szworen 1a6ie] g woay spuedinped oy

oL ot

JEIAE L nepounuwds JSy S unuLLoD

FIOZ Yuep

Ayend) buunseow

(11-8 pabe uaupjyD) Murl Ajuey jooyos 1 =loig

joOUPS 1B [IPM 0g O ajdoad Bunoy) Bupoddns 7o

S201UunuIuuo’) —wp-_n._n-m_ﬂn_

=2 SAS|EA PiW - 439EN[D

Page 90



UOQUSEIE] s 1017 = Eny UODUAUEIU] s 32002 = ey

= = x = = = = =
- - i - m o] m oy
= = 4 L i ] ] L]
. - =
& &) o o = o or =) )
= g
L _.E or
SE
st =z =
= w5
m = =
T = W
L &7 o
. i
£L -5 3 =
UrL SUOISE3E Jo I3 WY SIUEdIDOUED [ENPLAUDUL J0 13 quimy

o3 buunseopy

POOYDS (0 SOISING SN0 aagonposd ‘sawsod w alefus o spdoad Bunod pue uauppyD Loddng

‘siaeysiusied pabefussip Uiim SISLE] SA0WSE 01 SHSA 3oy SwyeLSpUn

‘ol uswabelug dpwe4 5o Apwe 4 s pundry wea | 1sgedo] spooyTs pue saijwed yum 3Bebus o dessaoau sseyms 531 wey yoddng

SHINS UONEDUMHUGD JEDhDS DUE Waslsa 35 Juawsbeuew pive se yans sanss) yum poddns |EUcg pDE S0nay oy Jaupliyo Yoem suoissas dnoull uny

W SiEnEo Apuse) pue yanod sy

s'; iead o) read uolrsuesl Loddng

Ajpenpeaipui 2 dnoul e se Jagis ¢ 3Beyc A3y ot vowswen a3y yBnoiy psuoddns UE J3NI0M §UY UL 01 DSGILUSDI USIDPYD LB 3unsug
SAMNSS| YU 1SIS5E UED JEY saiousde Jsyo o poddns yasg

yoddns Buipaau SE DSJIUSH SUE OUM USIDPE [0 IUSWSAIDALL EIUSIED DUE WSWUIELE [EUIEINDS INSIAEYS]D SIUEDUSHE 3adudus Oy y335
saynoud o Buesussde s LRUD)IYD JO S3AUE]L RN SOIYSUoEE s Buijiom wuoy

wawadeluasip wo ysu e sydoad Bunod pue vaupyd oL Loddng

SH|iWS [E1005 0 JNmAEYS] il ApEnowed poyos w seqnoyep Buoussads auE oym usupidD o waddns s

53| e} pabefus vou DUE DOYZS USBMIS] YU B eSS

o] Spooyss yee Buruos sisogo Guuey pue yna )y vonpdiiasag 3oeloag

-.-.

FTOT YriEw

EjUAL Ll NEpounwA sy SeRUNWILIoD (91-11 pabe ajdoad Bunoy) yur Apweq jcoyos :z 1p2(loud

b

jooyos 1e [|am oQg 03 jdoad Bunoy, Bupoddng 2o

S IUNIIUuo’) _m_:__._..-ﬂm.-l_

AN SAS|EA P - 12IEN|D

Page 91



UERUAAIAUT ——  338iE) — 2Ny
= 5, i i3
b L~ il L. -
Lo
b0
ow
3
£ Cingigi TeTal -
gl
[o0YaS Ty 13032 Bumanpy sjuedisiue 4 o

aheyp 18018

UOMUBAISIU] s JSFIE | m—

Emy

EREJU AT 13

L]
058 e
|Q0U2E MO0y IAQIS0H M0 (3234 GYA SJUBdIDILISS 9

1oyl buunseaw

-
=

Y
=
e

YDA e

aoL

32big) —— ey

—_ - -
~ - -
= = =
- | = =

) ™~ -
o o or

2]

MERRBRER

Qa4 oo Qo

vonePadia 0y Unl SUDIEEAC 9

1R,

alig)l

126ie) —  (Eemoy

TE 1T =T O] —

.1
o
=
=
=
=

- -
£ =
mu. ]
i} =l
o =4

afiRAoA,

iz | a0L
wapEoxE a0 poob Aas se afond Buges spuedogied 3

126i2) — ey

TR T T T e 1T —

X
=
=
-
=

(EREY

-
=
- |
-
o

3 1301

HnE‘IIiH!‘.IIE!d

DL Qa1 a0 i
drroull Jzwoiers 196ie] 2 Wwey syuedizped 5y,

Ayend) buunseopw

JEIAAE L nEpOUnWAS JSiy S UNULLOD

FIOT Y=

(91-11 pabe uaupyd) 3un Ajuey ooyss :z paloud

j0OYDSs 1B [|I2M o 0 3jdoad Bunoy Bupoddns 7o

Sa211Uunuuro) —w:_:u_ 2a7

3sap sAzjep Py - 493sN|D

Page 92



USGUALEIU] s JBEUE | e (BN UOQUIAE] e 12602 —  jENY
- x = X = |
= " L = F o}
o e = o o
: E : s
L |- or
£ b E
g 2 =
z =
=l -
g = 3 Lo
U SUOISE3E 40 I3QWny SIUEdIDEES [BAPLAIDUT Jo 13U

Hop3 buunseow

‘puaiye o pajeoddns aue 2bebus o) Qe S5 JUE oYM IO YoEIu OF JBpuey g Aew oym jdoad Bunod jeyy os ‘dSIA PUR gS10S
‘EjoOYDS WL UM SPEW SUE S¥Ul| 1BY] pUE paajoaul g 03 sjdead Bumod oy sxepd i sue saunsesw Buipsenbajes (B sunsus jm sojEwpIo-0D AIWEY PUE YIno Syl

Page 93

‘SWINLIDY SYJ SO JSYIIS Ul PRAJOAUI SUOLL SWO0DSG USIPIYD 343 PINOYS ‘SIS0IUC WMDY YGnos PUE SI32140
Apereg pue yanog 3yl AQ PaIEIIDE) 3G 1M Syl "UDIIEPPII0IE |BLLIOS GOl fJEULIYL DUE SPPSIY APSISAIUN SUSIPIYD 0 SINQLIJUDD [IM JUSLLSA|0AL DUE SIUEPUSTYY

‘ayediziped pue synguiuod ued abebus oy Ynoypp SuowW Jo JUSPIUSD
ss2| aJue oym ajdoad Bunoh Jeyl sunsuz o) ‘sOUjEaWw WNI04 Jound Ajual pue sbuigaaw apim ybnoisog yo Aesy=p ayl poddns o) '3E20 Wiyim Duiyew uoisioap
nbayesys ojul pasy pue sBulasw apim ybnolsog je sanss) jE30) SSNOSIp pue asied ued Asyy os ‘udilejussaasdal YInod saey J33SND IYY SSOUDE SSIFUMMLLLED UNSUD O]

*A3E4Es APUNLUILLSD PUE SLWILD PUnCUe SSNSS) [E20] 0 UDIE[SS Ul SM3IA N3yl asied Jjdoad Buncd pue USJp|IYD SUMSUD 03 JSPJ0 Wl 'S, | Jyd Jeuni dojsasp ssying
03 jdoad bunod ypm Gupjrom (ayuoms 435 343 Y3 uoipunfuos w) siaqom Apwe) pue yinod sapnpul sy 'spdosd Bunod soy Juswdo@aap SIS pue LWoIIRPpIIIDE
Joy sayuniioddo dojEasp ued Ayl o5 PUR J3ISR|D Y SSOUDE suEpd 0F INGLIIUCD ued Asyl o5 Yybrouog ayy Jnoybnoayl Bunysixe sdnosb sagedivied Jusand Buuejuiey

‘sassadoud asgediiped yum abebua ol 2jge a.ie A2yl os ‘yoeal o] Jsapiey 2yl Buipnpuw “aydoad Gunod pue uauppyd poddns pue afebua o) woipduisag padouag

JEJUAD L NEPOUNWAS jSuy soRiunumos paloid vonedoiued yinoa:g paloid

sanunuwwoy w Bunuea GuoRyn #1
sanunuwuwo) uluiea)

FIOZ YuEn IS3M SAB||EA Pl - 433500




UDUSNMEJU] ==  (8EIE] —— (ENy

W T
= =
= =
—_ —_
- ~
o o
i i - 05
0 _._m_
- 1R -.J.
..
o &
=]
T
o [0k
0oL 11
“0TT
uesy o

GULISSJUN|OA J2 REay U] a3deiie oun, Spuediipe d ¥,

UOTJUBAIAUT e JFOIE] =  JETCTy

x = x =
= = = =
sim P oy r
— - — —_
- = =4 -
O (= o ¥
i B D

E b OT

I

I OE

— 1?

5

UDRIGIEND § DILIED SjUBdIDgE S %

abEjuasE |

123 buunseopy

UDQUaNEI] ——  3fip)] —  EMY

CENET]
LEREUT]

LT

alie|l

ERRBERKE

0ol 13

Lo adxa 0f UNI SU0ISE3S o

(8]
=
=l

uoguanE — 33fie] —  |EMPRy I

4 = = =
E E] B =
T ™ b | -l
Cr or [ cr
- 1
= -
e =
C
m =
E =
o= | =
oo @
i orT

uapEmea 10 pood Aas se paloud Duges spuedomgied 2,

Woguara] — efie] — ey

CREERE]

- -
— —
= =
- |
] —
o or

LERE

o0k i |
drioul sewoisrs BEie] g1 ey syuedigied oy

AR ADA, |

Ayrend) buunseow

JEILAL LA NEPOUnWAD J5)) SO} UNWILLIoD

b

paloud vonedoiued ynoa £ paload

sanunuwwo) w Bunuea GuoRyn 1

sa1unuwuo) Guiwiea

FIOT YER

ysaM sA3jep P - 2=3snD

Page 94



= T o
= = %
=] = 2
= = ;

Un SUQIS53s Jo Jaquny

UDOQUIALEIU] e IZEUE] m———  (EMDY N

JE)LIN

UDQUBUSII] s 3202 | = (EM2Y N

X
=
w

£t

INEE

=
]
]

A3 15H

JECJLUN

i

SJUEdIIE S [ENPLAIDUT JO I3 quny

Hoy3 buunseapy

I SESAP{IYD O SPISING UGTIENPIIIIE JBYID W pRAjoAUl 29 ABw Ayl se Bugedioigeed ajdoad Bunod pue
L2UPIYD [|E 40§ PIIOJIUOW Si PS)|SAEL] SOUEISIP JEY] 2UNSUS OS|E || Asy )| Sunejgoel aue Asy) sjenplapul 1o sdnolb ypm saunpadsoud Buipaenbages e ypm paajoaw 3q
pue AJESSSOSU USIYM DUE SE S3{NP0oW Y] dojSasp [|IM siaoupo Awer pue ynoh sy| "juswdopasp Apunwwos 1o sjecb jeuosiad of aynguiiuos A|aaipsod JeY SSMALDE
G2 saiya3oe pue suoisses Buidopeasp saaxiom yynod pue Apwey ySnoayy ospe pue ssaoyo Bulag)am pue yy=aH pue jiompunoas ybnoayy paissjep suoissas
puaje oy pajioddns pue pabeinoduas aq ||1m ajdoad Bunod ay| 'spupaud uweb o3 sjdoad Bunod pue uaupjiys soy sSPunpoddo AJJUSP! OF LWIE |[IM SI3%I oM AjlueE) pue
yinod ayly spoyjaw aanedingied Buwisn 'spooyns Y spu| ySnosyl os|e pue juosm payselsp pue yareaayne ybmouyy spdoad bunod abebua M Sia0uyo AfILUE4 DUE YIROo.

‘a3 (eeyss 18yl Inoybnosy] SJUSWSASIYIE [ENPAIPUL 5 DD B I0JUOW [[IM SI4] SSEQEIER [EIIUSD BY] W paJE(j0D o o} AJLOyIne |230T SUYJ 03 JUSS PUE SSIARDE
paacedde wouy pajza|ed g | siajsibay “Ajssasun s uRupiiy 2yj ypm ia3sibeu og ajdosd Dumod pue uaupiys ym Buibebua aq [ saapopy Hoddng Apweey a3y &1
- § sE3d [ooYas ‘6T — $1 pabe apdoad BuncA Bugabaey ' Apsiaawun yinos =y3 ojus bussaubosd sjuspngs jo Apunioddo 2 OS|E S 249y 'PENUERY SHPRUD JO JSguIng
J12uy uo Bulpuadap pagme pjob pue sas)s ‘azucig e 126 o3 ajge sue uauppyYD pUueE ‘g - £ SIE3A joOYDS
Buipusye Ag Buluies) o) JusWw LoD 3jealsucwap 03 Apduns 3ng syabaey peuiwaaiapaad yswiebe juswsasasiyoe ajesuowsp o3 ajdoad Bunod pue usupjiyx sunbas Jou
sSI0p Ajsiaanan 2yl "preme pasmwboosd Ajisiaanin 5 USUP|IYD B SPIEMO] XIOM DUE PIEICIS. PUB  PRNUEY, 3G UIU] |IM SIPSUD 353Y] 'SSIJARIE 0OYDs Jo Jne panocudde
doy sypaus paynads Suiureb sjuapnis sasjoawn paload ay) peigusjod Ny way} Yyreau o} doad bunod abeinooua pue suojendsE SSESUDU 0} ‘sjusas Bupods

pue BUiWES| '[BINJNDT Ui SBMJPAIIIE |[0O0YIS jo Jno w 3jdoad Sunod pue uauppyr jo vonediniped ay) aswbodas 0] SWHE ANSIBAIUN 5 u30p)iyD, 241 uwoiyduasag oadoug

T - @ pabe usuppys syebaey Ausiaaiun 5 usAppys, 3yl "SSIHARDIE

Page 95

- JEILAE L NEPOUNWUAD S SOUNILILLOSD _

FTOL Y=

Ausiaaiun s,uuppiy ¢ Ppaload

sanunwwo) u Bunueay BuoRyn #O1

sarpunuuo) Guiuiea

3saM sAT|EA PIW - 433SND



LIDOUSABIIT s 13602 = (EFY I

1

T 2 3

o o

] o "
4 =

fod oF (=

afipluenia, |

wiea o Guussgunios

tenfiayg ul ayedizie g oy stuediDiped 9

LODUSAISIU] w  J50E] we=  |2rioy N

-
oL
03

|05

HI'IF]LIFI!'.I.:E-L.

0T
a1

~0El

BLLIEST oy 3001504 200 SjUedizme g o,

UOQUAAIBIU] s  J30UE| === 2012y EEE

b = = b}
= = & =
T i ™ =
oF L L=
- 0
S
e o
-
[ 58 g
3
Ll |
([}
lgg ©
oat
ol 30 |
oce gor 0oL 00k ot

uogedgen v buien sjuedinpeg o

=i bu LINSseaiy

WOQUINEIIT —  eBie] —  empy

4. a. 1 ...
£ = = =
= B 4] e
T m rd -4
= = = o

1"

& 3

2

e

- = 5

=2 a3 43 w5

L

£

LOREY AN 0f UM SUDIEESE o

HofuISU] —  336ie] —  |emov

o3 431

CARERE|

BEDBRRY
aFiE A A,

‘E 00t

apasE a0 poob s se paloud Buger spuedooped 3

UogUINS] — 3efie] —  jery

- x =
e =
= = = |
. 4 a =¥
» [ o

03 3

FlnE'!IiEl!'.lIE!d

oot

J0L Qat o oL Zo1

drioub sswoisro piie] aqn wey suedinged 5

JEILAE L nEpounwAD Jouy SR UNILLLSD

b

FIOT YE=W

Ayend) buunseow

Aussaaiun s,u21ppyd  1p=loud

s2anunwwo) uw bunuea uoRin 1

sa1punuuo’) Guluieoa

s SAS||EN Pl - 4SSN

Page 96



UONUIMEJU] e JECIE] me  ENDY NOUANE]] e (EEIEL m— ER]

. - = =
i o = =
= L] ] ]
= e o =
= . -
L 0L -0t
=z
- 0T MN - Sk m
~ -
s HE @
o ®
57
i -05 L ns
UrL SU0IS33S Jo 13 GWwnp SIWEIMOEG [ENPLAIZUT J0 18quuny

Hoj3 buunseopy

juswdo|Easp
JEyy jo sseme aue spdoasd Bunod yjim pasjoau) saauas pul seiousbe Buunsus sny) ‘usdo LIBWSL SIPULEYD LOIIEINUNWLIOD J8Y] SUNsuS o} pue Joddns a0y paigEjuspl

sue sjdoad Bunod aunsua ey SSIPOG JUEASRS IB YIIM SHUI| UIEJUISLW [[IM OJEWpID-00 Apwed pus yInos "dSo3S 343 yum syul ybroayy pue speelosd 3sn4 ssapwey
e SHUI| CSI0OUDSE yJie SHUL| oM paytelep pue yoesugno yBnouyy pagijuspr 3q v 2jdoad Bunoy, ‘ssauboad iyl 03 uoiiejau w fsjooyss o) passed o4 jjiM WOIJELIo4u)
o3| puE JuFwdoEasp Buobuc eyl jo ped SE PRUCIUOU PUE PIPI0ISI PI|SAEI] SIUEISIP SARY ‘JUSWSASIYIE Jo SPIOIS [ERPIAIDU 3ARY os(e | 3jdosd Bunod
YL PRHAUL 3G ||IM SISQUSW AJUNWWoD pue sjusaed pue aoepd axel s Bulusas vonejussaad B paswbolal sue sJuUSWSASIYIE 5 3jdoad Buncd JEyYI SUNSUS O3 JBPIO UL

Page 97

CAPUNUIWSD [E3O] Y] W S231ALeS Joddns yanod Jayjo Ag pausyo

‘'supissas suejd ARalEp 40 3yl Jjo ped se pausalap buag sposlond ypm sbebus o] Juswabesnoous pue poddns yym papiacud 3q |pam ajdoad Bbunod siyy o] uoppe
ul "ayEldosdde aisym paajoaul 3q O5|E |IMm sjualeg ~Bsijre Buisg pue JoopIno 3] Jo SN YIIM PSIEIDOSSE SPPUSG Y EIY [Ejusw pue jExisAyd syl sjowoasd o3 sapao
Wl SIUSLULICIALS JOOPRFNO O 35N PO [ siy) "Buisqam pue yjesy |Euoijowsa pue SjIiNs 341 ‘s|iys aseq Buidojaasp o3 buigeea saipaiioe w afebus o} sajunuoddo
PN |IM SU0ISSES Tpaau sajdoad Buncd ygim au u ‘sysieidads Ag pausalap suoissas Joddns pue asiuebio pue suoissas JBANEP |PM SaE0D ANUES PUR YIRO4 YL

JuswsAjoau) pue uswabebfus joy sppeID wo Snooy [ AJISASAIUN SUSAR|IYD ausysm ‘dol B Jioads € oF uoize|ad
ul Juswdoj@asp S||14s pue BulLiEs)] WD LIRS 1M SN0 SYT SE UM SUSIPIYD IUSW|dusod M SUMSSSE ||y ‘Ul 05 pue spaemy uslebiaey jeuoizey ‘paioby ‘siapesn)

sHods NYOSY ‘3 o0 SE YoNs pausyo g jjia saipunioddo jeuwaey uou osjE g Cuoiiuboossg |BULISHUT SRDUL [IIM UOIEIPEUI0E 34| "UIJENPIIDIE |BULIGY UOU pue
|ewaogu el o] wayl apgeua of Juosm o sa2aid Buwbuo pue jenplapul W 2jedizgied oy apdoad bunod o) sepunioddo apiaoad m paload 2y woryduasag padloug

JEAD U nepaunwAD jsiy SeRUNLILOD ajdoag Bunoa yum uonendsy Buisiey puy uonepnpauoy Bunowold :5 paloid
sanunuwon u Bunueay Buopyr o1
saunuuo) Buruiea

FI0T YyEW

Isap SAD||EA P - 493END



UDIUAN T e 15EIT]  e—

=
]
.

L)

Rk T
VIRER

E =Rk T

0l

Wea o) BUIS3JUN|EA

fEnny M

G

i ]

EE

oot

L gTL

NGy uT a3edieg OUM, SUEAIES 5

UOUart U] s

J20E | —

LT WERTEN|

1

i} 1 e iLal

~50L

ELILES 00y SASDd 20 Suediome 4 o

ey

afiEjuania. |

UOHUSASIU] s 130UE] === Enoy 0
- = = =
- - - -
=+ ) (] —
oF CF = L

L] ﬁE'I.i.IB:’TI.IEld

0oL o

angesgent ¥ buien suedpiped 5,

=3 bu LInseapy

uoQUAMEWL — 2fue) —  EmY I
S H E H
T il ™~ —
® -
| o
s §
- 2
= g
= DaT
@E ool 001 ot

porEp adia 0) Unl EU0IEE3C 5,

UOQUINEIU] ——  afie] —  |emoy I
= % i : 4
- — - -
5 g : ]
T m ™~ i
= = = o -
oL
-0
o2
o
09
5
00T
0 i1+ § aoL ozt

uapammz a0 peob Aax se poalond Guges cyuediomped =

afziian Ay

i}

woguana] —  33fie] —  jeriv

= = k=
" - =_
et | n ]
- - -
. 4 . b
1= o or

03 131

FRLOE S
aFELATIA,

48
=

Q0 Qat 20 1.4
drioub sswwaiero Jatue] 3qp Wwoy suediged 3,

JEIAE L nepounwidd jSi S8/ UNWILODS

PTOI YiEw

Aypend) buunseop

ajdoad Bunoj yum vonendsy Buisiey pue uoneypainoy Bunowold 5 paloud

sanunwuwo’y w Bunuean .m__.._._u_m_._._l_ ¥l

sapununuo) Guluiea

oM sAzjjEs P - JE3END

Page 98



UDQUIUEIU] e IEEIF] =  |JEMIDY [ | UOQUBAIEIUT e 35002 )| =  (EMY N

- - - - T = = T
o = = = - = - =
= = o .,: = = s h
— — — - = =% = =3
z 5 3 S z m -
-5 o
Lot or
2 Lbor -
L F £
= oz 3
= o
F T
oF o L
= -
e s B 5
i = E
LE =k —i5
uru SUQIES3E Jo 3Ny SIUEQIDEUES [BNPLAIDUT JO Jaquuny

Hoy3 buunseop

“suoissas Duwobue ay3 jo Jued s swniog soiunl pue ynod pue jiomiau Juaaed yum abebus o3

Apunioddo ayy saey osje s dnoab sy 'os op 03 ysim Ayl ppnoys ‘siayo 3yl o poddns ag) noyysm ayesado o) anuijuod o dnodb ayy Bulgeus pue Ajpgeulelsns
UG SN204 OS[E |18 SUDISSIE 3y 'sajAlsay| AYjEay pue LUoIPEISIW Apwes Sapsed Sjoweond 0 JSPI0 UL ‘IS0D MO SUE YMUYM SSHUAIDE Joopino i sBebus oy sapwey oy
saipuniicddo apraosd (s asqiom Ajwe)l pus yinod a3 Syl 0] UDIUPRE UL "SUDISSSS IBJ5E], puE suspiacid JSERads S0 10 NIOMPUNOID ‘SIS0 YESY A PRISAIEP
suoisses wi abebus o3 saipunipioddo ‘Bulieajunijoa Jo pue Bumiesy oy saipunoddo pedo| jo vorowosd ‘uom Bulagam pue yjjesy ‘Buippng souspiuod SE YINS
STIPAIE SADAUL || SUSISSSS "dnoab Byl WIYPM SIERPIAIPUI PUE SSM|IWE) 343 40 SPESU BY) 193U 0] SPEW JOJIE] 34 |l PUE SHESM § — 9 USSM]3G J0J UNJ 1M SUDISSIS

Page 99

‘Bpoygm B2 SE AUWE) Y] pUe ApWIE] 343 WIYIM S[ERPIAIPW 105 Juswdoi@asp |euossad ‘aarjisod a3owoad

(e 3eyy sapunpoddo Ajguapi 0] ¥a23s (1M Jng “sapwey 3yl jo spaau bubisws 3yl uo SNOOY J0U [[LA HJOs 34| ' SN0 (ESISAIUN, SU0W B Ylim ssqiagoe o 3oaload
uswabebus Apwey ao s2yjebog sawe) woay sacw 0} sawe; 3geus of dnoulb woiEsue.] e doEASP (1M SUS0WD ARy pue yjnod 2yl saijiunjiodde asayl yus saguuey
ayy apiacad 0] s2pdo Ul 333 S|INs mau Buiuiea) ‘BuuEejunpoa ‘BuuiEl] punose SSMJUNoddo Ul DPIAJOAUI BU0LW SLWODIBG 0F 3| PINOM PUE SUDIJUSAIBIL 3S3Y] pasu

Jou op AByy pulj S31|IIE] 34 USHO T4V 2y3 YbBrouys seorues pasyeads FUoW SSIIDE WSY] IPEMS 03 usiEuLIogul pue Joddns Yy sspwe) spiacad 03 WHE SUDISSSS
FY) “sSuUSSIS Jayiebog sEIWwe) pUR SHSIA SWOY ‘Mo pIYIEFRp pue yaesuyno ybnoayy spaau buiBisws ypm sapwey sfefus saxaom Juswsbebua Ajnwey juasaad Iy

Juwdo@asap [euosiad eyl oddns
o] saipunioddo SS3038 pue AJiunuuwo> je3o] i3yl yia pabebus auow swoleg wed Asyl 3eYl J2pso Ul ‘awwesboud rayyebo | sapwey po abels uolajduwod JB ‘SIjIEeY
yyim abfebua o sucissas doj@aap [|IM JO0JEUWIRIC-03 Pug Si3di4o Ajwe} pue yynod ayj ‘Ppalosd Juawabebul Apuwey ‘IS4 saipwed ygism Burjiopg uworpduasag padoag

JEILAL Ll nepaunds joy saRiunWIWoeD palold uomisuel] Apwey - paloid

S a7 Ynpy Bulaocadwiy 57

LD

FTIOT Yiel IS2M SAD|EN PI - 423SN[D

saipunuuuoe) Guluiea




UDQUSAEIU] e 1800F | w— Ergy

= x -4 z
= & = E:
" Lan ™~ -~
= = fal =
" ; ; o=
| —— -0
. b "
L JENA a
. [ 3
-
EFEL L gz W
:u}
@
- OE
~ e

Sunueay agung o] GuEsaboly suedpyied %

UOGUA ST

18618 — ey

afpllad 15

¥LES i

CAINIPNY IMYPE0 4 DuLyen spuedDped 0

o

UDQUARGEIU] e 1EEIE| = |EnPy
- - - -
= = =, .
& i - |
.. ™ r4 -
= ] oF o B
: : L : -
0
s |
lor: &
=
.
= 2
F0E 2
- T
L ng
06w
LOEENENS v Bz sjuediniigd o,

12913 buunseay

UOQUANEI] e 33E0R] — ey

— —_ - —
- - — -
= = - —
2 - | = =
T ) b | =
o or = or

FERERE
A6

24
aril

0G4 0ol 0L

LoREP adia 0) UNI SUDISEAS o

i
=
-

UOQUAMEIU] ——  12E4E) = |22y

EREDT
e R R
ENELE
Q1 13/

nERELREYE

afRian A

dcL 00t

uapEmz a0 peob Aas se paloud Duges spuedogqed 2,

UDQUINEP] =  136UR) = |ENRY I

b=
b
E= |
.
=

- -
- -
- =
= =]
~ —
o o

0313

"u: § FELORE
AR ATIA, |

OL 0an D0 i |
drroufl sswoieno yaae] g wely syuediygied 3y

Ayend buunseow

JENLAE L nEpounuwids oy eoljuniuuss

b

FI0OT Y=n

palold vomisues] Apwey - paload

SIS 2411 WNPY m,_..__}h....ﬁ_..._._m ol

saniunuwuo) fuluiea

ysap sA3jep P - 2=gsnD

Page 100



UOQUIUSIU] e 1B0IE| == |EMY N UOQUARIEN] ——  380IE| —— ey

= po = = x A p. %

5 & > & = = " =

3 3 5 3 . 5 = 3 5 )
a o
¥ e

£ g

k2 _M.1 e m..:
s B le =
- ]

F
Lo Il.., g 11

uru EUDIEEaz Jo A3 quuny SJURdNRIEL [ERPLAIDUT 0 Jaquunp

Hopg buunseoapw

u=upiiuo pabe jpoups-aud sy oym SSILLE] 0] paUalo 20 v Asyl wepuey w o sdnoub ssippol pue Ageq Bunsme 1o ped se uni 2q [ suoissas 2say |

‘Buraqgim Apuue) ‘uoptgnu Bupnpu soidog panusa pruo jo Asues e Buasod aweiboid passnoo) Apuue) oo B anjonu [pw peload Aousbe-gmus syl

vers Budid ybnouy pasyo sawweibosd Eleuisodieieusiue syl B1A 2peW 3q osie v sibajens 1x3 pue sjeusga) Aug

‘slaid wawsbebug
Apuoe 4 aug pue sdnouf dipy yas ‘sasinoo Adayood se yons sdnoub pue suaissas Buuen uro Ageao) ol saibaiens s apnpw (e pekoad sy

3 s.pIuR 34y noybBnouw sgedndde aq i sabessaw sy Jo Avew ing Agueunuopaud

“Auanoe easiyd pue Aed “Asies ppuo

uorpdmasag raioad

JEIAE L mepounwds sy SR unuwWwes swwesbold jejewsod 1 paloid
siea) Apeg auyg w peys buiA4 e buuoddns 1OH
sanNIuNnuwWo) 121yjjeay

FIOT Y=

ysap sA3jep P - 2SgsnD

Page 101



1213 bunseap

UOQUSAISIUT] = I56IF| == EMoy

= x X x
= -3 g .
o [ ] ™ —
= =3 o =
= i
~ - O
-
=
L ne L
[
&
- 28
A L]
BE2E L s

adogy 0 Qv 13033

334 oym, SjuaIRg By

(ENERT|

UOQUAAIIE —

RNt

zfig) — ey

b 1EF 1
Q1

uoryE adia o) UNl SUDISE3C o

ERFERRE

[N}
[
vt

I

alie)l

QLA ——

AERETIE

2

Aoz a0 peob Las se poaload Buges

2fie] — |Em2y
L - -
= = =
o o =
m {n ) -
or cr =

BRETHRESE

HnF.'!I:Fl!'.:JF.!r_-I

syuediqped 3y

HOQUINTIU] —

(SRR

1zfue) — ey N

aoL
driost sswsiero siie

1 ... 1
= x X
= L >
= -] ]
™ ™~ -4
o o or &
- - 53
o
& X
| g
s =
6B 5
o5 =
(g
oL
50T

i Wy spuedizged 5

Aypend buunseoapw

FTOL Y=

b

JEILAE L nEpoUNWAS jS/) SORUNILILIGS

auwnueibold jeyewysod -1 p=2loid

sieap Apeg agyy wi pyes BbulAg e Bunuoddns 1OH

S2NIUNWIOY) I2IIjeaH

3saM sAT|EA PIW - 433SND

Page 102



100l01d uonisuel| Ajweq e

a|doad
Buno A yum suoneuidsy buisiey
pue uonelpalody Bunowold e

sowebloong e
AlISJoAlun s,uaIpliyD e

SUOISSOS [BleudlUY AJluNWWO) e 108l014 Jodssed Ajjiydieen e

swwelbold |ejeujsod e joofoidjuetuhotdTjuoted—e
sur Ajiwe pue [0oyos e

S20IUNWWIWOD =PI je=aH sagiunwiwo) Bunean s2APUNLIWLICYD snouadsoad

Aajjea AsuwAyy 1addn

JEIUALD LA nepaunLLD Jo))) SeIJIUNWLIWOD
JUSWILLIBAOD) US|

nwk?y yaeIpomAp \.%whr ‘F—V

PIOT YiEw Aapep Asuwdyy seddn - a33sng
viieLoe Swia)l payul| uonedNnp3 - 3sil4 SAPIUNWWOY :JOeIIX] Bje UOUUA)

Page 103



UDQUANEIU] == JECUE] == |EMZY UOUSAOEIUT s 32002 | = jENOY N

= - - =
= = = =
-~ — i | -
= = =
- -0
=
-
_”m“ = E
® 2 3
i g g
Lor @
- o
bz
L o=
UTL SUGISSIT JO 13NN TPUEH I [ERPLAIIAT JO 13 qUIng

Ho3 buunseoapy

UOIJEAILDW pue Buip|ing S2USPILUGT

HAOM 0y s53MdW] 03 55340

SINDIUYIT | MBIAISIUT

(g vo woissas jEexizead Buipnpui) gol e oy Apdde o3 moH

saniuysa) youeas qof

syepdny pue uoiyesedaad AD

332 Burdasyauwny ‘abenbue| ‘sauvoyd apgow jo asn Buipnpou sinoABYSq JaoMm JE MSeq - PRdxg suadojdwl Jeyss

LEE B S

PRI A YDA PSS
ApprgeAojdws 3yl w sdoysqiom YT JBAIBE |[1M Siajiom Joddns Juswdojdws yyned ay) ' nusw Appgeliojdws ue jo ped se papiacad si Busiesy pue poddns ybu ayy
3UNsUS 0] MISoubelp puE JUSWSSISSE SHIYS [EIJUSSSE UE Baey |[Im swweiboigd podssed A)nydises ay3 03 pauasaal [EnpaIpu Yyaeg ajeudoadde n swwesbouy Jodssed

ay3 soy Ajdde o3 apge =q 03 way} Supeddns pus seaue S04 SRIPUNWLED W 3jdoad Bunod BulSebua oy ajqisuvodsad 3q M siEdiyo poddns Juswdojdws Yok sy

Liojoas ajeslad syl e suoiyesuebio gg

urysm aaypR saipuniodde juswdopdws Fjgeuielsns ojul pajicdssed, Burag asoyaq sjdoad Bunod Joy saiypunpodde Juswaze|d diysadjuaasdde wiay s2buo) pus syjuow
9 ‘FEam g und s awesboud ay) ‘sieujied gs pue paunod ySnosog Ajunod A|jydiael ypm saijpunjeoddo Buiuiesy pue asuauadxs yaom Ajgenb 326 o3 ‘awwesboud
Wjiom 24yl wo jou pue paiojdwaun aue oy ‘pg-91 pabe spdoad Bunod soy Ayiunpoddo ue sapiaosad awweibolyg Jodssed Aydiaed ay ) uwoeyduisag padioug

wawabebuasip pue JuswAodwaun ypnop Buonpay zod

S2IUNuIIoO’) .m.._:u._m.-_num..ﬂ.-h-

JEUAD L nEpoUNWAS joi) SeRIUNWIMeD _ awnwesboid podssed Ajpydises 1 paloud

b

IO YiEp Aajep ARuwAdyy Jeddn - 235N

Page 104



UEUS S]] — 135w Eri

. ¥ ¥ -4 ] % =
o " = = = = = =
o = o o o= o o o
L 1 g o
— : g
- s =] _
: e B le T g
1 i)
[ m e = 2
fes g - i =
w
oa ,.M o am
Foi 001
m
n LR i s
e oz ot ™ Lo

JuawiEze)d san[
2 Buunzas sjuedingied jo 54 02 Wd-2d

UBIUS U] e 120125 e 2r1 0

o furgaas

\anpe uedingied e 5% 902 Wd-Jd

=rivy [l

ROAL 10 BURO0) LT SAUE0I0Y PRt
BARY JRUYL sURdILIEd O % BT WED4

oyl buunseop

UOQU IS —

J0

=1 ol - [Q—

gaL a0 aat

ey

HHE A S
AR LA A

LT TE LR T jefie] —  |Enpy I

abiE L ED A,

dnosE sauoens jafae ay) woyy spuedidgied 3

LOREP 3N 0) UMY SUDIEEIC o,

UOQUINEIU] e 330IR | =  EMOY
= = = =
5 5 S 8
T m | -
= = - = -
0L
- =
_”ﬁ mr
o £
- 3
-9
00T
Al Q0L agL ozt
wapEowa a0 poob Aax se palond Buges spuedoged 3,

JENAAE L nEpoUnUAD 12y SR UNLLISD

b

FIOT YriEw

Ayjend) buunseopn

awnuesbolg podssed Ajpydize) (1 palold

uswabebuasip pue uswAodwaun ynoA Bubnpsy 7od

SIIUNUUIUIo’) snosadsoadg

Aapep Asuwdyy seddn - s33snD

Page 105



WO e JOCIE | e BN UOGUNISIU] s 5042 ] == ey

= - = =

| - . -

& , s or
0
oz

=z

Lo mN g
® = g
Ios

= —ont T

UL SUGISS3E JOo J3GWny ZILEdINIES [BRPLIDUT JO J3quungy

o3 buunseop

OOYIS 4O SPISIN0 s3IpAIIe Saonposd ‘asaapsod w abebus oy spdoad Bunod pue usupyd> poddng

‘saased fsjusied pebebuasip y3im sislLEg 2ACWSS 0F SHSIA awoy Buiyepepun

Joalodg Juswabebug Apwed 0o Ajlwe4 2yl punody wea| ‘reyjabo| sjooyrs pue sauuey Yyum abebua o) ‘Auessacau auaym ‘saljiwey Jpoddng
TSNS USIIRIUNWILLIGD S|RID0S PUE Waayss 35 ‘juswabeusw sabBue se yons sanssi yiis poddns jeucipppe aanbad oys usappys s suoissas dnoll uny
I 53930 Apuie) pue yinod sy

5y de@d 404 JElA uoiisSuer poddng

Apenpiapul o drioub e se aayps 'f aBeyg Asy oqul uoipisuely 2yl ybnoiyl paoddns Sue SSWaos WUl SUJ OF PSLIJUSP USUEPIYD JBY] SURSU3
SINSS| YPm Isisse ued yeyy seipuabe sayjo jo poddns yaesg

poddns Buipasu SE paIjijus@ SUE DYM U3IP[IYD (0 JUSWDAJoAL) |Bjudied PUE JUSMWIEE |SUOI]EINPS “IN0IARYSg ‘2JUEPUaIE aacudul o] yaas
S2NYNIUHIP Buiousuad s usup(iy> Jo SajlWe) ypsm sdiysuonesd Buiydoms wiog

yuawasbebuasip jo ysu e spdosd Bunod pue usaupyr Joy poddng

“S|IYS (R1D0S 40 noraeySq Yiir Apendgued ooyds w saanoypp Buinuauadxa ade oy usIpiyd 03 Joddns aan

saljiwe) pabebus UOU DUE [OOUDS USIMIDG WU B 33EIUD

103 SO0YIs Y Buijiom suaoype Apme) pue 4ino s

uoiydiarsag xaloag

FI0L

Yuep

JEILAE L nEROUNWASD JS)) SO UnUILWIOS

jur Ajlwe4 pue joops ¢ 1paloid
|jooYPs 1e [j2M 0Q 01 3jdoad bunoj bunuoddns zo1

sa1punuwuo’) Guluiea

Aapep ARuwdyy seddn - a2gsng

Page 106



UBILES] e jefis) = Eriy UMILEAS] e jefis) e =riy
= X 1 = =X = = =
g ® & 8 3 ® & =8
- m ™ = o il i o
o o i o . cr o o or .
L . oz L . oz-
ro ]
[ 4 ® g
g -
= ¢ > 3
les 3 oy
. i 1 e o
9760 2 s
b & s
oot £CE f
CiyEn: L
S [0S
COLDE JB 130230 Dunaiy2e 0, 57 W00 oge IAQE0T 20 (22 TeY] G T2 M-

Pay)] buunseayy

UOQUANEIIL e 13648 — emy
i - [ —_
s - &5 =
= o ) o
T 1 - | —
o o f=d OF

a4

alie| LA

Ge

-

=]

CENRERRP

QoL
vorepsdie o) und SuDiEsas oy

UORUIa ST 126ie] — ey

[SENETEE
Q11309

4 15014
Q3 1314

SEGE

=

SREFRE
H|'IF"|IJF.|"'.|IH.,_-|

-

ei3 §

Jug |3 a0 pooh s e aaliond Duges spuediiped gy

g
W
=

UOUAAIEIH] e  JO0IR] ——

[enpy

FEERERR
AfRLIET 1A,

004 Qa1 O agL
dnouE sewoisro zefee] sy weay spuediogued sy

JEILAE L NERSUNWAD JS)) SSRUNWIWIOD

FTOL Y=

Auend) buunseapy

yury Ajuwey pue joolps 7 paloid

[oOUDS 1B [|2M 0Q 0] 3jdoad Bunoy Bunuoddnsg 7o

sa1punuwuo’) Guluiea

Aapep ARuwdyy seddn - a2gsng

Page 107



FTOL Y=

UOQUANLBII] s  JBEIE) w= |EMy IDTUAPIRI] e TECIP] me (BT

= T o =+
= = % =
=] < | ] -]
oo m r =
=) Cr cr or

-0t

Ik

I_”r".-

HBE

18 LR

1EO1

i

Los
6z
UL SUQISII3 o IBGUNY TUEDIIOES [ENPIAIDUT J0 I8Ny

Hoy3 buunseapy

MEA aAjRjuSsIIdal B FARY 0 pue aaEjuSsaudal B 34 0] SUBIMW I JRYM JO RUBRMY &
-1 aue Asyj sunsus o} spdoad Gunod 3yl YYm o OS|E |[IM SIS0 BY)

‘ajediziped pue 3INGLIIUOD WUED
abebus 03 JProupp SUoW 10 JUSPUUDD §53) 2ue oym 3jdoad Bunod yey) aunsus of ‘sHlasw wniog Jownf Apuwaag pue sSunasw 2pim ybroaog Jo Asaalap 3yl JHoddns oy

‘g0 une BuljEw uoISIDSp
wbajeuys ojw peap pue sbuyesw apim YBnodog JB S3NSs) (B30 SSNOSIP Pue 3581 ued A3yl o5 ‘uoijejuasaidad ynod aaey 1315MN3 34y) SSOUIE SSHPUMWILDD SANSUS O]

rAgeyEs APUNWLLSD PUE S PUMGIE S3NS5S] |EJO) 0] UDIIB[E Wl SMa3ia eyl asiel jdoad Bunod puE usap|iyd 2UNsSuS 03 J9PJ0 W 'S, | Jd Jowng doj@asp Jayiing
o3 ajdoad Bunod yps Buiuos (Jaxaom 435 243 Yyism uoippuniuos w) siasuos Ajuueg pue yimod sapnou siyy spdoad Bunod aoy Juswdo(@asap s||IYs PUE UCIJENPIIDIDIE 40y
sajiuniioddo doj@asp UED AaY] 05 PUR JS]SN|T 3Y]) SS0UDE sueld o} aynglujuod ued Aayy os ybnouog ayy oybnouyy Sugsixe sdnosb sanediviied uauaind BuliejunEey

‘sassadoud aaediziied yysm abebus o3 sjge sue Ayl os ‘yoead o3 3sapiey a4yl Buipnppw ‘spdosd Bunod pue usuppyr poddns pue sbebus o)

uoiydussag raiodg

JENAE L nEpoUnWAS J2 SO UNWLLOS Ausiaaun sualppy) ¢ paloid

sanunwwo) u Bunueay BuoRyn #O1

sarpunuuo) Guiuiea

Aapepn ARuwdyy seddn - a23sng

Page 108



%

0cL

USSR w—

3 154

JaL

Eulwes
asused aow 3pdoad J0 % 2 # Wd-O

150IE) —

03 L&14

1 L3514

| InNege

[Ee=y |

UHIUSAEIS] == 1305 === (Eriy
A - x -
g 2 8 9
+ =
Cr o
& a
= =
5] (5]
o (=]
=3 =3
- —
L =]
w w
L] L]
Lozt
0z LL38 08

uoREIEent

€ Bunaed spdoad Jo sg T Wd-OT

1Poy)] buunseopy

BOQUIAST ———  30EIT) —

erpy I

.1
=
W
B
2
=
=3

- |
— —
= -
- | a

o] b |
o o

ql 134

alis| i asiA

aoL 118 ool i[5
uoe sdis 0 Ul SUOISEAE o

i
=
-t

UDQUBAI] =1 | —

QL s

erpy

g B F R

ot

L ATIRA]

]

JuapsxE s poob ddas se paloud Guner sguedoiued 3

THE TP LR | R, 1= [ —

ey

o1

FREErE

AR AmIA,

004 Qa0 o
drou szwoiers 3atue] g Wy suedinged 5y,

JEIAE L nEpOUMWUAD J3)) SO UnNUILWOS

FTOL Y=

Ayend) buunseow

Aisiaaun suauppyd -+ paloud

sanunwwo) w bunuea Guopyn #O1

sampunuwuo’) Guluiea

Aapep ARuwdyy seddn - a2gsng

Page 109



UOGUAMIEY] s JBEIE| e (EMy UOQUAMEIU] =  I2EIE| == (ENRY

b T b =

o = = =

=i oL ] =

T L] = -

= Cr ior =
0
-0t

= rd

MO m
e g
gL

FF s GF

UM SUIS323 J0 ADGUny IUEdIMOED [ENPIAIZUT Jo 18 quuny

Hoj3 buunseopy

Juswssjosul pue Juswasbebus Joy spaus uo sNa0y
e ASSEAIUN SUSIPIYD auaym 'aidog B oyidads B 0] uoieEa o juswdopEasp s|ys pue Buiuies) ue WIBWS |jIM SNO0Y 343 5B U SUSUIPIYD JUsuijdwoD J[Im Suoissas ||y

‘WD 05 PUE SPIEMY
uoizebiiey [eucien ‘pasocby 'suapes speds ‘NVOSY ‘3 4000 SE YONs pRasye 39 |iv saiuniioeddo jeuwang uow os|E Ing ‘usipubosss pEULIoil IpNDW (1M UOIIEPIIDDE Iy

‘USRI pRIIoE
jEuLey uou pue jRwasgu web oy wayl sygeus of yiom o sadaed Buwobuo pue jenplaipul ui syedixiped of sjdoad Buncd Joy ssipungioddo apiaoad e 3oaload Sy

uoijduasag 3rafoag

s2nunuwwo) w Bunueay GuoRyn 1

b

JEUAD L nEpoUNWAS Sy seRunuILoD ajdoad Bunoa yum uonendsy Buisiey pue uoneypanoy Bunowold :5 paloid
sa1pununuo) uiuiea

FIOC YuiEn Azjen Asuwdiyy saddn - a33sniD

Page 110



£ —.I..w

Bunuea) ynaqe

UMILEAE] s  jafis] = zmny

¥ x £ 3

; ; &
| i w o
b e -
oF (=2 o

aMUEOd 20 300D 40 %, T8 WD

UML) w— j20is] = zriy

= = x -]
= = = =
s o 5
oF {=2] oF
r 55
o3
: @ 5
2 2
3 =3
=3 =
[ FSL u
o o
i o8
LG8l
SR EEER S
LopEHHEnD

g Duwned spdoad po oy T W42

oyl buunseopy

WOQUINSWE —  38Bie) —  Emy

.1 1 q. 1
= = x =
= - L =
= - | = =
T ) b | -
=3 or o cr

LA E

alis)

]

GERRBEBMR

aL A i ]! Qa4

Lo adia 0 UM SUOIEEAS 9

HofuaS —  336ie) —  |erv

o
—
=
e ]
o
—r

.1
&
=
™
o

Q113

-
i
=
o

HHE'IIIHE'.-]H,_-I

i1 ach orT

wapEmz a0 peob Aas se pralond Buger spuedomgped =,

BOQUINIW] — J06ie) —  jErw

x
=

n
.
=

o+ -
—_ —_
- =
= 5]
) —_
o or

313

FREENE
AR ADIA,

0L at i i 18 i |
dnouf sswoisro Bwie] agl woely spuedingped o,

JENSAE L mEpOUnWLD 15 S UunUwWwod

FIOT YyEW

Ayrend) buunseow

ajdoad Bunoj yum uonendsy Buisiey pue uonejpanoy bunowoid -5 Ppaload

sanunwo?) w bunuea GuoRyn 1

sapunuuuo’) Guluiea

Aapepn Asuwdyy sddn - 423snD

Page 111



SOQUINERU] —— 2R ——  efy UOUIAEU] s 12002 ) e (BN

. - = = = = = =
] ] [y & = = ] o
pal = s b e ; =,
L]
3
- =
£ = £
: (=
T il
€
=74 o=
EE -
Un SU0IEE3E Jo 13Ny SJUECIZOVEY [BRPIAIDUT J0 I3 QL

Hop3 buunseoapy

sajAysay) Ayjjesy pue uorpoelRI Apuue) saysod ajoweld 0] J2pI0 Wl ‘IS03 MO| 2UE YIyM S3ale Joopine w abebus 03 sapuey aoy

sanpunisoddo spiaosd | aadosm Apwe) pue Yinod 343 SHY3 0] UDIJIPPE U] "SUDISSSS IB3Se} pue suapiacad JsiEiDads SSYI0 A0 YIOMPUNOID 51330 YIjesy Ag paisalsp
suoissas w abebus o) seipunproddo ‘SuLiaajun|os o pue Sulurery 1oy sajunjodde [B30) jo uoijoweatd ‘yuoes BuagiEsm pue yjesy Buippng a>uspiuoT SE YINS
SHAIIIE IAPDAUL M SuoIsses ~driord 293 Ly S|ENEIAIPUl PUE S3|[IWE) S4] J0 SPa3U 343 ]33 O SPEL JOEY 3G [IM PUR SHISM § - 9 US3MISG J0g UM [|IM SUDISSSS

‘BoOYr B SE AjWe) 343 PUE ApWE) S} Wiyyim SIERPLAIPU b0g Jusdoi@aap jruosiad ‘assod ayowosd

1a 3eyy sapunioddo Apguapl 03 §225 (1M NG "SSpWey SuY3 o Spaau Buibiows Yy UD SNOOY JOU |[IM HIOM 34| ' SN30S [ESISAIUN, SHOW B ylm S3aoe oy yoaload

wswabebus Apwey Jo saygabog sapuwey wos 2A0W 0} SRIIWE) Fpgeua o] dnoub uorisues) & dojEAap 1M SIS0 AlWEl PUE YINoA 2yl saiuniiodde asayl Yyim saupuaey
ay3 apracud 0 JSpU0 U 332 5|PNs mau bulwes| ‘Buussjunoa ‘Buiuel) punode ssapunpoddo Ul PERAJOAUI BI0W WO 0F 3Y)| PINOM PUE SUCIIUSAISIL 3534 pasu

joU Op ASyU} PUly SSIIWE) 3Y] USYO 'd¥L 241 YyBnouyl saoauas pesyenads SU0W SEII0E WSY) IQEUS 0] uoiEwIogul pue Jaddns Yl sslwe) spraosd of WIE SUOISS3S
2y "suoissas dayjaboy ssywe; pue spsiA WOy IoM pIYdelEp puR yaresuyne ybnouys spasu Bubusws yyum sapwe) sbebus saaspom Juswabebua Ajwey yjussaud 3y

Page 112

JuBwdo|@ASp
jeuosiad wsyy poddns o3 saipuniioddo ssa338 pue AJURWILWOD |B30) Hayd M pabebus aiow wo3aq ued A3yl eyl Spdo ul 'swsueaboad gsyjabo) saspuwey jo abeys
uonE|dwos 32 ‘sapwey yum abebus o3 suoissas doj@asp [jiM JOIEUIDIC-0D pUe siaxyo Ajwe) pue ygnod syy ‘pelosd Juswasbebug Apwey ‘Isa4 salwed yum Buipiopg,

woijdrsag adodg

SIS 291 Ynpy Busoadwy s

JEILAE L0 nepounwiAs Sy S UNILLGD _ uomisues] Ajwey ¢ paloid

b

sa1punwuo) Guluiea

IO YEW Aajepn ARuwdyy seddn - 235N




Buwes

sayany o3 Buesa0oud o, 575 Wd-21

aficjusain-

gaig LI

E31LUD23rC

ol

aayeod bmued apdoad jo o+ 5 W42

U] —  la0im) e— ey
- x * =
= = o -
= = = -
B i i
i i i o=
Q
: e §
o =]
& - g
=] [
o = nw
8
gz LW ar
LCIZEXj2nd E Sunaed o £ 5 W4T

12913 buunseay

UODUAAIONIT w——  JOEIE ] —

— —_ - —
- - — -
- = - —
2 - | = =
T ) b | =
o or = or

oL 0G4 208

oL
LoREP adia 0) UNI SUDISEAS o

ey

REENE

'FL

HONUANSIN] —— 396 —  |ermov
X = - =
= = = =
fic L] 0 o
T m [ ) -
o= o o =
- - {13
b = ol 3 &=
- & =
s, * g
- oy =
c 8
[ o (19
13}

T

uapEmz a0 peob Aas se paloud Duges spuedogqed 2,

WO AT

bt
by
]
. 4
=

12608 | —

ey

- -
- -
- =
= =]
] —
o o

03 130

AR ADA,

OL 0an D0
drroufl sswoieno yaae] g wely syuediygied 3y

i1

Ayend buunseow

FI0OT Y=n

JENSAE U nEpounwids joy ol unuLLos

uonisuel] Ajwey g paload

SIS 2411 Ynpy Buiaoadwy s

saniunuwuo) fuluiea

Aapep Asuwdyy seddn - 423snD

Page 113



UDUANEU] m  1B0UF) e ey UOGUANISIU] s  1E0iE| = (En7 R
= = = = 5 = o =
= -3 = - | = = g 3
= & = 5 = & z
r&a
FT
= S
55
= b E
= al
FS°E =3 =
B
P = 0
E oz
]
|U."| _IH
Un suoissas Jo Jaquuny SIUROIELES JErpin il o by

uo3 buunseop

‘33afoug uswsbebug

Py pabe jooyds-aud SAEY oYM STIJILIE) OF PRUSMO G || ASY | WSPUE] Wl 40 SdRoub asppag pue Ageq Bunsixs jo ued sB uns 3G jIaM SU0ISSES 2540 W

'weys Buid)y ybnouyy pauayo sawwelboad jeyjeulsodfejeuaiue ayj Bia 3pEWw g osje |im sabajesls pxg pue sjeuagad Agug
Ajppuey syg pue sdnoub diay s ‘sesined Aaayood 58 yons sdnoub pue suoissas Bumuesy wna Ajedo) oy sssbageays pxs apnpw e oaload sy

‘a4l s, ppyr 2yl noybnosyy apqenpdde aq jpam sabessaw ay] o Ausw 3Ng Apusunuopasd

ismojjay 5B sudoy pauajuad pliys o Ajauea e BuLeaod swweibosd passnooy Ajlwe) NEamm £ 2 SAjoA (s oalosd Aouabe-pnw sy

uodiasag eaiosg

FIOT YER

JENMAE L mEpounwiAs joy ol junuLLS s

b

awnuesboigd jeyewnsod 1 paload

siea) Apeq augg w pels buiAy e Buppoddng 1oYH

S2NUNUO) I21YJJeay

Azjen Asuwdiyy saddn - a33sniD

Page 114



UIQUABASIU] — J2bie] — eV N

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

= - | 8 = ]

j Hiz] e | =

o or = o
)
.|
8]
i
=
=
T

Qi oo

uoEE I adya of Uni SUDIESIS o,

JEIAE L nEROUNWASD JS)) SO UnUILWIOS

FTOL Y=

1ol buunseap

UMILEAS] e jefis) e =riy

afirpisaies

0L OO oOE OOk it

2003 0] 2|08
13734 | 334 Oym EuaIRd 4O o, T T W4-2H

QU] ——  22fie)] —  |eny

.
—
=
=
=
L=

-.|
=
m
o

e ERT|

=
-
o
o

S FREBPE

FlnE'!IIFl!'.:JHr_-I

i1 8 gL o0 0as
wapEzan peob s se paloud Guges spuedoogied 3y,

UOQUIAGIII] ——  12fie] —  Enpy

=
=
n
. 4
=

. w
— =
- =
= o |
] —
o or

3 1300

FREEeE

aELLADA,

a0 Qa1 O iR

drouf szwoiero jabue] aqg Wweyy suedingred oy,

Aypend buunseow

awnwueiboid jeyewnysod ;1 paloid

siea) Apeg 2ug w peys buiAy e Buppoddns 1OH

S2NIUNWIWOY) 1D1Yljeay

Aapep ARuwdyy seddn - a2gsng

Page 115



UDGUBNIEU] e 3264E| =  (ENPY UOQUALB] e 12E02) (BN
= z £ z 2 = = =
= = E e = = = =
E - = m Tt ] —_
3 B B8 3 | P_5 8 5
Lo a
114 e el L e | Tz g =
. LPRAn SN b A DT i O i a )
3 o Bt i T # padres Faad ¥ - _W
L -
g eaaiy 8 el el Lt -y iy = 5
I oz
T e e g g "
e ﬂ
UM SUGISSAE 40 JJUWINN SIUEdIMIES [ENPLUDAT §6 1Ay

Hoyg buunseoapw

‘peys buiAld :m:ﬁ:_._... pEial0 sswweiboad (gjeulsod EIEUSIUE SUL EIA 3PS 0 OSiE ||IM SSDa3es nag PUE SjELIBLE AlUT
‘UE|d UDIYY USHUINN/UEIS AyyesH WEND Sy3 Yypsm wi syl palood sy

sewoy Hayl buyocosd ppys, pue juswdinba

Buiseydind usysm uoISIZSP PRULIOiul 3w of qe 3se Ay] jeyl os Aoueubaud Buunp gag Ajeyes of sdalsg jjews, B 3A1333d |Im Jusued yoeg - AJRgeS PIIYD -
payybiybny aq s oueubaid Guunp uoipdWRSUOD [OYoIE 10 SID3DS |SJUSWLIISD Y| - [OYOdY &

payByby 2q e Aoueubasd Bulng Guryows Jo 510942 [BIUaWLIEPp 24) — Bujows «

ybrnouogq ayy uwiylim sdnaib

Buipaagiseadng (B30 uo papiacad 2 [pM WO WACYU PUB SWOISSaS 253yl Buunp pauwepdxa 2q M AgQeq puR wnjy o} bupaagsealq o sjyRuag 3y - Buipasysesug -
AN300 [ ayeydn w

aseauow we Asueuboud Buunp ) uo uoeaou Buwpnpu Ag Jey) padoy s1 3 pue mo| 51 yEnoasoq a4) uiyis Jels AyjjeaH Jo ayeldn a2yl juassud 1y - HEIS AYJ|eaH »

Page 116

tButpnjow sidol jo AJSLIEA B USADD | SUOISSSS 3534) Jeyl padoy 1 3]

'Pi9Y SUQISESS |EjRUSIUE
APUNWIWED JO ISqUINU 34] SSE2UDU| 0] PUE0d YIESH |E30T 34yl WIYlM SWES) JONSIA YIeay pue Amnmpiu 3yl Y Buriom aajoau) e 322losd sy wonduasag 1oeloag

JEILAE L mEpOUnWAD JSi) SORIUNWILOD

SUDISS2S [Eleuajuy Ajunwiwo) -7 p=loid

siea) Apeg aug ul pels buiAg e Bupoddns TOH
SIPUNOY) 121y)jedH

FIOT YyuERW Azjep Asuwdyy seddn - 4335MD




UBILRE] w—  aig) = ey

_ - - -
- — e —
o il e )
— — — —
i i cr =
h ._.uﬁ.u
o
=%
- 3
o
=
w0
e (]
m7
LoeT

Aoueubasd Euunp
Esy Joasuepodu o Buipusisiapun
1803 Ul SIRYI0LW % 11 W4-OH

Poay)] buunseopy

USUAEPI] m— QU] =  Z36iR] ——  |emv UOQUANTII] =  J36iR] —— jEnyy
18008 | m—
ELY X % % = - = = =
= = s = = = =
5 a o < ] = | = | <] - |
T m b} - T ™ b | -4
. 2 = = x =] or o Cr i ior [ oF
= = = = . = - = . + £-
=] £ = 5 ]
= Ea fa & = & a2
. - 0z- = 3
§- 3 & o I
o a = -
= - 03 =
il [T [
e = B =
0= .I| T oot T
L] e oz1
LOzED adaa O) Ul SUDISEAS o wapEmE a0 peob Aas se paloud Duger spuedomgied 3y, drou zswolero Jatue] gl Wy suedinged oy,

Ayend) buunseow

JEIUAL L NEPOUNWAD J5U) SORIUNWILLOD

b o

FI0OT YiEn Aapep ARuwdyy seddn - a2gsng

SUDISSaS [EjeuuyY Ajunwwo) 7 paloid

sieap Aueg auyg w peys bulAy e Bunpoddns ToH

SPUNWIWOY) ID1YIjedH

Page 117



UOGUIE] ——  32EiR] —

— —_
- -
) ey
— —

"

Un suaiszas Jo J3uny

00t

IEHTNATN

UoguarIEu]

...
=
=
-
Lr

RERETRE]

sfig)] — jEnpy

IR ET R

o 131

Eg3g§a"
IF.|I'|I]F|NJ

.:J._.. DH_._.

SIUEdIMILES [BRPLAIDUT J6 13quung

Ho3 buunseow

“Aajpen Anuwiyy Jeddn viypm 335 STWEDIPSNS [BUCIYPPE © 1583 3B dn Buigges sajoau pm pelosd sigg ‘uoipppe ug

FAQ Asj|es AsuwAyy Jeddn iy
MU doj@ssp pue sals saWEDIEslS Bunsixs WEUIEW 0 JWaWdo[aAS(] sHods puE saMALSS InoA Y DU osm Wesy 354 SSIUnWWel sy sapoau pea yelosd sy

uoydiadsag afodd

FIOT YyEw

JENAE L nepounwds Sy SoR/UNWLLSD

b

sawefjpans :1 paloyd

bued |PM [e21sAyd Bunowoud ZOH

S2NIUNWLOY) I21YljeaH

Aajep Asuwdyy s=ddn - 425N

Page 118



1223 buLnseayy

UMHILSASI] == 1305 e (=1

5 = = u
% = & =
« 4 & 9=
= [l I —
L= = [=] L
|I|I|I|}|._u1
] iy b
ey e N B
gy 87 tos —
]
tos &
s — = =
2SS o =
[EL
“08
%

pods u uoediipe 4 BnESy 2 Ma0H

QoL oo oL oalL

LD AU

JE0UE | —

EDY
= - s -
= = = =
- e ] =
= - | s =
= - na =
o ¥ ¥ ¥

2 PTG AR
A

TR

i
[=1

woiyey adxa 0§ UMl SUDIEE3S o

uoguaneiu — 326ie) —  |EnPY

... 1 4 ...

. 2 x x i

- - = -

= 0 = ]

T m ] =1

= o ..U. P
-
$. 5
0 =
iz T
. 3
w C
s T

a0 peob s se paloud Guges spuediomgied 5,

woguasal] — 33fie] —  EMY

=
b

]
=
=
o

=
=
-
o

03 i
02 151

aliE|lAIA,

ot

drioul szwoiero Jatue] g woely syuedizgied 3y

Ayend) buunseow

FTIOL YER

JEIAE L nEpounWAS J5i) SORjUNWILLOD

b

sawebyaans 1 1paloud

Buag |PMm 1ed1sAyd Bunjowoud zoH

S2NIUNWWOY) I21YljeaH

Aapep Asuwdyy seddn - a23sng

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



4

Agenda ltem 10

N
CAERPHILLY

COLINTY BORODUGH CDOLFINCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS (ALN) REVIEW

REPORT BY: ACTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1.1

21

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

41

4.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update Members on the progress of the Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Review.

SUMMARY

The aim of the ALN review is to identify strengths and areas for development of the current
services and to provide options for the delivery of services for children and young people with
additional learning needs. The report makes recommendations for a way forward with regard
to funding models and the rationalisation and re-designation of Specialist Resource Base
(SRB) provision.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

SEN Policy and Inclusion Strategy.

SEN Code of Practice for Wales (2002).

ALN White Paper (2014).

School Organisation Code (1 October 2013) and the Council’s 21% Century School’s
programme.

The Learning Caerphilly theme of ‘Caerphilly Delivers’, the LSB single integrated plan.

THE REPORT

Learning Education and Inclusion (LEI) Service consists of a wide range of support and
intervention services, which includes Educational Psychology, Behaviour Support Service,
Education Welfare Service and Additional Learning Needs Service. The purpose of the ALN
review was to review the functions of the individual services and identify good practice and
areas for development. Head teachers have been fully involved in the review process through
a series of stakeholder group meetings.

As a result of a consultation meeting with Head teachers in July 2013, recommendations were
made to prioritise identified areas. These included:

Page 121



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

4.9

4.10

development of the role of Trinity Fields;

training for SRB staff;

development of a common assessment and tracking system for specialist settings;
quality assurance visits for all SRBs.

It was also recommended that as currently there are no formal service level or partnership
agreements between schools that host SRBs and the Local Authority; this could be addressed
through the review.

Progress has been made in all the above areas. Quality assurance visits have been
completed in collaboration with head teacher and specialist staff. This process has helped
inform planning for future SRB developments through identifying training, curriculum planning
and performance management.

An assessment tool and tracking system (PIVATS — Performance Indicators and Value Added
Target Setting) has been identified, enabling schools and local authority to set effective
targets and plan a differentiated curriculum. Key staff have been trained to deliver a roll out
programme of training for all SRB staff. All head teachers have been kept informed of this
development.

As part of the Local Authority’s commitment to Trinity Fields School as a forward looking
centre of excellence, the review made a recommendation to develop a specialist resource
base class within a mainstream primary school as a satellite class of Trinity Fields. The
Governing Bodies of Trinity Fields School and Cwm Ifor Primary School were consulted and
have agreed to this development. Consultation with parents has also taken place. Following
minor adaptations it is planned that the satellite class will open early in the autumn term 2014.
This development will support the Local Authority’s commitment to extend opportunities for
inclusion for all pupils across and within a variety of settings.

A formal ‘Partnership Agreement’ will be developed between Cwm Ifor Primary School, Trinity
Fields School and the Local Authority to identify respective roles and responsibilities. It is
proposed that this will become a model for future partnership agreements between schools
which host SRBs and the Local Authority.

Training and Performance Development

The review highlighted a lack of consistency in training for SRB staff. In order to address this
it is proposed that there is a core skills training programme, which would ensure that staff
based in SRBs have the appropriate expertise to deal with the range of complex needs and
behaviours of children and young people in specialist classes. This would include:

Behaviour management

Communication techniques

TEACCH approaches ( autism /social communication)
Basic self care skills / Manual Handling

Assessment — PIVATS training

Safeguarding

In addition staff would have access to more in-depth specialist training relevant to the needs
of the children they are supporting.

Specialist Resource Bases (SRBs)

There are currently twenty-seven specialist classes in seventeen primary settings. At
secondary level four secondary schools host SRB provision (Appendix A). Currently Ysgol
Gyfun Cwm Rhymni is resourced to meet the needs of pupils with complex needs. An
outcome of the review has been a recommendation that a formal SRB is established. Initial
consultation with the Head teacher and Governing Body will commence in the autumn term.

Page 122



4.11

412

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

An analysis of provision and future demand has revealed the need for further reorganisation
and development of SRB provision to take into account:

e provision required to meet current and future identified need;
e geographical distribution of SRBs;
e cross-phase continuity for children and young people.

Addressing these issues could include re-designation and rationalisation of some single
phase provisions.

A further outcome from the review has identified that a more in-depth review of behaviour
provision and intervention is necessary. Planning for the review is currently taking place and
will be actioned during the autumn term 2014.

Funding

The current SRB funding arrangements have been in place for at least 15 years and have not
been reviewed during this period. The review identified that the needs of pupils now placed
within SRB provision have become increasingly more complex leading to increased demand
for additional support in these settings.

Officers from LEI and Finance have developed alternative SRB funding formula options there
are two distinct elements, place led funding and pupil led funding.

¢ Place Led Funding - this refers to funding for teachers and teaching assistants in SRB
classes. In recognition of the increasing complexity of pupil need, it is proposed that the
staff to pupil ratio is increased to one teacher and two teaching assistants to every eight
pupils. This should address the number of applications to SPP Panel for additional
funding. Place led funding will include any additional funding such as capitation, sanitation
allowances and equipment maintenance.

e Pupil Led Funding - this refers to additional funding generated through a SRB matrix to
reflect individual pupil needs.(Appendix B)

Funding Options Summary - Appendix C illustrates these options applied to Primary SRB
settings, the same principle will be applied to secondary settings.

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Place Led 1 Teacher, 1 TA 1 Teacher, 1 TA 1 Teacher & 2 TAs
funding level 3,1 TAlevel | level 3, 1 TA level | Core staff funding

1 1 varies according to the

designation of the base
to take into account
differing roles and
responsibilities of TAs
Sanitation, capitation & equipment maintenance.

Sickness / absence supply cover.

Pupil Led Through full SRB | Through reduced | Through full SRB
Funding matrix SRB matrix matrix
Additional pupil led funding e.g. PDG, SEG, WEG

Next Steps

In September LEI officers will meet with head teacher and governing bodies of schools which
might be affected by the re-designation and rationalisation of SRBs. Following this a meeting
will be held with the stakeholder group to discuss the recommendations of the review. The
Budget Forum and Scrutiny Committee will be updated verbally regarding the outcome of the
meeting with the Head teacher stakeholder group.

Page 123



4.18

5.1

52

6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

A review of behaviour support services and provision will begin in the early autumn term; this
has been identified as a priority in the LEI Service Improvement Plan. In addition to the
review of behaviour support services the next phase of the ALN review will consider the role,
function and current structure of central services that support pupils with additional learning
needs and their associated budgets.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

Additional Learning Needs by its very nature has strong links with the Equalities agenda and
so the service review fully takes into account a range of disability issues (physical, mental and
learning) as an intrinsic part of the process.

The council’s full equalities impact assessment process will be applied to the review when a
final SRB funding formula has been agreed.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications will be dependent on the chosen funding option. Members will be
updated following the determination of the agreed option.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Rationalisation of base provisions could impact on personnel currently employed in SRBs.
Any staff affected will be fully consulted, managed through the workforce redeployment
arrangements.

CONSULTATIONS

Heads of Services and a Head teacher focus group have been kept fully informed of the
progress of the review.

Further consultation is already noted in section 4 with stakeholder groups, however if

proposals to re-designate/rationalise SRBs are agreed, parents will be consulted as part of
the statutory process.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members note the content of the report and comment on the
proposals outlined before they are presented to the Budget Forum.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

Current provision and funding model is no longer fit for purpose and needs to be revised in
order that children and young people’s needs are fully met.

STATUTORY POWER

The statutory power is section 14 of the Education Act 1996 (functions in relation to provision
of Primary and Secondary Schools) and section 14(6)(b) is the specific to special educational

provision. Section 315 of the Education Act 1996 is the requirement to review arrangements
for special educational provision.

Page 124



Author:
Consultees:

Appendices:

Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C

Jacquelyn Elias, Manager, Additional Learning Needs

Cabinet Member for Education;

Education Senior Management Team;

Head Teacher Stakeholder group;

Keri Cole, Manager, LEI Service;

Tony Maher, Assistant Director, Planning & Strategy;

Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager;

Jacquelyn Elias, Service Manager ALN;

Andrea Davies, School Improvement Manager, ALN;

David Thomas, Senior Policy Officer, Equalities & Welsh Language

SRB Provision
Summary of Pupil Led funding
Summary of Funding Options

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



Appendix A

Name of setting - PRIMARY

Type of Provision

Cefn Fforest Primary (KS2)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Cefn Fforest Primary (Yr 3 /4)

Social Inclusion

Coed y Brain Primary (KS1 &2)

Speech and Language

Cwm Ifor Primary (satellite provision)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Cwmcarn Primary( KS2)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Deri Primary (KS1)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Behaviour Management Group at Glan
Y Nant (KS2)

Behavioural, Emotional & Social
Difficulties

Greenhill Primary (KS1&2)

ASD / Social and Communication

Hendre Juniors (KS2)

Hearing Impairment

Pantside Primary (KS1&2)

ASD / Social and Communication

Pontllanfraith Primary (KS1&2)

Autistic Spectrum Disorder

St James Primary (KS1 &2)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Tir y Berth Primary (KS1&2)

Speech and Language

Ty Isaf Infants (KS1)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Tyny Wern (Yr 3/4)

Social Inclusion

Tyny Wern (Rec/ Yr1)

Nurture Class

Ty Sign Primary (KS2)

Behavioural, Emotional & Social
Difficulties

Ynysddu Primary School (Rec/ Yr1)

Nurture Class

Ynysddu Primary School (Yr 3/4)

Social Inclusion

Y Ganolfan Cwm Derwen (KS1&2)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Name of Setting- SECONDARY

Type of Provision

Newbridge School (KS3)

Behavioural, Emotional & Social
Difficulties

Pontllanfraith Comprehensive (KS3 &4)

Complex Learning Difficulties

Risca Comprehensive (KS3 & 4)

Autistic Spectrum Disorder

St Cenydd Comprehensive (KS3 & 4)

Speech & Language, Sensory and
Physical Difficulties

The Learning Centre (KS2 & 3)

PRU - Emotional, Behavioural and Social
Difficulties

Page 127




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



62| obed

Appendix B

Area of Need

Physical /Medical (to
include manual
handling/care needs)

Toileting (single issue)

5 -9 hours support

Pupil has identified
therapeutic needs

(OT/Physio programmes) TA2

Pupil is in nappies or pads

and is totally dependent upon

adults to change and clean
them (TA1)

10 -14 hours

15 -19 hours

Pupil has high level
of dependency for
mobility and
medical needs and
requires
therapeutic
programmes to be
implemented on

20— 24 hours

25 -32 hours

Care plan /Risk
Assessment
indicates pupil
has profound
physical medical
difficulties which
requires a high
level of support

daily basis. (TA2) (TA2)
Safeguarding / well being | Risk assessment identifies Risk assessment Risk Assessment
issues (to include need to be supervised during | identifies pupil needs to identifies that
sexualised behaviour, unstructured times (TA1) be supervised during pupil requires
attachment, CAMHS unstructured times & supervision
involvement ) some activities e.g. PE. throughout the

TAl

school day(TA1)

Supporting mainstream
integration

2 or more pupils from
base spending 50% of
curriculum time in
mainstream classes

HI (Signing required a
primary means of
communication)

Signing required
in order to
access
curriculum (TA
2/3)

Welsh First Language

Welsh first language
pupil placed in English
medium setting (TA2)




0c| abed

Appendix B

Based on Amounts given as per Additional Support Spreadsheet
Hourly Rate £12.81 (Amount Devolved as Present)



Appendix C

Summary of Funding Options

Current in Formula Additional Support Total
1,814,499 | 159,296 | 1,973,795 |
Option 1 | 2,162,990 |

Place Led funding

1 Teacher, 1 TA level 3
, 1 TA level 1

Sanitation, capitation &
equipment
maintenance.Sickness /
absence supply cover.

Pupil Led Funding

Through full SRB Matrix

Additional pupil led
funding e.g. PDG, SEG,
WEG

Option 2

2,060,647 |

Place Led funding

1 Teacher, 1 TA level 3
, 1 TA level 1

Sanitation, capitation &
equipment
maintenance.Sickness /
absence supply cover.

Pupil Led Funding

Through reduced SRB
Matrix

Additional pupil led
funding e.g. PDG, SEG,
WEG

Option 3

1,973,122 |

Place Led funding

1 Teacher & 2 TAs
Core staff funding
varies according to the
designation of the base
to take into account
differing roles and
responsibilities of TAs

Sanitation, capitation &
equipment
maintenance.Sickness /
absence supply cover.

Pupil Led Funding

Through full SRB Matrix

Additional pupil led
funding e.g. PDG, SEG,
WEG

Page 131




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



Agenda ltem 12

A Y
CAERPHILLY

CEIFNTY BORDLIGH COUFNCIL
CYNGDR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL]Y
>

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: CAERPHILLY YOUTH SERVICE STRATEGY 2014-2019

REPORT BY: ACTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise Members of the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee on the allocation of the
additional revenue funding to underpin the delivery of the Caerphilly Youth Service Strategy.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The report details the progress on the delivery of the draft Youth Service Strategy (CYSS) for
Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) for the period 2014-2019.

2.2 The report provides details on the use of the additional £100,000 during the 2013/14 financial
year.

2.3  The report also includes proposals for the allocation of the additional £100,000 revenue budget
for the Youth Service for 2014/15.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The report links directly the ‘Learning’ section of the Single Integrated Plan for Caerphilly, linking
into the L1 - Improve the level of basic skills and the number of achieved qualifications (formal
and non-formal) to improve the life opportunities for families, L2 - Develop a multi-agency
approach to address the impact of poverty on pupil attainment, and L3 - Children, young people
and families have the skills and resources to access job opportunities.

3.2  All proposals have a direct link with the Welsh Government National Youth Service Strategy
2014-2018 and also deliver on the Youth Engagement and Progression Framework.

3.4  The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child and Welsh Government Extending

Entitlement Guidance in terms of ensuring opportunities for young people to participate and
influence the development of services.

Page 133



4.1

4.11

413

414

4.2

4.21

422

423

424

425

426

427

4.3

4.31

4.3.2

THE REPORT
Introduction

The statutory Youth Service in Caerphilly currently engages over 7,800 young people
predominantly between the ages of 10 to 19 which is equivalent to 20% of the youth population.
Youth provision is managed and delivered by 31 full-time and 200 part-time staff, operating in up
to 100 different locations, 28 of which are premises that house youth centre and club provision.

The Youth Service budget is £2,862,990, of which £1,225,681 is made up from external grants.
This includes additional funding from the Welsh Government, Families First and Community First.
This budget provides a platform for the development of a broad and progressive range of youth
work methods which are delivered through an extensive partnership structure.

A review of the Youth Service was conducted in December 2012 by an independent contractor in
order to identify good practice, areas for improvement and opportunities for innovation. This was
presented to Scrutiny on the 6" November 2013. This information provided a framework for the
development of the draft CYSS.

The draft Caerphilly Youth Service Strategy was written and presented to Scrutiny in March 2014.
Officers then ensured that the allocation of additional funding would underpin the delivery of the
CYSS.

The Youth Service Strategy Update

Consultation

The Youth Service has undertaken a rigorous consultation process on the draft Youth Service
Strategy between April and June 2014. This has involved the following groups:

Young People - A series of Workshops where held in April which involved over 100 young people.
Officers translated the priorities of the service into a young people friendly version and sought
their views on all 12 priorities and objectives.

Staff — A conference was held in February which involved over 120 youth workers at all levels of
the Service.

Partnerships — A total of 12 key organisations were provided with a copy of the draft documents
and asked to make comments and recommendations.

Parents — A consultation event was held with parents on Friday 20" June.

Elected Members (EM) — Strategy circulated to all EM and two workshops held which were
attended by 6 Councillors.

Allocation of the additional 100K Revenue during the 2013/14 Financial Year

Officers analysed the youth centre/club attendances to determine the membership, frequency of
visits and needs of young people.

A youth centre banding system / suitability survey was introduced in April 2014 which highlighted
fit for purpose facilities, premises which needed upgrading and facilities which were not adequate
for the delivery of youth work. This information was utilised to make informed decisions about the
refurbishment of Rhymney, New Tredegar and Ynys Ddu as a priority because these facilities
were utilised in the day and evening or required urgent attention due to Health and Safety issues.

Page 134



4.3.3 An analysis of the location of the current Youth Centre and Clubs in line with the 2011 Census
youth population is in the process of being completed.
4.3.4 The allocation of the budget was then utilised for the following purposes to expand provision and
improve the quality of services.
4.3.5 Allocation of resources for 2013/14
Allocation Detail Amount

Summer Programme

Abertyswg
Cefn Hengoed
Crosskeys
Crumlin
Fochriw
Lansbury
Pantside
Penllwyn
Risca
Tyn'Y Wern
Ynysddu

Increase access to provision during the
summer months

e 4 Youth Centres

e 7 Youth Clubs

e 4 Qutreach programmes

Total = £40,000

Upgrading Youth Centres
and Clubs to ensure fit for
purpose

Centres
e New Tredegar
e Rhymney
Clubs
e Ynys Ddu

Improvements
e New flooring
Kitchen fittings
New Heaters
Toilet facilities
Modified a large storage space
into a 1.1 Counselling room
Guards on light fittings
Security
Compliance with Health and Safety
regulations
e Decorating

Total = £31,000

Purchase additional
equipment, resources and
materials to expand
curriculum all 29 centres
and clubs.

e Appropriate furniture

e Equipment and materials all 28
centres and clubs

e DDA suitability

Total = £29,000

Total £100,000
4.3.6 Allocation of resources 2014/15
Allocation Detail Amount

Summer Programme
Centres and Clubs

Abertyswg
Cefn Hengoed
Crosskeys
Crumlin
Fochriw
Lansbury
Pantside

Increase access to provision during the
summer months

e 4 Youth Centres

e 7 Youth Clubs

9 additional provision on an outreach basis
Aberbargoed

Abercarn
Bedwas

Total Centres = £35,000
Total Outreach = £25,000

Grand total = £60,000

Page 135




Penllwyn Blackwood
Risca Caerphilly Town Centre
Tyn'Y Wern Cwmcarn
Ynysddu Nelson
Phillipstown
Senghenydd
2 | Upgrading Youth Centres | Improvements £20,000
to ensure fit for purpose e Refurbishment
e DDA suitability
Bedwas
Crosskeys
Crumlin
The Hanger
Risca
3 | Purchase additional e Appropriate furniture £20,000
equipment, resources and e Equipment and materials all 28
materials to expand centres and clubs
curriculum all 29 centres
and clubs.
Total £100,000
5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
5.1 The Youth Service Strategy, operational plan and project management templates will have a
holistic commitment to equality of opportunity.
52 The Youth Service will be required to demonstrate its contribution to the inclusion agenda in line
with the Council’s Strategic Equality Objectives, via targets, consultation and monitoring in the
Youth Service Strategy, the Directorate’s Service Improvement Plans and information provided
for inclusion in the annual monitoring and improvement reports for Equalities and Welsh language
to the relevant Commissions.
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
6.1 Elected Members have made available an additional revenue allocation of £100,000 to
strengthen the delivery of the Youth Service. The 2013/14 allocation has been utilised effectively
in preparation for the commencement of delivery of the draft Youth Service Strategy.
7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
71 There are no personnel implications as a result of this report.
8. CONSULTATIONS
8.1 All comments received are contained within the report.
9. RECOMMENDATIONS
9.1 Members note the content of the report.

Page 136



10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
10.1  To ensure that members are aware of the outcomes of the consultation process.

10.2 To apprise Members of how the additional funding has been allocated across the borough.

11. STATUTORY POWERS
11.1  Extending Entitlement: supporting young people in Wales.
11.2 The Learning and Skills Act 2000.

11.3 Local Government (Wales) Measure 2010, Equalities Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales)
Regulations 2011, Welsh Language Measure (Wales) 2011.

Author: Tanis Ann Cunnick, Community, Youth and Adult Services Manager
E-mail: cunnit1@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Sandra Aspinall, Acting Deputy Chief Executive

Tony Maher, Assistant Director, Education and Lifelong Learning
Corporate Management team

Councillor Passmore, Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning
Gareth Hardacre and Lynne Donavan, HR

Principal Solicitor - Gail Williams

David Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Finance Division — Nicole Scammell

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



Agenda ltem 13

N
CAERPHILLY

COLINTY BORODUGH CDOLFINCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: 21°T CENTURY SCHOOLS: GATEWAY REVIEW

REPORT BY: ACTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To present the outcome of the Office of Government Commerce (OGC) Gateway Review that
was undertaken as part of the Welsh Government’s validation of the 21% Century Schools
Programme.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The report presents the findings of the Gateway Review for Caerphilly’s 21%' Century Schools
Programme. Overall the Programme is given a green/amber rating, which is the second
highest out of a possible five ratings and represents a positive outcome. The review also
makes five recommendations which are detailed below.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The Gateway Review process is used by the Welsh Government to evaluate and monitor
progress with regard to delivery of the 21 Century Schools Programme. The actual review
process is the OGC Gateway Review 0: Strategic Assessment. The purpose is to review the
outcomes and objectives for the programme and confirm the Welsh Government’s 21°
Century Schools Strategy is being delivered.

4., THE REPORT

4.1 The full report is attached as Appendix 1. The review was undertaken between 19" May 2014
and 21 May 2014. The composition of the Review Team is summarised below:

Review Team Leader: Martin Dove
Review Team Members: Peter Jones
David Paget

4.2  Overall Caerphilly’s 21% Century Schools Programme is rated a Green/Amber in terms of
delivery confidence by the Review Team.

The outcome of a gateway review is assessed as one of five levels of delivery confidence as
shown below:

Page 139



4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

RAG Criteria Description

Green Successful delivery of the project/programme to time, cost and quality
appears highly likely and there are no major outstanding issues that at this
stage appear to threaten delivery significantly

Amber/Green | Successful delivery appears probable however constant attention will be
needed to ensure risks do not materialise into major issues threatening
delivery

Amber Successful delivery appears feasible but significant issues already exist
requiring management attention. These appear resolvable at this stage and
if addressed promptly, should not present a cost/schedule overrun

Amber/Red Successful delivery of the project/programme is in doubt with major risks or
issues apparent in a number of key areas. Urgent action is needed to
ensure these are addressed, and whether resolution is feasible

Red Successful delivery of the project/programme appears to be unachievable.
There are major issues on project/programme definition, schedule, budget
required quality or benefits delivery, which at this stage do not appear to be
manageable or resolvable. The Project/Programme may need re-base lining
and/or overall viability re-assessed

The report made five recommendations. These are shown in the table below along with the
progress made in their implementation:

Recommendation Progress
1. Determine the arrangements for the design of the new c
ompleted
school at Oakdale.
2. Review governance arrangements and project
management responsibilities between the project board Completed
and the interim Governing Body for the new school at
Oakdale.
3. Undertake further local stakeholder engagement for the In progress for completion by
upper Rhymney Valley project. October 2014
4. Review and agree plans for the Upper Rhymney Valley Scheduled for completion by
project. March 2015
5. Develop an integrated plan for capital and education, Completed
human resources, ICT and the activities for each project.

In terms of the key findings, the report is positive in many aspects of all three projects. In
terms of the Welsh Medium Development (Y Gwindy) the Review Team report confidence that
the project will be completed within budget and on time. With respect to the Secondary
School Project at Islwyn West, the review recognises the successful conclusion of the
statutory consultation period. However, it also highlights the need for urgency to ensure the
project is delivered on time. The review also acknowledges the complexity of the project in
terms of the design needed to address both the temporary pupil bulge and the constraints of
the site. With regard to the Upper Rhymney Valley, the review recognises the work that has
taken place to date, but also highlights the need for further stakeholder engagement, which is
being progressed.

In terms of overall progress, the review is positive about the project and risk management.
However, it identifies the need for the integration of the contractor and education plans, with

plans for human resources, ICT and other activities. This is a key recommendation which has
subsequently been progressed.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

In delivering Caerphilly’s 21% Century Schools Strategy, relevant Equality Impact
Assessments are undertaken when appropriate on specific projects.

Page 140



5.2 The Strategy supports the Council’s Strategic Equality Objectives 3 and 4 - Physical Access
and Communications Access as all new schools are designed and built to be fully accessible.

53 The OGC Gateway Review, in its recommendations, notes the need for further stakeholder
engagement in the Upper Rhymney Valley. The issues around this recommendation are
noted in more detail on page 3 of the Review document.

5.4 This further consultation will be done in line with the Council’s approved Public Engagement
Strategy and the guidance in the Equalities Consultation and Monitoring document, ensuring
that the views of all stakeholders, including those who come under the protected
characteristics, continue to be taken into account in the decision-making process. This then
also supports the Council’s Strategic Equality Objective 5 - Engagement and Participation.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

71 There are no direct personnel implications to this report.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1 The views of consultees have been incorporated into this report.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Members are requested to note the contents of this report.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  To ensure that Members are aware of the outcome of the Gateway Review.

1. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  The 21 Century Schools Programme is being delivered in accordance with the Local
Government Acts 1972 and 2000, as well as School Standards and organisation (Wales) Act
2013.

Author: Martin Donovan, Project Lead 21% Century Schools

E-mail: DONOVM1@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Directorate Senior Management Team
Councillor Rhianon Passmore, Cabinet Member for Education & Lifelong Learning
Nicolle Scammell, Acting Director of Corporate Services & S151
David A Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities & Welsh Language)
Stuart Rosser, Interim Chief Executive
Appendices:

Appendix 1:  Gateway Review Report.

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



Appendix 1
OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008
Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

0.G,C,

Office of Government Commerce

Version 4.0 (High Risk Delivery Confidence) June 2008
© Crown Copyright 2007
This is a Value Added product, which is outside the scope of the HMSO core Licence

OGC Gateway™ Process
Review 0: Strategic assessment

Version number: Draft 0.8

Date of issue to SRO: 21/05/2014

SRO: Sandra Aspinall

Agency or NDPB: Caerphilly County Borough Council

OGC Gateway™ Review dates: 19/05/2014 to 21/05/2014

OGC Gateway™ Review Team Leader:
Martin Dove

OGC Gateway™ Review Team Members:
Peter Jones
David Paget

Page 1 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated.Qver a three tqg four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. e ‘12 ié



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

OGC Gateway Delivery Confidence Assessment

Delivery Confidence Assessment Amber / Green

This Delivery Confidence Assessment indicates that successful delivery appears
probable and constant attention will be needed to ensure risks do not materialise
into major issues threatening delivery.

This reflects the Review Team’s confidence in the project’s ability to deliver its aims
and objectives and identifies specific issues that threaten the delivery of outcomes
and jeopardise the delivery of benefits. It indicates the resilience of the project to
overcome identified shortcomings or threats and also the review team’s professional
judgement of the likelihood of the project succeeding even though there may be no
definitively clear evidence either way.

The Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) 21% Century Schools Programme,
which includes three discrete projects, provides improved provision of Welsh
medium places, reduces about a third of the surplus school places and provides
investment in one new school and enhancements or integration of other schools.
This first phase of the Welsh Government (WG) / CCBC programme is affordable
with the funding secured. There are clear investment and community benefits
identified, with educational benefits measured through the normal indicators.

CCBC has a track record of developing schools projects, an experienced education
team, a culture of working well together corporately and is well set up to deliver the
programme. The SRO has a clear vision and an approach that seeks to ensure
strong buy-in from pupils, parents, staff and other stakeholders. Sound project
board governance arrangements are in place. The project manager has advanced
the development of the capital schemes and risk management is sound.

Plans to complete the Welsh medium development at Y Gwindy are well advanced,
with contract award imminent and this is highly likely to be completed by the target
timescale of September 2015 and within cost.

Plans for secondary rationalisation are progressing well, following a positive
outcome to the consultation process. Firm plans are in place with WG to complete
all stages of the business planning process by autumn 2014. There is a good
awareness of the challenges this project faces, which include: the timing and
delivery of the design and construction of the new school on a tight site; the need for
design flexibility to initially provide additional capacity; determining a preferred
option for the Blackwood school; and governance, management and planning
arrangements for the transition. There is recognition of the risk that the school may
not be ready to open in September 2016.

Page 2 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated over 3 three to four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. e Ei 49-



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

Plans for the Upper Rhymney Valley are at a much earlier stage with a 2017
completion date. There has been local engagement in various communities and in
some there is opposition to the proposal. Since the original proposal was
developed, some different issues have emerged, which need to be considered.
CCBC is aware of this and is committed to exploring the issues and opportunities
ahead of any decisions and formal consultation.

The governance arrangements are sound and include an SRO, project board and
project management for the capital schemes. Integrated capital and educational
plans are needed for each project to bring together all the various strands of work
and this is now being progressed.

The programme currently includes the WG Band A projects and CCBC has
commenced the development of plans for the potential Band B phase of the 21
Century Schools Programme.

The Delivery Confidence assessment RAG status uses the definitions below.

RAG Criteria Description

Green Successful delivery of the project/programme to time, cost and quality appears highly likely and
there are no major outstanding issues that at this stage appear to threaten delivery significantly

Amber/Green | Successful delivery appears probable however constant attention will be needed to ensure
risks do not materialise into major issues threatening delivery

Amber Successful delivery appears feasible but significant issues already exist requiring management
attention. These appear resolvable at this stage and if addressed promptly, should not present
a cost/schedule overrun

Amber/Red Successful delivery of the project/programme is in doubt with major risks or issues apparent in
a number of key areas. Urgent action is needed to ensure these are addressed, and whether
resolution is feasible

Red Successful delivery of the project/programme appears to be unachievable. There are major
issues on project/programme definition, schedule, budget required quality or benefits delivery,
which at this stage do not appear to be manageable or resolvable. The Project/Programme
may need re-baselining and/or overall viability re-assessed

Page 3 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated.Qver a three tqg four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age ‘12 &g



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

Summary of Report Recommendations

The Review Team makes the following recommendations which are prioritised using

the definitions below.

Ref Critical/
Nz ) Recommendation Essential/
' Recommended

1. Determine the arrangements for the design of the new Critical — do
school at Oakdale now

2. Review governance arrangements and project management | Essential — do
responsibilities between the project board and the interim by July 2014
Governing Body for the new school at Oakdale

3. Undertake further local stakeholder engagement for the Essential — do
Upper Rhymney Valley project by October

2014

4, Review and agree plans for the Upper Rhymney Valley

Essential — do

project by March 2015
5. Develop an integrated plan for capital and education, Critical — do
human resources, ICT and other activities for each project now

Critical (Do Now) — To increase the likelihood of a successful outcome it is of the greatest

importance that the programme/project should take action immediately

Essential (Do By) — To increase the likelihood of a successful outcome the

programme/project should take action in the near future

Recommended — The programme/project should benefit from the uptake of this

recommendation.

Page 4 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the

independent review team, based on information ev.
immediately at the conclusion of the review.

abated over_zit ree to four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
e 146




OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

Background

The aims of the programme

The overall aim of Caerphilly County Borough Council’'s (CCBC) 21st Century
Schools Programme, originally prepared in October 2010, is to transform the
educational opportunities for learners through the provision of improved learning
environments. The benefits to be realised from the programme will be improvements
in outcomes and in the condition, suitability, sufficiency and sustainability of school
buildings.

The updated strategic programme, SOP2, clearly sets out the strategy and
investment aims and the options appraisal process which was followed to determine
the projects for inclusion in phase 1 of the programme and addressed in the period
up to 2020. These are the Welsh medium development, the secondary
rationalisation (phase 1) and the Upper Rhymney Valley 3 -19 strategy.

The key benefits to be realised include:
¢ |mproved educational outcomes and enhanced skills levels.
e Improvements in the condition of school buildings and increased compliance.
¢ |mprovements in accommodation to meet the needs of 21st century learners.
e |CT enhancements to transform teaching & learning.

e Further development of the 6 post -16 investment objectives, including
increasing options.

e Substantial reduction in surplus school places.
¢ Meeting the continued increase in demand for Welsh medium education.

e Special educational needs are met, including in accordance with recent
provision mapping exercise.

o Review of school catchment areas.
e Exploring the use of federated arrangements.

¢ |ncreased energy efficiencies, reduced carbon emissions and savings of up to
£3m pa.

e Asset rationalisation, by co-locating other services on school sites.
¢ Backlog maintenance costs substantially reduced.

The driving force for the programme

As part of the wider 21st Century Schools Programme across Wales, CBCC has
developed a first phase secondary education rationalisation programme that aims to
remove unwanted surplus places in the authority in order to support the aim that all
other provision may be enhanced.

Page 5 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated_Qver a three t r day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age ‘12 z-



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

The procurement delivery status

For the three projects within the programme and their procurement delivery status is
as follows:

1. Y Gwindy: Welsh medium development - Final stages of procurement.

2. Secondary Rationalisation: Phase 1 — Strategic outline case to be submitted
shortly.

3. Upper Rhymney 3 -18 - early stage of development.

Current position regarding OGC Gateway™ Reviews

Welsh Government requires Gateway Reviews of all 21%* Century Schools
Programmes. This is the first Gateway Review of this programme.

Purposes and conduct of the OGC Gateway™ Review

Purposes of the OGC Gateway™ Review

The primary purposes of an OGC Gateway Review 0: Strategic assessment, are to
review the outcomes and objectives for the programme (and the way they fit
together) and confirm that they make the necessary contribution to Ministers’ or the
department’s overall strategy. A Gateway 0 review is repeatable throughout the life
of the programme.

Appendix A gives the full purposes statement for an OGC Gateway Review 0.

Conduct of the OGC Gateway™ Review

This OGC Gateway Review 0 was carried out from 19/05/2014 to 21/05/2014 at
Caerphilly County Borough Council, Ty Penallta, Tredomen Park, Ystrad Mynach,
Hengoed, CF82 7PG. The team members are listed on the front cover.

The people interviewed are listed in Appendix B.

The Review Team would like to thank the SRO, the project manager and
interviewees for their support and openness, which contributed to the Review
Team’s understanding of the programme and the outcome of this review. The
administrative arrangements for the review were excellent.

Page 6 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated over 3 three to four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. e Ei §



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

Findings and recommendations

1: Policy and business context
Policy and approval

The original programme for secondary places rationalisation was developed in 2010.
This was then developed and refined into a first phase of rationalisation through a
Member-led approach, which examined all of the options and worked through a
formal decision-making process to identify and confirm proposals to be included in
the revised programme. This recognised the imperatives of needing to make
substantial progress quickly and to make the best use of available finance.

The prioritisation of a small programme of Band A projects was based upon the
urgency for more Welsh medium secondary places and the need for realistic
timescales to achieve project outcomes. The programme links directly to CCBC
Education for Life, sustainability and regeneration strategies.

Funding and affordability

The projects in Band A have a funding requirement of £52m, half of which is from
CCBC’s own resources and half of which is from WG match funding. Ata
programme level, funding allocations are approved in principle, and each project
then has specific funding approved and commitment via an agreement between WG
and CCBC following approval of the Full Business Case. The specific agreement for
the funding of the Y Gwindy project is in place. CCBC’s funding is in place and has
primarily been secured from its own resources, with only a small amount of
prudential borrowing proposed.

Each of the projects is discrete and two of the projects include funding arrangements
for further work, which to some extent, are dependent on the actual costs in the initial
phase of the project. At Oakdale, once the capital costs for the new school are firm
and contracted, any ‘remainder’ funding will be used for the expansion and
improvement of Blackwood school. For Y Gwindy, a sum has been set aside for a
new 3G pitch and the scale of this will be determined once the main tender has been
signed and there is a clearer view on project cost. For Upper Rhymney Valley a
capital sum allocation has been identified.

In terms of overall programme affordability, the majority of the savings from surplus
places have effectively already been made through the way that the allocations
system works. There are limited further savings to be secured from premises
overheads.

Page 7 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated.Qver a three tqg four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. e ‘12 ié



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

Benefits

For each project, as well as the educational and direct investment project benefits,
WG also requires measurement of community benefits. Educational benefits will be
tracked using the Education Department’s normal performance monitoring indicators
including: improving opportunities for learning in Welsh medium settings; maintaining
and improving high quality education provision for 14 - 19 year - olds in CCBC
including improved outcomes for learners at Level 2 and 3; improving the economic
future and employment prospects for young people in CCBC; making school
buildings more fit for purpose; and the enabling of community learning. Details of
how these benefits will be achieved should form part of the transition and
implementation plans for each school project. The first phase of the programme
delivers a large in surplus places and substantial new investment in school buildings.

2: Business case and stakeholders — individual projects

The review of current projects reflects the relative independence of each project and
includes consideration of the current stage of business case development,
stakeholder support, readiness for next phase, the transition plan, the change
management plan, the HR plan, and the project timetable, costs and benefits.

Welsh medium development

The Welsh medium development project (Y Gwindy) comprises the move of a
nearby primary school onto the single campus, building school facilities for a Welsh
medium comprehensive through refurbishing an existing building and some new
build to provide additional capacity.

The Final Business Case (FBC) for £20m investment was approved by WG on 17
April 2014, including £3m previous expenditure. This is currently in procurement
with tenders received at the time of this review and contract award imminent. The
construction cost risk transfers on contract signing. Phase 1 is complete and phases
2 and 3 are being procured together, following the lack of interest from the market in
separate phased procurement. The project team consider that this can be delivered
within the project cost and meet the September 2015 timescale for the additional
facilities. There will be a separate procurement for a 3G pitch, with the budget and
specification to be finalised once the main contract has been let.

Much of the work required in establishing the staff arrangements for this new school
has been completed through the joint working of the school and CCBC. The focus
has been to ensure that existing high standards are spread and shared across both
comprehensive sites.

Secondary rationalisation: Phase 1

This is the first CCBC project to reduce the 3,000 surplus places as required by the
Welsh Government and Estyn. Constructing a new school at Oakdale as a
replacement for the existing Pontllanfraith and Oakdale comprehensives reduces

Page 8 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evalyated over to four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age Ei 6;



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

unwanted surplus places by over 700 by September 2016. This brings down
CCBC's total secondary surplus places to 20% which is the WG’s trigger point for
review. CCBC is working towards reducing surplus places to 15% as an absolute
maximum and plans to address this in subsequent secondary rationalisation phases.
The consultation process for the proposals has been successfully completed and
plans are in place with WG to complete the business planning process by autumn
2014.

The project includes subsequent refurbishment and new facilities at Blackwood
school for the additional capacity which arises from adjusting catchment areas. The
transition arrangements mean that there is a ‘bulge’ in pupil numbers for the first
three years or so at the new school at Oakdale until admission arrangements re-
divert pupils to Blackwood comprehensive. This will decline during the three years.
CCBC has a plan to manage this ‘bulge’ based on strategic advice that a flexible /
agile building design for the new school which can accommodate the ‘bulge’ without
compromising the future capacity of the school.

It is estimated that the cost of the new school will be £18m to £18.5m. Council
approved funding of £9.25m as 50% match funding to support £9.25m of grant
funding provided by the Welsh Government as part of the 21st Century Schools
Programme.

The balance of the approved CCBC / WG funding for this project, currently estimated
at £1.5m to £2m, is for investment at Blackwood. An options appraisal has been
undertaken for Blackwood, with a range of options for implementation once the level
of funding available is clarified. The school have been consulted on the options as
they have been developed. The timing of the next phase of determining a preferred
option, preparing the business case and likely delivery plan should be included in the
overall programme plan.

The proposed design for Oakdale is relatively complex given the tightness of the site,
the integration of the special resource base, the requirement to design flexibility to
provide ‘bulge’ capacity for the first three years or so and the tight delivery
timescales. CCBC has been considering the best way to procure and design this
school and a final decision is needed on this soon to meet the demanding timescales
for delivery.

Initial consideration has been given to the need for a contingency plan in the event of
a time overrun from September 2016. It is well recognised that there is a risk of a
delay happening, as well as the likely pressure on cost from the design and site
constraints. CCBC is likely to consider a standardised school design which has
been developed by various market operators during the last two to three years.

Recommendation 1: Confirm the arrangements for the design of the new
school at Oakdale

Page 9 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated_Qver a thre four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age ‘12 1



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

The changes under secondary rationalisation are being managed through the
closure of two existing schools and the creation of a new school. The process to
establish an interim Governing Body early in the project has commenced and the
plans are to have this in place shortly. One of the first tasks will be to appoint the
Headteacher. There are clear advantages around doing this, including continuing
work on curriculum development and organisational structure and staffing for the
new school. As ultimately the Governing Body and Headteacher become the owners
of the new school, this provides an opportunity for many of the responsibilities for
change management to be transferred from CCBC to them during the different
stages of project development. This needs to be considered in the light of an overall
transitional project plan which brings together the capital, educational, organisational
and other activities for this project.

Recommendation 2: Review governance arrangements and project
management responsibilities between the project board and the interim
Governing Body for the new school at Oakdale

An external educationalist with relevant experience and expertise has been brought
in to assist with the development of the curriculum and the initial bringing together of
staff and pupils. The appointment of the interim Governing Body and a Headteacher
will be critical to creating a new culture for the new school. The SRO is committed to
the early engagement of all stakeholders. Initial informal meetings have been held
with staff and unions. This is all positive and there is considerable energy and
enthusiasm for this new school.

Upper Rhymney Valley

This scheme was submitted as one of the twelve Band A proposals in the original
SOP in 2010. The bid proposal involves rationalising three existing Primary schools
into one new one, and thereby removing circa net 100 Primary school places. The
scheme also involves developing community facilities in an area of high social
deprivation as well as upgrading existing facilities on the Rhymney Comprehensive
site where the new school would be co-located. This would result in a single site 3 -
19 campus, under the leadership of one Headteacher. The bid was taken forward as
part of this programme.

The scheme is still at a relatively early stage with initial discussions commencing
with local communities during 2013. Three primary schools will close under these
plans, with pupils travelling to a new school. One of the schools is particularly
isolated. Currently there are objections in some of the communities to the proposal,
with a perception that perhaps a decision has already been made. There are
concerns that this project will have a serious negative impact on the communities.
Recent engagement has been difficult and there are different concerns in each of the
communities, including issues about access, transport and safety, reuse of existing

Page 10 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evalyated over to four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age Ei §



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

buildings, the co-joining of primary and secondary schools and the need to examine
alternatives.

CCBC recognises these concerns and the issues raised and is seeking to continue
the engagement and explore the issues. CCBC has scheduled a further set of
meetings with a representative group of staff, governors and members of the
community to ensure that all matters raised are fully explored prior to making a firm
proposal about the way forward for the Upper Rhymney Valley project.

Recommendation 3: Undertake further local stakeholder engagement for the
Upper Rhymney Valley project

Recommendation 4: Review and agree plans for the Upper Rhymney Valley
project

3: Management of intended outcomes
Governance and project management arrangements

The programme includes three projects which are largely independent of each other,
apart from their dependency on CCBC and WG funding and sitting under a common
governance structure within the CCBC.

The 21% Century Schools Board in CCBC brings together all aspects of the
programme including the construction programme. Given the importance of the
programme to CCBC, it is good that the Acting Chief Executive chairs the Board and
that the relevant Cabinet Member and other senior officers are on the Board.
Minutes of these meetings clearly set out what the issues are on each project in the
programme and how these are being addressed. The SRO is the Director of
Education & Lifelong Learning and Acting Deputy Chief Executive who has a clear
vision and an approach which seeks to ensure strong buy-in from pupils, parents,
staff and other stakeholders. The education team is experienced in taking forward
changes of this nature.

Specific programme and project management arrangements going forward are
evolving. Each project, once it enters the construction phase, will effectively have a
project manager from the delivery team directly responsible for the day-to-day
delivery of the scheme. Construction project management experience will continue
to be needed through the delivery of completion, post project evaluation and
measurement of benefits realisation for each scheme. At a programme level, two
managers will take forward the Y Gwindy and Oakdale projects, and the Upper
Rhymney Valley project.

Page 11 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated_Qver a thre fqur day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age ‘12 é



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

Programme and project plans

An overall programme plan and individual project plans have been prepared for each
capital scheme. There is acknowledged need to widen the content of the plans to
include the associated change management plans. These will vary for each project
and may include consultation, curriculum changes, transition, integration, staff
changes, ICT and transport, as well as wider Council interests such as health and
safety, planning and regeneration. The higher level plan should identify milestones,
critical path and dependencies. The plans should also include milestone dates when
the agreed benefit baseline measures will be reviewed. CCBC are now progressing
the integration of these plans.

Recommendation 5: Develop an integrated plan for capital and education,
human resources, ICT and other activities for each project

Following the letting of the contract for Y Gwindy, it is planned to run an initial
lessons learned process to capture learning and feed this in to the planning of
subsequent projects. This process could helpfully tap into any information WG has
available from similar exercises elsewhere in Wales. Formal post project evaluation
is planned for each scheme.

4: Risk management

Individual projects will have risk registers for their capital elements and one is
already developed for the Y Gwindy project. The latter includes one high risk
(design omissions and errors in mechanical and electrical) and several medium risks
(start delay, client changes, tender over budget, existing windows and other repair
work). Risk management will be developed with the contractor when appointed.
Cost risk is transferred to the contractor and robust CCBC change control measures
will be established and controlled by the project manager.

There is also a programme risk register with no high risks and a number of medium
risks including: difficulty in obtaining and / or developing the preferred sites;
abnormal site conditions; proposals not endorsed during statutory consultation;
failure to gain planning and environmental approvals for the proposed project; and
construction over — run and / or increased costs.

Escalation of programme and project Council risk is initially to the Project Board.
From there escalation is to the Council’s Big Project Risk Register and the Corporate
Risk Register.

As individual projects develop risk identification and management will need
broadening to include risks identified from other activities such as curriculum
changes, new organisational structures, school changes, transition and transport
workstreams.

Page 12 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evalyated over ee to four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age Ei 49-



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

5: Readiness for next phase

At the programme level, the next phase beyond Band A projects will include the
development of the strategic outline plan for the projects to be considered at part of a
potential Band B. This timing for this is uncertain and will be dependent on WG
match funding through any extension of the WG’s 21 Century Schools Programme.

CCBC has commenced the development of such plans for the potential Band B
phase, which will include addressing a further reduction in surplus places. This will
be beneficial given that the planning for schools projects and, particularly the
rationalisation of places, has a long lead-in time.

While core education funding is ring-fenced, the scale of cost reductions CCBC
faces in 2015/6 and 2016/17 suggests that the pressure to make the best use of
available resources will increase further. This potentially impacts on CCBC’s future
flexibility to source its own funding to be used alongside matching WG funds and will
also need to inform planning assumptions for the next phase.

The next OGC Gateway™ Review

Gateway 0 Programme Reviews are repeatable through the programme life. The
next review should be prior to the opening of the new school at Oakdale planned for
September 2016 or, if required earlier by WG, the Band B phase of the 21 Century
Schools Programme.

Page 13 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated_Qver a thre four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age ‘12 gJ



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme
OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008

Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

APPENDIX A

Purposes of OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment

e Review the outcomes and objectives for the programme (and the way they fit together)
and confirm that they make the necessary contribution to overall strategy of the

organisation and its senior management.
e Ensure that the programme is supported by key stakeholders.

e Confirm that the programme’s potential to succeed has been considered in the wider
context of the organisation’s delivery plans and change programmes, and any
interdependencies with other programmes or projects in the organisation’s portfolio and,
where relevant, those of other organisations.

e Review the arrangements for leading, managing and monitoring the programme as a
whole and the links to individual parts of it (e.g. to any existing projects in the
programme’s portfolio).

¢ Review the arrangements for identifying and managing the main programme risks (and

the individual project risks), including external risks such as changing business priorities.

e Check that provision for financial and other resources has been made for the programme
(initially identified at programme initiation and committed later) and that plans for the
work to be done through to the next stage are realistic, properly resourced with sufficient
people of appropriate experience, and authorised.

e After the initial Review, check progress against plans and the expected achievement of

outcomes.

e Check that there is engagement with the market as appropriate on the feasibility of

achieving the required outcome.

e Where relevant, check that the programme takes account of joining up with other

programmes, internal and external.

Page 14 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evalyated over to four day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age Ei g



OGC Gateway™ Review 0: Strategic assessment
Programme Title: Caerphilly 21 Century Schools Programme

OGC Gateway™ ID: AH/14/008
Privacy Marking: UNCLASSIFIED

APPENDIX B

Interviewees

Name

Role

Sandra Aspinall

Acting Deputy Chief Executive, Caerphilly
County Borough Council

Martin Donovan

Project Lead, 21 Century Schools

Lisa Haile

Personnel Manager, Caerphilly County Borough
Council

Tim Williams

Headteacher, Pontllanfraith Comprehensive
School

Davina Parfitt

Headteacher, Abertysswg Primary School

Tyrone Powell

Chair of Governors, Fochriw Primary School

County Councillor Wynne David

Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee,
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Nicole Scammell

Acting Director of Corporate Finance & S151,
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Donna Jones

Health & Safety Manager, Caerphilly County
Borough Council

Peter Hindley Head of Reorganisation 21st Century Schools
Programme, Department of Education & Skills,
Welsh Government

Rhian Kyte Team Leader, Strategic & Development

Planning, Caerphilly County Borough Council

Owain ap Dafydd

Headteacher, Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni

Ron McLean

Associate Project Management AECOM

Stuart Rosser

Acting Chief Executive, Caerphilly County
Borough Council

Page 15 of 15

This report is an evidence-based snapshot of the project's status at the time of the review. It reflects the views of the
independent review team, based on information evaluated_Qver a thre r day period, and is delivered to the SRO
immediately at the conclusion of the review. age ‘12



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 158



Agenda ltem 14

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COLFNCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK

PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES & SECTION 151

OFFICER

1.1

21

3.1

41

4.2

5.1

6.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To report the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

SUMMARY

Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas reflect
the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, the public or
stakeholders.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent
Assembly legislation.

THE REPORT

The Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme identifies reports that
are due to be presented to scrutiny during the period August to September 2014 and have
followed consultation process which includes key stakeholders and the public.

For information, the latest Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is
attached at Appendix 1.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report.

Page 159



7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

71 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 That Members note the Forward Work Programme.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  To improve the operation of scrutiny.

1. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  The Local Government Act 2000.

Author: Catherine Forbes-Thompson Scrutiny Research Officer
Consultees: Jonathan Jones Democratic Services Manager
Appendices:

Appendix 1 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Page 160



191 abed

e
LAERDHILLY

CAERFFILY
-
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme — August to October 2014
Subject Area Report Title Proposed Meeting Date
Pre-Decision Scrutiny No reports for this area
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Review 23" September 2014
Consultation and Information Youth Service Strategy Update (for information) 23" September 2014
Forward Work Programme 23" September 2014

Performance Management:-

WAO Service Performance Reports
Improvement Objectives

Council Self-Evaluation

Service Improvement Plans

No reports for this area

Budget Monitoring

Medium Term Financial Plan

Special Scrutiny - 18" September 2014

Medium Term Financial Plan

Special Scrutiny — 22" October 2014

Ombudsman Reports

No reports for this area

Task and Finish Group

No reports for this area

Members / Public Requests, Call-Ins
and CCfA

Impact of multi-agency working to improve
(educational) outcomes for (vulnerable) children
and young people

23" September 2014

Scrutiny of Designated Persons and
Other Organisations

No reports for this area




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 162



Agenda ltem 15

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COLFNCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY

4

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
23RD SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: SUMMARY OF MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE - QUARTER 1 -

8TH MAY 2014 TO 30TH JUNE 2014

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES AND SECTION 151

OFFICER

1.1

21

2.2

23

24

3.1

41

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To report Members’ levels of attendance at scheduled meetings of Caerphilly County Borough
Council.

THE REPORT

Appendix 1 details Members’ attendance for quarter 1 (8th May 2014 to 30th June 2014), at
the following meetings:

- Council;

- Cabinet;

- Scrutiny Committees;

- Planning Committee;

- Audit Committee;

- Democratic Services Committee; and

- Sustainable Development Advisory Panel.

The information is compiled from attendance sheets signed by Members at these meetings.
The appendix also allows for a comparison with the same period in the preceding two years.
When making comparisons to previous quarters/years, please note that overall averages
given are the weighted average to reflect the number of meetings in each quarter.

Details for the next quarter (1st July 2014 to 30th September 2014) will be reported to the next
appropriate meeting of the Scrutiny Committee.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report.

Page 163



5. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.

6. CONSULTATIONS

6.1 None.

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

71 That Members note the content of the report.

8. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 To inform Members of attendance levels at scheduled meetings of Caerphilly County Borough
Council from the Annual Meeting of Council, 2014.

Author: C. Evans (Committee Services Officer)

Background Papers:
Member attendance sheets

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Schedule of Members’ Attendance 2012 to 2015

Page 164



G9| ebed

Quarterly Summary of Attendance Levels (Percentages)

APPENDIX 1

AGM to AGM
2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015
Q1[({Q2({Q3[Q4]|Total]Q1[{Q2[{Q3[ Q4] Total] Q1| Q2| Q3| Q4] Total
Councll 89| 88| 85| 81 84 | 87 (82)82(88] 85 | 84 84
C & Disord 38 59| 59 69 94| 82 0
rime isorder _ % _ % _

Education For Life 7517866169 72 | 72| 75|69 |75] 73 | 66 66
Health, Social Care & Wellbeing

The Living Environment

Regeneration

/////////////////

/////////////////%

Regeneration and Environment

Policy & Resources 8118871179 77 |69 (78|84 ([85] 79 | 78 78
Planning Committee 751838074 78 | 75| 82|85|89] 83 | 85 85

v
Audit Committee 58 150 (42)]| 48 | 83| 75|67 | 83| 77 | 58 58
Democratic Services Committee 44 [ 63 |1 69] 60 | 69 / 69|75 71 88 88
_ _

Sustainable Development Advisory Panel 73145 (64| 45 61 64 | 64 / 64| 64 0
Average Attendance per quarter 78 | 67 (71 | 71 74 |74 | 72 81 76 77 77
Cabinet 90 [ 94 [ 93 [ 88 | 91 95829293 91 93 93




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166



	Agenda
	3 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee held on 8th July 2014 (minute nos. 1-12).
	9 Measuring the Progress of Vulnerable Groups of Learners and how Services Work together to Support them and their Families;
	Measuring the Progress of Vulnerable Groups of Learners App 1
	Measuring the Progress of Vulnerable Groups of Learners App 2
	Measuring the Progress of Vulnerable Groups of Learners App 3

	10 Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Review;
	Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Review App A
	Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Review App B
	Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Review App C

	12 Caerphilly Youth Service Strategy 2014-2019;
	13 21st Century Schools: Gateway Review;
	21st Century Schools Gateway Review App 1

	14 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme;
	Education for Life Scrutiny Forward Work Programme App 1

	15 Summary of Members' Attendance - Quarter 1 - 8th May 2014 - 30th June 2014.
	15 Summary of Members' Attendance Q1 - 08 May-30 June 2014 App 1


